

DENON®

AVR-S950H

INTEGRATED NETWORK AV RECEIVER

Owner's Manual











Contents Connections F	Playback	Settings Tips Appendix	$\overline{\ }$	
Accessories	8	Connecting a TV	50	
Inserting the batteries	9	Connection 1 : TV equipped with an HDMI connector and		
Operating range of the remote control unit	9	compatible with the ARC (Audio Return Channel) / eARC		
Features	10		51	
High quality sound	10	incompatible with the ARC (Audio Return Channel) / eARC		
High performance	11	(Enhanced Audio Return Channel)	53	
Easy operation	15	Connection 3 : TV equipped without an HDMI connector	54	
Part names and functions	16	Connecting a playback device	55	
Front panel	16	Connecting a set-top box (Satellite tuner/cable TV)	56	
Display	20	Connecting a DVD player or Blu-ray Disc player	57	
Rear panel	22	Connecting a video camcorder or game console	58	
Remote control unit	26	Connecting a turntable	59	
O anno atlana		Connecting a USB memory device to the USB port	60	
Connections		Connecting FM/AM antennas	61	
Speaker installation	30	Connecting to a home network (LAN)	63	
Connecting speakers	37	Wired LAN	63	
Before connecting speakers	37	Wireless LAN	64	

41

42

43

49

Speaker configuration and "Amp Assign" settings

Connecting 5.1-channel speakers

Connecting 7.1-channel speakers

Connecting multi-zone speakers

2

Remote

Connecting the power cord



Ріаураск		Listening to Internet Radio
Basic operation	67	Elstening to Internet Radio
Turning the power on	67	Playing back files stored on a PC or NAS
Selecting the input source	67	Getting the HEOS Ann
Adjusting the volume	68	HEOS Account
Turning off the sound temporarily (Muting)	68	Plaving from streaming music services
Playback a DVD player/Blu-ray Disc player	68	Listening to the same music in multiple rooms
Playing a USB memory device	69	
Playing files stored on USB memory devices	70	Plaving songs from your iPhone iPod touch or iPad
Listening to music on a Bluetooth device	73	Playing Songs non you'n none, it ou touch of it au
Playing music from Bluetooth device	74	Play a song from your iPhone, iPod touch or iPad on multiple
Pairing with other Bluetooth devices	75	synced devices (AirPlay 2)
Reconnecting to this unit from a Bluetooth device	76	Spotify Connect function
Listening to FM/AM broadcasts	77	Playing Spotify music with this unit
Listening to FM/AM broadcasts	78	
Tuning in by entering the frequency (Direct Tune)	79	
Changing the tune mode (Tune Mode)	80	
Tuning in to stations and presetting them automatically (Auto Preset Memory)	80	
Presetting the current broadcast station (Preset Memory)	81	
Listening to preset stations	81	
Specify a name for the preset broadcast station (Preset Name)	82	
Skipping preset broadcast stations (Preset Skip)	83	
Cancelling Preset Skip	84	

3

Remote



Contents Connections Playback	•	Settings Tips Appendix	\bigcirc
Convenience functions	104	Quick select plus function	129
Adding to HEOS Favorites	105	Calling up the settings	130
Playing back HEOS Favorites	105	Changing the settings	131
Deleting a HEOS Favorites	106	Panel lock function	132
Adjusting the volume of each channel to match the input source (Channel Level Adjust)	107	Disabling all key button operations	132
Adjusting the tone (Tone)	108	Canceling the Panel lock function	133
Displaying your desired video during audio playback (Video Soloct)	109	Remote lock function	134
Adjusting the picture quality for your viewing environment (Picture	100	Disabling the sensor function of the remote control unit	134
Mode)	110	Enabling the remote sensor function	134
Playing the same music in all zones (All Zone Stereo)	111	Web control function	
Selecting a sound mode	112	Controlling the unit from a web control	135
Selecting a sound mode	113	Playback in ZONE2 (Another room)	137
Direct playback	114	Connecting ZONE2	137
Pure Direct playback	115	Playback in ZONE2	138
Auto surround playback	115	Cattingo	
Description of sound mode types	116	Settings	
Sound mode that can be selected for each input signal	120	Menu map	140
HDMI Control function	124	Menu operations	144
Setting procedure	124	Audio	145
Smart Menu function	125	Center Level Adjust	145
Sleep timer function	127	Subwoofer Level Adjust	145
Using the sleep timer	128	Surround Parameter	146
		Restorer	150

Rear panel

4

Remote

Audio Delay

Audyssey®

Graphic EQ

Volume



151

152

153

Contents Connections	Playback	Settings	Tips Appendix
Video	157	Manual Setup	184
Picture Adjust	157	Amp Assign	184
HDMI Setup	158	Speaker Config.	185
Output Settings	164	Distances	189
On Screen Display	167	Levels	191
4K Signal Format	168	Crossovers	192
TV Format	169	Bass	193
Inputs	170	Network	194
Input Assign	170	Information	194
Source Rename	173	Connection	194
Hide Sources	173	Wi-Fi Setup	195
Source Level	173	Settings	197
Speakers	174	Network Control	199
Audyssey [®] Setup	174	Friendly Name	199
Procedure for speaker settings (Audyssey [®] Setup)	176	Diagnostics	200
Error messages	182	AirPlay	200
Retrieving Audyssey [®] Setup settings	183		









Contents

Playback

Settings

Tips

HEOS Account	201
You have not signed in	201
You have already signed in	201
General	202
Language	202
ECO	202
ZONE2 Setup	206
Zone Rename	207
Quick Select Names	207
Front Display	208
Firmware	209
Information	212
Usage Data	213
Save & Load	214
Setup Lock	214
Reset	215
Limiting the operating zone with the remote control	216

Tips	
Tips	218
Troubleshooting	220
Power does not turn on / Power is turned off	221
Operations cannot be performed through the remote control unit	222
Display on this unit shows nothing	222
No sound comes out	223
Desired sound does not come out	224
Sound is interrupted or noise occurs	227
No video is shown on the TV	228
The menu screen is not displayed on the TV	229
The color of the menu screen and operations content displayed on the television is different from normal	229
AirPlay cannot be played back	230
USB memory devices cannot be played back	231
Bluetooth cannot be played back	232
The Internet radio cannot be played back	233
Music files on PC or NAS cannot be played back	234
Various online services cannot be played	235
The HDMI Control function does not work	235
Cannot connect to a wireless LAN network	236
Update/upgrade error messages	237
Resetting factory settings	238
Resetting network settings	239

Rear panel

6

Remote



Contents

Appendix

About HDMI	240
Relationship between video signals and monitor output	243
Playing back a USB memory devices	245
Playing back a Bluetooth device	246
Playing back a file saved on a PC or NAS	247
Playing back Internet Radio	248
Personal memory plus function	248
Last function memory	248
Sound modes and channel output	249
Sound modes and surround parameters	251
Types of input signals, and corresponding sound modes	254
Explanation of terms	257
Trademark information	266
Specifications	268
Index	273
License	276







Thank you for purchasing this Denon product.

To ensure proper operation, please read this owner's manual carefully before using the product.

After reading this manual, be sure to keep it for future reference.

Accessories

Check that the following parts are supplied with the product.

Quick Start Guide	Safety Instructions	Notes on radio	Warranty (for North America model only)	Cable labels
and the second sec		-		
FM indoor antenna	AM loop antenna	Sound calibration microphone	Sound calibration microphone stand	Remote control unit (RC-1228)
R03/AAA batteries	External antennas for Bluetooth/wireless connectivity			
	•	-		



Playback

Settings

Inserting the batteries

Remove the rear lid in the direction of the arrow and remove it.



2 Insert two batteries correctly into the battery compartment as indicated.



3 Put the rear cover back on.

NOTE

- To prevent damage or leakage of battery fluid:
 - Do not use a new battery together with an old one.
 - Do not use two different types of batteries.
- Remove the batteries from the remote control unit if it will not be in use for long periods.
- If the battery fluid should leak, carefully wipe the fluid off the inside of the battery compartment and insert new batteries.

Operating range of the remote control unit

Point the remote control unit at the remote sensor when operating it.







Features

High quality sound

 With discrete circuit technology, the power amplifier provides identical quality for all 7-channels (125 Watts x 7-channels) For optimum realism and stunning dynamic range, the power amplifier section features discrete power devices (not integrated circuitry). By using high current, high power discrete power devices, the amplifier is able to easily drive high quality speakers.

• Dolby Atmos (12 p. 258)

This unit is equipped with a decoder that supports Dolby Atmos audio format. The placement or movement of sound is accurately reproduced by the addition of overhead speakers, enabling you to experience an incredibly natural and realistic surround sound field.

• Speaker Virtualizer * (127 p. 148)

Speaker Virtualizer enables you to access a more immersive entertainment experience from traditional channel based speaker layouts through digital signal processing including Dolby Atmos height virtualization and surround virtualization.

- Speaker Virtualizer is not for use when both height speakers and surround speakers are connected.
- Height Virtualization may be applied when surround speakers are connected.
- * This feature will be supported via firmware update.

• DTS:X (🖅 p. 261)

This unit is equipped with the DTS:X decoder technology. DTS:X brings the home theater experience to new heights with its immersive object based audio technology which removes the bounds of channels. The flexibility of objects allows for sound to be scaled large or small and moved around the room with greater accuracy than ever before leading to a richer immersive audio experience.

• DTS Virtual:X (27 p. 261)

DTS Virtual:X technology features DTS's proprietary virtual height and virtual surround processing to deliver an immersive sound experience from any type of input source (stereo to 7.1.4 channel) and speaker configuration.

• DTS Virtual:X is not for use when Height speakers are connected.









When 4K Ultra HD (High Definition) is used, an input/output speed of 60 frames per second (60p) is achieved for video signals. When connected to 4K Ultra HD and 60p video signal input compatible TV, you can enjoy the sense of realism only available from high-definition images, even when viewing fast-moving video.

This unit also supports image processing for 4K 60p, 4:4:4 and 24-bit videos. By processing the video at the original resolution, this unit lets you enjoy flawless, high-definition picture quality.

This unit also supports HDR (High Dynamic Range) and BT.2020 wide color gamut.

HDCP 2.3

This unit is compatible with HDCP 2.3 copyright protection standard.

This unit is equipped with a 4K video upscaling function that allows SD (Standard Definition) video to be output via HDMI at 4K (3840×2160 pixels) resolution. This function enables the device to be connected to a TV using a single HDMI cable, and produces high definition images for any video source.

· eARC (Enhanced Audio Return Channel) function compatibility

The eARC function is compatible with conventional ARC functioncompatible audio formats in addition to multichannel linear PCM, Dolby TrueHD, Dolby Atmos, DTS-HD Master Audio, DTS:X and other audio formats a conventional ARC function cannot transmit. Additionally, connecting to an eARC function-compatible television enables enjoyment of higher-quality surround playback of the audio content played from your television.







HDMI connections enable connection to various digital AV devices (8 inputs, 2 outputs)



This unit is equipped with 8 HDMI inputs and 2 HDMI outputs enabling connection to various HDMI compatible devices such as Blu-ray Disc players, game consoles and HD video camcorders. This unit is equipped with 2 monitor outputs, enabling you to project the same image at the same time using this unit.

 The device is equipped with a AirPlay[®] function in addition to network functions such as Internet radio etc. (127 p. 100)



You can enjoy a wide variety of content, including listening to Internet Radio, playing audio files stored on your PC.

This unit also supports Apple AirPlay which lets you stream your music library from an iPhone[®], iPad[®], iPod touch[®] or iTunes[®].

• Supports AirPlay 2[®] wireless audio

Sync multiple AirPlay 2 compatible devices/speakers for simultaneous playback.

This unit supports AirPlay 2 and requires iOS 11.4 or later.







13

Rear panel

ZONE2

the whole house.Energy-saving design

unnecessary power use.

Remote

You can select and play back the respective inputs in MAIN ZONE and

In addition, when the All Zone Stereo function is used, the music being played back in MAIN ZONE can be enjoyed in all the zones at the same time. This is useful when you want to let the BGM propagate throughout

This unit is equipped with an ECO Mode function that allows you to

power supply when the unit is not in use. This helps reduce

enjoy music and movies while reducing the power consumption during use, and also an auto-standby function that automatically turns off the

Index



You can enjoy music simply by connecting wirelessly with your smartphone, tablet, PC, etc.

Display

Front panel

 Compatible with the "Denon 2016 AVR Remote" App* for performing basic operations of the unit with an iPad, iPhone or Android[™] devices (Google, Amazon Kindle Fire)



Along with many new features, the graphics and user interface have been completely overhauled. The new app gives you full control of this unit as well as access to its setup menu for detailed adjustments from your phones or tablets. "Denon 2016 AVR Remote" App also gives you quick access to the receiver's status display, option menus, Denon Bluray Disc player control, and online owner's manual for your convenience.

* Download the appropriate "Denon 2016 AVR Remote" App for your iOS or Android devices. This unit needs to be connected to the same LAN or Wi-Fi (wireless LAN) network that the iPad, iPhone or Android™ is connected to. HEOS provides streaming music from your favorite online music sources





HEOS wireless multi-room sound system that enables you to enjoy your favorite music anywhere and everywhere around your home. By utilizing your existing home network and the HEOS App (available for iOS, Android and Amazon devices), you can explore, browse, and play music from your own music library or from many online streaming music services.

When multiple HEOS devices are connected to the same network, HEOS devices can be grouped to play back the same music on all devices simultaneously, or different music can be played on each separate HEOS device.

Front panel





Easy operation

• "Setup Assistant" provides easy-to-follow setup instructions First select the language when prompted. Then simply follow the instructions displayed on the TV screen to set up the speakers, network, etc.

• Easy to use Graphical User Interface

This unit is equipped with a Graphical User Interface for improved operability.

Front panel







Contents	Playback	Settings	Tips	Appendix
----------	----------	----------	------	----------

Part names and functions

Front panel



For details, see the next page.





Contents **Connections Playback** Settings Tips **Appendix** 00 ß 6 6 (4 SOURCE SELECT knob This selects the input source. (PP p. 67) DENON A Remote control sensor 89 A 7 10 This receives signals from the remote control unit. (127 p. 9) Display 0 0 0 0 Õ Õ Õ Õ This displays various pieces of information. (127 p. 20) MASTER VOLUME knob \cap 0 - -0 This adjusts the volume level. (P p. 68) ZONE2 ON/OFF button This turns the power of ZONE2 (another room) on/off. (127 p. 138) ● Power operation button (也) CONE2 SOURCE button Used to turn the power of the MAIN ZONE (room where this unit is This selects the input source for ZONE2. (2 p. 138) located) on/off (standby). (P p. 67) Tuner preset channel buttons Power indicator (TUNER PRESET CH +, -) This is lit as follows according to the power status: These select preset broadcast stations. (PP p. 81) Green: Power on

- Green. Fower on
- Off: Normal standby
- Red:
 - When "HDMI Pass Through" is set to "On" (main p. 159)
 - When "HDMI Control" is set to "On" (main p. 160)
 - When "Network Control" is set to "Always On" (
 p. 199)

① Tuning up / Tuning down buttons (TUNE +, -) These select either FM broadcast or AM broadcast. (127 p. 78)

Reception band select button (BAND)

This switches the reception band. (127 p. 78)





Tune mode select button (MODE)

This switches the tuning mode. (IP p. 80)

B DIMMER button

Each press of this switches the brightness of the display. (127 p. 208)

STATUS button

Each press of this switches the status information that is shown on the display.

Headphones jack (PHONES)

This is used to connect headphones.

When the headphones are plugged into this jack, audio will no longer be output from the connected speakers or from the SUBWOOFER connectors.

NOTE

• To prevent hearing loss, do not raise the volume level excessively when using headphones.

SETUP MIC jack

This is used to connect the supplied Sound calibration microphone. ($\square p$ p. 177)

QUICK SELECT buttons

With a single press of any of these buttons, you can call up various settings you've registered to each button such as the input source, volume level and sound mode settings. ((27) p. 129)







Co	ntents	Connections	Playback	Settings	Tips	Appendix	
----	--------	-------------	----------	----------	------	----------	--



SOUND MODE buttons

These select the sound mode. (P p. 112)

AUX1-HDMI connector

This is used to connect HDMI output compatible devices such as video camcorders and game consoles. (\mathbb{C} p. 58)

🖉 USB port (🖘)

This is used to connect USB storages (such as USB memory devices). ($\swarrow p$ 60)





Contents **Connections Playback** Settings Tips **Appendix** Display 6 1 6 AUTO HDMI DIGITAL ANALOG SEACK DI dts AUDYSSEY TUNED STEREO ΠΠ SLEEP ſĹĬĹĬď₿ MUTE PCM Z2 DIG. ANA. 9 10

Input mode indicators

These light according to the audio input mode settings of each input source. (IP p. 172)

O Surround back indicator

This lights when audio signals are being output from the surround back speakers. (127 p. 186)

B Decoder indicators

These light when Dolby or DTS signals are input or when the Dolby or DTS decoder is running.

Audyssey[®] indicator

This lights when "MultEQ[®]", "Dynamic EQ" or "Dynamic Volume" has been set up. (\square p. 153)

Tuner reception mode indicators

These light up according to the reception conditions when the input source is set to "Tuner".

TUNED: Lights up when the broadcast is properly tuned in. **STEREO**: Lights up when receiving FM stereo broadcasts.

6 Sleep timer indicator

This lights when the sleep mode is selected. (IP p. 127)





/	Contents	Connections	Playback	Settings	Tips	Appendix
			78			
	(AUTO) (HDMI) (DIGITAL) (AKAL	0 SEAR DO dts AUDYSSEY TUNED STEREO				
_		9	®			

Volume indicator

8 MUTE indicator

This blinks while the sound is muted. ($\ensuremath{\mathfrak{T}}$ p. 68)

Information display

The input source name, sound mode, setting values and other information are displayed here.

Input signal indicators

The respective indicator will light corresponding to the input signal. ($\textcircled{\sc p} p. 172)$

ZONE2 indicator

This lights up when ZONE2 (another room) power is turned on. ($\bowtie p. 138$)









Rear panel



For details, see the next page.







Used to connect the included external antennas for Bluetooth/wireless connectivity when connecting to a network via wireless LAN, or when connecting to a handheld device via Bluetooth. (1 p. 64)

- (1) Place the external antennas for Bluetooth/wireless connectivity evenly over the screw terminal of rear.
- (2) Turn clockwise until the antennas is fully connected.
- $\overline{(3)}$ Rotate the antenna upwards for best reception.

- connector" (@p. 54)
- "Connecting a DVD player or Blu-ray Disc player" (2 p. 57)



Front panel





Contents Connections Playback	Settings Tips Appendix
	 (i) NETWORK connector Used to connect to a LAN cable when connecting to a wired LAN network. (() p. 63) (i) HDMI connectors Used to connect devices equipped with HDMI connectors. "Connection 1 : TV equipped with an HDMI connector and compatible with the ARC (Audio Return Channel) / eARC (Enhanced Audio Return Channel)" (() p. 51) "Connection 2 : TV equipped with an HDMI connector and incompatible with the ARC (Audio Return Channel) / eARC (Enhanced Audio Return Channel)" (() p. 53) "Connecting a set-top box (Satellite tuner/cable TV)" (() p. 56) "Connecting a DVD player or Blu-ray Disc player" () p. 57)

Digital audio connectors (DIGITAL AUDIO)

Used to connect devices equipped with digital audio connectors.

- "Connection 2 : TV equipped with an HDMI connector and incompatible with the ARC (Audio Return Channel) / eARC (Enhanced Audio Return Channel)" (1 p. 53)
- "Connection 3 : TV equipped without an HDMI connector" (P p. 54)

Power cord (P p. 65)

FM/AM antenna terminals (ANTENNA)

Used to connect FM antennas and AM loop antennas. (12 p. 61)

Speaker terminals (SPEAKERS)

Used to connect speakers. (127 p. 37)



Contents Connections Playback	Settings Tips Appendix
	 Component video connectors (COMPONENT VIDEO) Used to connect devices equipped with component video connectors. "Connection 3 : TV equipped without an HDMI connector" (IP p. 54) "Connecting a set-top box (Satellite tuner/cable TV)" (IP p. 56) "Connecting a DVD player or Blu-ray Disc player" (IP p. 57) NOTE Do not touch the inner pins of the connectors on the rear panel. Electrostatic discharge may cause permanent damage to the unit.

PRE OUT connectors

Used to connect a subwoofer with a built-in amplifier. (127 p. 38)









Remote control unit



O ZONE SELECT buttons

These switch the zone (MAIN ZONE, ZONE2) that is operated through the remote control unit.

- "Playback in ZONE2" (2 p. 138)
- "Menu operations" (2 p. 144)

Input source select buttons

These selects the input source.

- "Selecting the input source" (P p. 67)
- "Playback in ZONE2" (2 p. 138)

③ Channel/page search buttons (CH/PAGE ▲▼)

These select radio stations registered to presets or switch pages. ($\ensuremath{\mathfrak{CF}}\xspace$ p. 81)

MUTE button (◀×)

This mutes the output audio.

- "Turning off the sound temporarily (Muting)" (12 p. 68)
- "Turning off the sound temporarily (Muting) (ZONE2)" (
 P. 139)

Information button (INFO)

This displays the status information on the TV screen. (In p. 213)

6 Cursor buttons ($\Delta \nabla \triangleleft \triangleright$)

These select items.

Rear panel





Contents	Connections	Playback	Settings	$\overline{\mathbf{N}}$	Tips	Арре	ndix
9 3 0		9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	BACK button This returns to the System button These perform p Tuning up / Tun These select eith QUICK SELEC These call up service SOUND MODE These select the Remote contro This transmits si SLEEP button This sets the slee	he previous s s blayback rela ning down l her FM broad T buttons (1 ettings registed d sound mod buttons e sound mod buttons e sound mod buttons e sound mod buttons e sound mod buttons (12) (12) (12) (12) (12) (13) (13) (14) (14) (15) (14) (15) (screen. tted operatio buttons (TU dcast or AM -4) ered to each de settings. (e. ($\Box T$ p. 1 he remote co T p. 127)	ns. NE +, -) broadcast. (IP p. button, such as inp IP p. 129) 12) ontrol unit. (IP p. 9	78) ut source, I)



\sim				
1 - 1	n 1	0	n	TC.
		-		

Playback

POWER button (位)

This turns the power on/off.

- "Turning the power on" (m p. 67)
- "Playback in ZONE2" (12 p. 138)

❶ ECO Mode button (♥)

This switches to ECO Mode. (127 p. 202)

() VOLUME buttons (▲▼)

These adjusts the volume level.

- "Adjusting the volume" (2 p. 68)
- "Adjusting the volume (ZONE2)" (139)

OPTION button

This displays the option menu on the TV screen.

ENTER button

This determines the selection.

SETUP button

This displays the menu on the TV screen. (127 p. 144)



Remote



Contents

Speaker installation	30
Connecting speakers	37
Connecting a TV	50
Connecting a playback device	55
Connecting a USB memory device to the USB port	60
Connecting FM/AM antennas	61
Connecting to a home network (LAN)	63
Connecting the power cord	65

NOTE

- Do not plug in the power cord until all connections have been completed. However, when the "Setup Assistant" is running, follow the instructions in the "Setup Assistant" (page 9 in the separate "Quick Start Guide") screen for making connections. (During "Setup Assistant" operation, the input/output connectors do not conduct current.)
- Do not bundle power cords together with connection cables. Doing so can result in noise.

Cables used for connections

Provide necessary cables according to the devices you want to connect.





Speaker installation

Determine the speaker system depending on the number of speakers you are using and install each speaker and subwoofer in the room. Speaker installation is explained using this example of a typical installation.



FL/FR (Front speaker left/ right):	Place the FRONT left and right speakers an equal distance from the main listening position. The distance between each speaker and your TV should also be the same.
C (Center speaker):	Place the CENTER speaker in between the front speakers and above or below your TV.
SL/SR (Surround speaker left/ right):	Place the SURROUND left and right speakers an equal distance to the left and right sides of the main listening position. If you don't have surround back speakers, move the surround speakers slightly behind your listening position.
SBL/SBR (Surround back speaker left/right):	Place the SURROUND BACK left and right speakers an equal distance from the main listening position and directly behind the main listening position. When using a single surround back speaker (SB), place it directly behind the listening position.
SW 1/2 (Subwoofer):	Place the SUBWOOFER at a convenient location near the front speakers. If you have two subwoofers, place them asymmetrically across the front of your room.

Front panel



Contents Connections Playback	Settings	Tips Appendix
	FHL/FHR (Front height speaker left/right):	Place the FRONT HEIGHT left and right speakers directly above the front speakers. Mount them as close to the ceiling as possible and aim them towards the main listening position.
	TFL/TFR (Top front speaker left/right):	Mount the TOP FRONT left and right speakers on the ceiling slightly in front of your main listening position and aligned with the left and right front speakers.
	TML/TMR (Top middle speaker left/right):	Mount the TOP MIDDLE left and right speakers directly above the main listening position and aligned with the left and right front speakers.







Playback



FDL/FDR (Front Dolby speaker left/right):	Place the FRONT Dolby Atmos Enabled speaker on the front speaker. For a Dolby Atmos Enabled integrated with a front speaker, place the Dolby Atmos Enabled speaker instead of the front speaker.
SDL/SDR (Surround Dolby speaker left/right):	Place the SURROUND Dolby Atmos Enabled speaker on the surround speaker. For a Dolby Atmos Enabled speaker integrated with a surround speaker, place the Dolby Atmos Enabled speaker instead of the surround speaker.

About Dolby Atmos Enabled speakers

Dolby Atmos Enabled speakers reflect the sound off the ceiling to allow the sound to come from over your head by using a special upwardpointing speaker that is placed on the floor.

You can enjoy the Dolby Atmos 3D sound even in an environment where speakers cannot be installed on the ceiling.



Front panel





- This unit is compatible with Dolby Atmos and DTS:X which offers an even wider and deeper surround sensation.
- The "Speaker Virtualizer" must be set to "On" for Dolby Atmos playback with 5.1channel speaker configurations or less. (127 p. 148)
- DTS:X can be selected regardless of the speaker configuration.
- Use the illustration below as a guide for how high each speaker should be installed. The height does not need to be exactly the same.



Height speakers layout



[Viewed from the top]

Front panel









When using a single surround back speaker, place it directly behind the listening position.

Front panel









Layout including height speakers and ceiling speakers

Height speaker layout example

Combination of 5.1-channel layout and front height speakers.

FHL 💩 💩 FHR FL FR sw Ö SR SL

Ceiling speaker layout example

Combination of 5.1-channel layout and top middle speakers.







Dolby Atmos Enabled speaker layout example

Combination of 5.1-channel layout and front Dolby speakers.










Connecting speakers

Here we connect the speakers in the room to this unit.

Before connecting speakers

NOTE

- Disconnect this unit's power plug from the power outlet before connecting the speakers. Also, turn off the subwoofer.
- Connect so that the speaker cable core wires do not protrude from the speaker terminal. The protection circuit may be activated if the core wires touch the rear panel or if the + and - sides touch each other. ("Protection circuit" (127 p. 265))
- Never touch the speaker terminals while the power cord is connected. Doing so could result in electric shock. When the "Setup Assistant" (page 9 in the separate "Quick Start Guide") is running, follow the instructions in the "Setup Assistant" screen for making connections. (Power is not supplied to the speaker terminals while the "Setup Assistant" is running.)
- Use speakers with an impedance of 4 16 Ω /ohms.

NOTE

- Carry out the following settings when using a speaker with an impedance of 4 6 $\Omega/ohms.$
 - 1. Press and hold the main unit's TUNER PRESET CH + and TUNE + at the same time for at least 3 seconds.

"V.Format:< NTSC>" appears on the display.

2. Press DIMMER on the main unit three times.

"Sp.Imp.:<80hms>" appears on the display.

3. Press TUNER PRESET CH + or TUNER PRESET CH - on the main unit to select the impedance.

8ohms (Default):	Select when the impedance for all of the connected speakers is 8 Ω /ohms or over.
6ohms:	Select when the impedance for any of the connected speakers is 6 Ω /ohms.
4ohms:	Select when the impedance for any of the connected speakers is 4 Ω /ohms.

4. Press the main unit's STATUS to complete the setting.





Connecting the speaker cables

Carefully check the left (L) and right (R) channels and + (red) and – (black) polarities on the speakers being connected to this unit, and be sure to connect the channels and polarities correctly.

Peel off about 3/8 inch (10 mm) of sheathing from the tip of the speaker cable, then either twist the core wire tightly or terminate it.

2

Turn the speaker terminal counterclockwise to loosen it.



3 Insert the speaker cable's core wire to the hilt into the speaker terminal.



4 Turn the speaker terminal clockwise to tighten it.



Front panel





Connecting the subwoofer

Use a subwoofer cable to connect the subwoofer. Two subwoofers can be connected to this unit.

The same signal is output from the respective subwoofer terminals.



About the cable labels (supplied) for channel identification

The channel display section for speaker terminals on the rear panel is color-coded for each channel to be identifiable.

Attach the cable label corresponding to each speaker to each speaker cable.

This makes it easy to connect the correct cable to the speaker terminals on the rear panel.

Speaker	Color
FRONT L	White
FRONT R	Red
CENTER	Green
SURROUND L	Light Blue
SURROUND R	Blue
SURROUND BACK L	Beige
SURROUND BACK R	Brown
FRONT HEIGHT L	Beige
FRONT HEIGHT R	Brown
ZONE2 L	Beige
ZONE2 R	Brown
TOP FRONT L	Beige
TOP FRONT R	Brown
TOP MIDDLE L	Beige
TOP MIDDLE R	Brown
FRONT DOLBY L	Beige
FRONT DOLBY R	Brown
SURROUND DOLBY L	Beige
SURROUND DOLBY R	Brown
SUBWOOFER 1	Black
SUBWOOFER 2	Black

Front panel



Attach the cable label for each channel to its speaker cable as shown in the diagram.

Refer to the table and attach the label to each speaker cable.

Then, make connection so that the color of the speaker terminal matches that of the cable label.

[How to attach the cable labels]









Speaker configuration and "Amp Assign" settings

This unit has a built-in 7-channel power amplifier. In addition to the basic 5.1-channel system, a variety of speaker systems can be configured by changing the "Amp Assign" settings to suit the application, such as 7.1-channel systems and 2-channel systems for multi-zone playback. (P p. 184) Perform "Amp Assign" settings to suit the number of rooms and speaker configuration to be installed. (P p. 184)

Playback speaker and zone		"Amp Assign" sottings	Connection
MAIN ZONE	ZONE2	Amp Assign Settings	page
5.1-channel	Not used	Can be set in all "Amp Assign" modes.	42
7.1-channel (surround back)	Not used	Surround Back	43
7.1-channel (front height)	Not used	Front Height	44
7.1-channel (top front)	Not used	Top Front	45
7.1-channel (top middle)	Not used	Top Middle	46
7.1-channel (front Dolby Atmos Enabled speaker)	Not used	Front Dolby	47
7.1-channel (surround Dolby Atmos Enabled speaker)	Not used	Surround Dolby	48
5.1-channel	2-channel (Speaker out)	ZONE2 (Default)	49

• The sound mode that can be selected varies according to the speaker configuration. See "Sound modes and channel output" (127 p. 249) for the sound modes that are supported.

Rear panel





Connecting 5.1-channel speakers

This serves as a basic 5.1-channel surround system.















Connecting 7.1-channel speakers

System for 7.1-channel surround playback.

Example connections when using surround back speakers

This 7.1-channel surround system is the same as a basic 5.1-channel system but with surround back speakers.



• Set "Assign Mode" to "Surround Back" in the menu. (12 p. 184)



• When using a single surround back speaker, connect it to the SURROUND BACK L terminal.









Example connections when using front height speakers

This 7.1-channel surround system is the same as a basic 5.1-channel system but with front height speakers.



• Set "Assign Mode" to "Front Height" in the menu. (12 p. 184)











Example connections when using top front speakers

This 7.1-channel surround system is the same as a basic 5.1-channel system but with top front speakers.





• Set "Assign Mode" to "Top Front" in the menu. (12 p. 184)











Example connections when using top middle speakers

This 7.1-channel surround system is the same as a basic 5.1-channel system but with top middle speakers.





• Set "Assign Mode" to "Top Middle" in the menu. (I p. 184)













Example connections when using front Dolby Atmos Enabled speakers

This 7.1-channel surround system is the same as a basic 5.1-channel system but with front Dolby Atmos Enabled speakers.



• Set "Assign Mode" to "Front Dolby" in the menu. (I p. 184)











Example connections when using surround Dolby Atmos Enabled speakers

This 7.1-channel surround system is the same as a basic 5.1-channel system but with surround Dolby Atmos Enabled speakers.





• Set "Assign Mode" to "Surround Dolby" in the menu. (1 p. 184)







Connecting multi-zone speakers

5.1-channel (MAIN ZONE) + 2-channel (ZONE2) speaker connection

This connection method constructs a 5.1-channel speaker system in the MAIN ZONE and a 2-channel system in ZONE2.





Index

• Set "Assign Mode" to "ZONE2" in the menu. (I p. 184)

Front panel

49

Remote



Contents Conn	ections Playback	Settings	Tips	Appendix
---------------	------------------	----------	------	----------

Connecting a TV

Connect a TV to this unit so that the input video is output to the TV. You can also enjoy audio from the TV on this unit.

How to connect a TV depends on the connectors and functions equipped on the TV.

ARC (Audio Return Channel) / eARC (Enhanced Audio Return Channel) function plays TV audio on this unit by sending the TV audio signal to this unit via HDMI cable.



"Connection 1 : TV equipped with an HDMI"Connection 2 : TV equipped with an HDMI"Connection 3 : TV equipped without
an HDMI connector" (IP p. 54)Return Channel) / eARC (Enhanced Audio
Return Channel)" (IP p. 51)Return Channel) / eARC (Enhanced Audio Return
Channel)" (IP p. 53)Connector and incompatible with the ARC (Audio
Return Channel)"Connector and incompatible with the ARC (Audio
Return Channel)" (IP p. 53)



Connection 1 : TV equipped with an HDMI connector and compatible with the ARC (Audio Return Channel) / eARC (Enhanced Audio Return Channel)

Use an HDMI cable to connect a TV that is compatible with the ARC / eARC function to this unit.

Set "HDMI Control" to "On" or "ARC" to "On" when using a TV that supports the ARC function. (127 p. 160)

Using an eARC function-compatible television enables audio playback from the speaker connected to this unit, regardless of "HDMI Control" and "ARC" settings in the menu.



Front panel

Index

• When using the ARC / eARC function, connect to the HDMI MONITOR 1 connector.

Display

• eARC function settings may be required depending on the eARC function-compatible television you are using. Make sure eARC is set to on if this setting exists on your television. For more information, check your television's owner's manual.

52

Remote

Rear panel

- When an ARC and an eARC function-compatible televisions are connected, the eARC function-compatible television is prioritized.
- Use a "High Speed HDMI Cable with Ethernet" when using an ARC / eARC function-compatible television.

Connection 2 : TV equipped with an HDMI connector and incompatible with the ARC (Audio Return Channel) / eARC (Enhanced Audio Return Channel)

Use an HDMI cable to connect the TV to this unit.

To listen to audio from TV on this unit, use an optical cable to connect the TV to this unit.









Connection 3 : TV equipped without an HDMI connector

Use a component video or a video cable to connect the TV to this unit.

To listen to audio from TV on this unit, use an optical cable to connect the TV to this unit.



Front panel



Tips

Connecting a playback device

This unit is equipped with three types of video input connectors (HDMI, component video and composite video) and three types of audio input connectors (HDMI, digital audio and audio).

Select input connectors on this unit according to the connectors equipped on the device you want to connect.

If the device connected to this unit is equipped with an HDMI connector, it is recommended to use HDMI connections.

In the HDMI connection, audio and video signals can be transmitted through a single HDMI cable.

- "Connecting a set-top box (Satellite tuner/cable TV)" (1 p. 56)
- "Connecting a DVD player or Blu-ray Disc player" (1 p. 57)
- "Connecting a video camcorder or game console" (12 p. 58)
- "Connecting a turntable" (m p. 59)

- Connect devices to this unit as indicated by the input sources printed on the audio/video input connectors of this unit.
- The source that is assigned to the HDMI IN, DIGITAL AUDIO IN, COMPONENT VIDEO IN, VIDEO IN and AUDIO IN connectors can be changed. See "Input Assign" on how to change the input source assigned to the input connectors. (127 p. 170)
- To play back audio signals that are input to this unit on a TV connected via HDMI, set in the menu "HDMI Audio Out" to "TV". (127 p. 158)
- To enjoy content that is copyright protected by HDCP 2.2 or HDCP 2.3, use a playback device and TV compatible with HDCP 2.2 or HDCP 2.3.







Connecting a set-top box (Satellite tuner/cable TV)

This explanation uses the connection with a satellite tuner/cable TV STB as an example.

Select the input connectors on this unit to match the connectors on the device that you want to connect to.









Connecting a DVD player or Blu-ray Disc player

This explanation uses the connection with a DVD player or Blu-ray Disc player as an example. Select the input connectors on this unit to match the connectors on the device that you want to connect to.



Front panel





Connecting a video camcorder or game console

This explanation uses the connection with a video camcorders as an example.

Connect a playback device to this unit, such as a video camcorder or game console.











Contents Connections	Playback	Settings	Tips	Appendix
----------------------	----------	----------	------	----------

Connecting a turntable

This unit is compatible with turntables equipped with a moving magnet (MM) phono cartridge. When you connect to a turntable with a low output moving coil (MC) cartridge, use a commercially available MC head amp or a step-up transformer.

If you set this unit's input source to "Phono" and you accidentally increase the volume without having a turntable connected, you may hear a hum noise from the speakers.





Connecting a USB memory device to the USB port

For operating instructions see "Playing a USB memory device" (@ p. 69).



(

• Denon does not guarantee that all USB memory devices will operate or receive power. When using a portable USB hard disk drive (HDD) which came with an AC adapter, use that device's supplied AC adapter.

NOTE

- USB memory devices will not work via a USB hub.
- It is not possible to use this unit by connecting the unit's USB port to a PC via a USB cable.
- Do not use an extension cable when connecting a USB memory device. This may cause radio interference with other devices.



Rear panel



Remote





Connecting FM/AM antennas

Connect the antenna, tune in to a broadcast and then move the antenna to the location where there is least noise. Then use tape, etc. to fix the antenna in this location. ("Listening to FM/AM broadcasts" (P p. 77))

 If you are unable to receive a good broadcast signal, we recommend installing an outdoor antenna. For details, inquire at the retail store where you purchased the unit.

NOTE

Make sure the AM loop antenna lead terminals do not touch metal parts of the panel.



Front panel

61

Remote



Using the AM loop antenna

Suspending on a wall

Suspend directly on a wall without assembling.



Nail, tack, etc.

Standing alone

Use the procedure shown above to assemble.

When assembling, refer to "AM loop antenna assembly".

AM loop antenna assembly

- **1** Put the stand section through the bottom of the loop antenna from the rear and bend it forward.
- 2 Insert the projecting part into the square hole in the stand.











Connecting to a home network (LAN)

This unit can connect to a network using a wired LAN or wireless LAN. You can connect this unit to your home network (LAN) to enable various types of playback and operations as described below.

- Playback of network audio such as Internet Radio and from your media server(s)
- · Playback of streaming music services
- Using the Apple AirPlay function
- · Operation on this unit via the network
- · Operation with the HEOS wireless multi-room sound system
- Firmware Update

For connections to the Internet, contact an ISP (Internet Service Provider) or a computer shop.

Wired LAN

To make connections via wired LAN, use a LAN cable to connect the router to this unit as shown in the figure below.



Front panel



Wireless LAN

When connecting to the network via wireless LAN, connect the external antennas for Bluetooth/wireless connectivity connection to the rear panel and stand them upright.

See "Wi-Fi Setup" on how to connect to a wireless LAN router. ($(\ensuremath{\mathbb{CP}}\xspace$ p. 195)



- When using this unit, we recommend you use a router equipped with the following functions:
 - Built-in DHCP server This function automatically assigns IP addresses on the LAN.
 - Built-in 100BASE-TX switch When connecting multiple devices, we recommend a switching hub with a speed of 100 Mbps or greater.
- Only use a shielded STP or ScTP LAN cable (readily available at electronics stores). (CAT-5 or greater recommended)
- The normal shielded-type LAN cable is recommended. If a flat-type cable or unshielded-type cable is used, other devices could be affected by noise.
- When using this unit connected to a network with no DHCP function, configure the IP address, etc. in "Network". (127 p. 194)

NOTE

- The types of routers that can be used depend on the ISP. Contact your ISP or a computer shop for details.
- This unit is not compatible with PPPoE. A PPPoE compatible router is required if your contracted line is not set using PPPoE.
- Do not connect a NETWORK connector directly to the LAN port / Ethernet connector on your computer.
- Various online services may be discontinued without prior notice.

Front panel







Connecting the power cord

After completing all the connections, insert the power plug into the power outlet.





Contents

Contents

Basic operation

Turning the power on	67
Selecting the input source	67
Adjusting the volume	68
Turning off the sound temporarily (Muting)	68
Selecting a sound mode	112

Playback a device

Playing a DVD player/Blu-ray Disc player	68
Playing a USB memory device	69
Listening to music on a Bluetooth device	73
Listening to FM/AM broadcasts	77

Playback network audio/service

Listening to Internet Radio	85
Playing back files stored on a PC or NAS	87
Getting the HEOS App	91
AirPlay function	100
Spotify Connect function	103

Convenience functions

Convenience functions	104
HDMI Control function	124
Smart Menu function	125
Sleep timer function	127
Quick select plus function	129
Panel lock function	132
Remote lock function	134

Other functions

Web control function	135
Playback in ZONE2 (Another room)	137







Basic operation



Turning the power on

Press POWER 🕁 to turn on power to the unit.

• You can press the input source select button when the unit is in standby mode to turn on the power.

- You can also switch the power to standby by pressing $\ensuremath{\textcircled{}}$ on the main unit.

Selecting the input source

Press the input source select button to be played back. The desired input source can be selected directly.

You can also select the input source by turning SOURCE SELECT on the main unit.







Adjusting the volume

Use VOLUME **I** to adjust the volume.

- The variable range differs according to the input signal and channel level setting.
- You can also adjust the master volume by turning MASTER VOLUME on the main unit.

Turning off the sound temporarily (Muting)

Press MUTE 4X.

- MUTE indicator on the display flashes.
- ◀× appears on the TV screen.

Ó

- The sound is reduced to the level set at "Mute Level" in the menu. (12 p. 152)
- To cancel mute, either adjust the sound volume or press MUTE dX again.

Playback a DVD player/Blu-ray Disc player

The following describes the procedure for playing DVD player/Blu-ray Disc player.

Prepare for playback.

Turn on the power of the TV, subwoofer and player.
Change the TV input to the input of this unit.

- 2 Press POWER () to turn on power to the unit.
- **3** Press DVD or Blu-ray to switch an input source for a player used for playback.
- Play the DVD player or Blu-ray Disc player.
- Surround playback (P p. 112)

Front panel







Playing files stored on USB memory devices

- **1** Insert a "FAT32" or "NTFS" formatted USB memory device into the USB port.
- **2** Press USB to switch the input source to "USB".
- **3** Select the name of this unit.

4 Browse the music on your USB memory device and select something to play.

Tips

Ó

• When you select something to play you will be asked how you want to queue up your music.

Play Now:	Inserts the item into the queue after the currently playing track and plays the selected item immediately.
Play Now & Replace Queue:	Clears the queue and plays the selected item immediately.
Play Next:	Inserts the item into the queue after the current song and plays it when the current song ends.
Add to End of Queue:	Adds the item to the end of the queue.



Front panel



Contents

Settings

Tips

Playback starts.



Operation buttons	Function
►/II	Playback / Pause
	Skip to previous track / Skip to next track
CH/PAGE ▲ ▼	Switch to the previous page/next page in the list display

Ø

• When an MP3 music file includes album art data, the album art can be displayed while playing the file.

NOTE

- Note that Denon will accept no responsibility whatsoever for any problems arising with the data on a USB memory device when using this unit in conjunction with the USB memory device.
- When a USB memory device is connected to this unit, the unit loads all of the files on the USB memory device. Loading may take a while if the USB memory device contains a large number of folders and/or files.

Front panel





Operations accessible through the option menu

- "Adjusting the volume of each channel to match the input source (Channel Level Adjust)" ($\boxtimes p.$ 107)
- "Adjusting the tone (Tone)" (P p. 108)
- "Displaying your desired video during audio playback (Video Select)" (1997 p. 109)
- "Playing the same music in all zones (All Zone Stereo)" (1) p. 111)










Playback

Listening to music on a Bluetooth device



Music files stored on Bluetooth devices such as smartphones, digital music players, etc. can be enjoyed on this unit by pairing and connecting this unit with the Bluetooth device.

Communication is possible up to a range of about 98.4 ft/30 m.

NOTE

 To play back music from a Bluetooth device, the Bluetooth device needs to support the A2DP profile.







Playing music from Bluetooth device

In order to enjoy music from a Bluetooth device on this unit, the Bluetooth device must first be paired with this unit.

Once the Bluetooth device has been paired, it does not need to be paired again.

Prepare for playback.

- Connect the supplied external antennas for Bluetooth/wireless connectivity to the Bluetooth/wireless LAN antenna connectors on the rear panel. (127 p. 23)
- (2) Press POWER (1) to turn on power to the unit.

2 Press Bluetooth.

When using for the first time, the unit will go into the pairing mode automatically and "Pairing..." will appear on the display of the unit.

3 Activate the Bluetooth settings on your mobile device.

4 Select this unit when its name appears in the list of devices displayed on the screen of the Bluetooth device.

Tips

Connect to the Bluetooth device while "Pairing" is being displayed on the display of the unit.

Perform the connection with the Bluetooth device close to the unit (about 3.3 ft/1 m).

5 Play music using any app on your Bluetooth device.

- The Bluetooth device can also be operated with the remote control of this unit.
- The next time the Bluetooth button is pressed on the remote control unit, this unit automatically connects to the last Bluetooth device that was connected.

Operation buttons	Function
>/	Playback / Pause
	Skip to previous track / Skip to next track

(



[•] Press STATUS on this unit during playback to switch the display between Title name, Artist name, Album name, etc.

Pairing with other Bluetooth devices

Pair a Bluetooth device with this unit.

- Activate the Bluetooth settings on your mobile device.
- **2** Press and hold Bluetooth on the remote control unit for at least 3 seconds.

This unit will go into the pairing mode.

3 Select this unit when its name appears in the list of devices displayed on the screen of the Bluetooth device.

- This unit can be paired with a maximum of 8 Bluetooth devices. When a 9th Bluetooth device is paired, it will be registered in place of the oldest registered device.
- You can also enter pairing mode by pressing the OPTION button when the Bluetooth playback screen is displayed and selecting "Pairing Mode" from the displayed option menu.

NOTE

- To operate the Bluetooth device with the remote control of this unit, the Bluetooth device needs to support the AVRCP profile.
- The remote control of this unit is not guaranteed to work with all Bluetooth devices.
- Depending on the type of Bluetooth device, this unit outputs audio that is coupled to the volume setting on the Bluetooth device.

Operations accessible through the option menu

- "Pairing with other Bluetooth devices" (127 p. 75)
- "Adjusting the volume of each channel to match the input source (Channel Level Adjust)" (127 p. 107)
- "Adjusting the tone (Tone)" (P p. 108)
- "Displaying your desired video during audio playback (Video Select)" (129 p. 109)
- "Playing the same music in all zones (All Zone Stereo)" (111)

Front panel





Reconnecting to this unit from a Bluetooth device

After pairing is completed, the Bluetooth device can be connected without performing any operations on this unit.

This operation also needs to be performed when switching the Bluetooth device for playback.

- **1** If a Bluetooth device is currently connected, deactivate the Bluetooth setting of that device to disconnect it.
- 2 Activate the Bluetooth setting of the Bluetooth device to be connected.
- **3** Select this unit from the Bluetooth device list on your Bluetooth device.
- **4** Play music using any app on your Bluetooth device.

- The screen automatically switches to the "Bluetooth" playback screen if a Bluetooth device is connected while the power of this unit is on.
- When the "Network Control" setting of this unit is set to "Always On" and a Bluetooth device is connected with the unit in the standby state, the power of the unit will be turned on automatically. (127 p. 199)

Front panel





Listening to FM/AM broadcasts

- Connect the antenna. ("Connecting FM/AM antennas" (1 p. 61))
- **2** Press TUNER to switch the input source to "Tuner".



[TV screen]

Use $\triangleleft \triangleright$ to select "FM" or "AM", then press ENTER.

FM:	When listening to an FM broadcast.
AM:	When listening to an AM broadcast.

6 Press TUNE + or TUNE – to select the station you want listen to.

Scanning is performed until it finds an available radio station. When it finds a radio station, it stops the scan automatically and tunes in.

5

 The modes for receiving FM broadcasts consists of "Auto" mode that automatically searches available broadcast stations and "Manual" mode that lets you tune in using buttons to change the frequency. The default setting is "Auto". You can also use "Direct Tune" to tune in by entering the frequency directly.

In "Auto" mode, you cannot tune in to radio stations if the reception is not good. If this is the case, then use the "Manual" mode or "Direct Tune" mode to tune in.

- You can also switch the reception band by pressing BAND on the unit.
- You can also scan the broadcast station by pressing TUNE + or TUNE on the unit.

Operation buttons	Function
TUNE +, -	Selects the radio station (up/down)
CH/PAGE	Selects preset radio stations
$\Delta \nabla$	Selects the radio station (up/down)
$\triangleleft \triangleright$	Selects preset radio stations

3 Press OPTION.

The option menu screen is displayed.

4 Use $\Delta \nabla$ to select "FM/AM", then press ENTER.

This displays the reception band input screen.

Front panel





Contents

Operations accessible through the option menu

- "Tuning in by entering the frequency (Direct Tune)" (1 p. 79)
- "Changing the tune mode (Tune Mode)" (
 P p. 80)
- "Tuning in to stations and presetting them automatically (Auto Preset Memory)" ($\ref{eq:p.80}$ p. 80)
- "Presetting the current broadcast station (Preset Memory)" (P p. 81)
- "Specify a name for the preset broadcast station (Preset Name)" (127 p. 82)
- "Skipping preset broadcast stations (Preset Skip)" (12 p. 83)
- "Adjusting the volume of each channel to match the input source (Channel Level Adjust)" (127 p. 107)
- "Adjusting the tone (Tone)" (2 p. 108)
- "Displaying your desired video during audio playback (Video Select)" (127 p. 109)
- "Playing the same music in all zones (All Zone Stereo)" (
 P. 111)

Tuning in by entering the frequency (Direct Tune)

You can enter the receiving frequency directly to tune in.

- **Press OPTION when the input source is "Tuner".** The option menu screen is displayed.
- **3** Use $\Delta \nabla$ to select a number, then press \triangleright .
 - If ⊲ is pressed, the immediately preceding input is cancelled.
- **4** Repeat step 3 and enter the frequency of the radio station you want to hear.

5 When setting is completed, press ENTER.

The preset frequency is tuned in.

Changing the tune mode (Tune Mode)

You can change the mode for tuning into FM and AM broadcasts. If you cannot tune in automatically with "Auto" mode, change the mode to "Manual" and tune in manually.

Press OPTION when the input source is "Tuner".

The option menu screen is displayed.

- **2** Use $\Delta \nabla$ to select "Tune Mode", then press ENTER.
- **3** Use $\triangleleft \triangleright$ to select the tune mode, then press ENTER.

Auto:	Automatically search for and tune to a receivable radio station.
Manual:	Manually change the frequency one step at a time each time the button is pressed.



• You can also select the tuning mode by pressing MODE on the main unit.

Tuning in to stations and presetting them automatically (Auto Preset Memory)

A maximum of 56 radio stations can be automatically preset.

- **1 Press OPTION when the input source is "Tuner".** The option menu screen is displayed.

3 Press ENTER.

The unit starts to tune in to radio stations automatically and preset them.

- When presetting is completed, "Completed" is displayed for about 5 seconds and the option menu screen turns off.
- Ó

• The preset memory is overwritten.





Settings

Presetting the current broadcast station (Preset Memory)

Your favorite broadcast stations can be preset so that you can tune them in easily.

Up to 56 stations can be preset.

- **1** Tune in the broadcast station you want to preset. ("Listening to FM/AM broadcasts" (1 p. 78))
- **2** Press OPTION.

The option menu screen is displayed.

- 3 Use △▽ to select "Preset Memory", then press ENTER. The list of already preset channels is displayed.
- 4 Use $\Delta \nabla$ to select the channel you want to preset, then press ENTER.

The current broadcast station that is preset.

• To preset other stations, repeat steps 1 to 4.

Channel	Default settings
1 – 8	92.10 / 92.30 / 92.50 / 92.70 / 93.10 / 93.50 / 93.70 / 94.10 MHz
9 – 16	94.30 / 94.50 / 94.70 / 94.90 / 95.10 / 95.30 / 95.50 / 95.70 MHz
17 – 24	98.10 / 98.30 / 98.50 / 98.70 / 98.90 / 99.10 / 100.10 / 100.30 MHz
25 – 32	100.50 / 100.70 / 100.90 / 101.10 / 101.30 / 101.50 / 101.70 / 101.90 MHz
33 – 40	103.10 / 103.30 / 103.50 / 103.70 / 103.90 / 104.10 / 104.30 / 104.50 MHz
41 – 48	104.70 / 104.90 / 105.10 / 105.30 / 105.50 / 105.70 / 105.90 / 106.10 MHz
49 – 56	106.30 / 106.50 / 106.70 / 106.90 / 107.10 / 107.30 / 107.50 / 107.90 MHz

Listening to preset stations

1 Use CH/PAGE ▲▼ to select the desired preset channel.

 You can also select preset broadcast stations by pressing TUNER PRESET CH + or TUNER PRESET CH – on the main unit.

Front panel





5

Specify a name for the preset broadcast station (Preset Name)

You can set the name to the preset broadcast station or change it. Up to 8 characters can be input.

- **1** Press OPTION when the input source is "Tuner". The option menu screen is displayed.
- 2 Use △▽ to select "Preset Name", then press ENTER. The "Preset Name" screen is displayed.
- **3** Use $\triangleleft \triangleright$ to select the group of the broadcast station you want to name.
- 4 Use $\Delta \nabla$ to select the broadcast station you want to name, then press ENTER.

Use $\Delta \nabla$ to select a name label, then press ENTER.

The screen that lets you edit the Preset Name is displayed.

- If you select "Set Defaults", then the unit returns to displaying the frequency.
- 6 Enter the characters, then press "OK".
- **7** Press OPTION to return to the previous screen.







Skipping preset broadcast stations (Preset Skip)

Perform auto preset memory to save all the broadcasting stations that can be received in the memory. Selecting a broadcast station becomes easier by skipping unnecessary memories.

- **1** Press OPTION when the input source is "Tuner". The option menu screen is displayed.
- $\label{eq:linear} \textbf{2} \quad \text{Use } \triangle \nabla \text{ to select "Preset Skip", then press ENTER.}$

The "Preset Skip" screen is displayed.

3 D To set the stations you want to skip by groups

- () Use $\triangleleft \triangleright$ to select the group of broadcast stations you want to skip.
- ② Press △ to select "Set No.* * to Skip", then press ENTER. Skip all the broadcast stations that are included in the selected group "*-*".
 - (* is the selected group number.)

To set the stations you want to skip by stations

- (1) Use $\triangleleft \triangleright$ to select the group of broadcast stations you want to skip.
- (2) Use $\Delta \nabla$ to select the broadcast station you want to skip.
- (3) Use $\triangleleft \triangleright$ to select "Skip".

The station you selected is not displayed.

4 Press OPTION to return to the previous screen.







- 1 While the "Preset Skip" screen is displayed, use ⊲ ▷ to select a group containing a broadcast station to cancel the skip for.
- $\label{eq:linear} 2 \quad \text{Use } \triangle \nabla \text{ to select a broadcast station to cancel the skip} \\ \text{for.}$
- **3** Use $\triangleleft \triangleright$ to select "On".

The skip is cancelled.

NOTE

• "Preset Skip" cannot be cancelled for groups.











Listening to Internet Radio

Press INTERNET RADIO.

 You can also press ^t
 (HEOS Music). Use △▽ to select "TuneIn Internet Radio", then press ENTER.

2 Select the station you want to play.

Operation buttons	Function
►/II*	Playback / Pause
₩₩	Skip to previous track / Skip to next track
CH/PAGE ▲ ▼	Switch to the previous page/next page in the list display

* Enabled when playing Podcasts.

-

• The display switches between track title and radio station name etc. each time the main unit's STATUS is pressed.

NOTE

• The radio station database service may be suspended or be otherwise unavailable without notice.

Operations accessible through the option menu

- "Adding to HEOS Favorites" (@ p. 105)
- "Adjusting the volume of each channel to match the input source (Channel Level Adjust)" (127 p. 107)
- "Adjusting the tone (Tone)" (m p. 108)
- "Displaying your desired video during audio playback (Video Select)" (129 p. 109)
- "Playing the same music in all zones (All Zone Stereo)" (1) p. 111)

Front panel





Playing back files stored on a PC or NAS

Use this procedure to play music files or playlists stored on DLNA files servers on your local network.

Press 🕸 (HEOS Music).

- 2
- Use $\Delta \nabla$ to select "Music Servers", then press ENTER.



3 Select the name of your networked PC or NAS (Network Attached Storage) server.

4 Browse the music on your PC/NAS and select something to play.

Tips

¢

• When you select something to play you will be asked how you want to queue up your music.

Play Now:	Inserts the item into the queue after the currently playing track and plays the selected item immediately.
Play Now & Replace Queue:	Clears the queue and plays the selected item immediately.
Play Next:	Inserts the item into the queue after the current song and plays it when the current song ends.
Add to End of Queue:	Adds the item to the end of the queue.





Playback starts.



Operation buttons	Function
►/II	Playback / Pause
	Skip to previous track / Skip to next track
CH/PAGE ▲ ▼	Switch to the previous page/next page in the list display

- The display switches between track title, artist name, and album title each time the main unit's STATUS is pressed.
- When a WMA (Windows Media Audio), MP3 or MPEG-4 AAC file includes album art data, the album art can be displayed while the music files are playing.
- If you use Ver.11 or later of Windows Media Player, the album art for WMA files can be displayed.

NOTE

- When playing back music files with your PC or NAS connected through wireless LAN, audio may be interrupted depending on your wireless LAN environment. In this case, connect using a wired LAN.
- The order in which the tracks/files are displayed depends on the server specifications. If the tracks/files are not displayed in alphabetical order due to the server specifications, searching by the first letter may not work properly.

Front panel



Operations accessible through the option menu

- "Adjusting the volume of each channel to match the input source (Channel Level Adjust)" ($\boxtimes p.$ 107)
- "Adjusting the tone (Tone)" (P p. 108)
- "Displaying your desired video during audio playback (Video Select)" (1997 p. 109)
- "Playing the same music in all zones (All Zone Stereo)" (1) p. 111)







Contents Connections	Playback	Settings	Tips	Appendix

Getting the HEOS App

You can use many online music streaming services from the HEOS App. Depending upon your geographical location, there are several options to choose from. For more information about which services are available in your area please visit http://www.HEOSbyDenon.com

Download the HEOS App for iOS or Android by searching App Store, Google Play store or Amazon Appstore for "HEOS".











Eventure

92

HEOS Account

Contents

HEOS Accounts can be registered in "HEOS Account" (\bigcirc p. 201) in the menu of this unit or by tapping "Music" tab - "Settings" icon \bigcirc in the HEOS App.

What is a HEOS Account?

A HEOS Account is master account or "keychain" for managing all of your HEOS music services with one single username and password.

Why do I need a HEOS Account?

With the HEOS Account you just have to enter your music services login names and passwords one time. This allows you to easily and quickly use multiple controller apps on different devices.

You just log into your HEOS Account on any device and you will have access to all of your associated music services, play history and custom playlists, even if you are at a friend's house listening to music on their HEOS system.

Signing up for a HEOS Account

You will be instructed to signup for a HEOS Account the first time you try to access any music service from the main "Music" menu of the HEOS App.

Changing your HEOS Account

- Tap the "Music" tab.
- 2 Select the Settings icon line in the upper left corner of the screen.
- **3** Select "HEOS Account".
- 4 Change your location, change your password, delete your account or sign out of your account.



Index

Tips

Playback

Tips

Playing from streaming music services

A music service is an online music company that provides access to vast music collections via free and/or paid subscriptions. Depending upon your geographical location, there are several options to choose from. For more information about which services are available in your area please visit http://www.HEOSbyDenon.com

NOTE

 The HEOS app and brand is not affiliated with any manufacturer of any mobile device. Availability of music services may vary by region. Not all services may be available at time of purchase. Some services may be added or discontinued from time to time based on decisions of the music service providers or others.

Selecting a room/device

Tap the "Rooms" tab, and select "AVR-S950H" if there are multiple HEOS devices.

Ó

• Tap the Pencil icon 2 at the top right to switch edit mode. You can change the displayed name.











Selecting the music track or station from music sources

- Tap the "Music" tab and select a music source.

1

• All music services displayed may not be available in your location.











Contents

Browse the music to play.

After selecting a music track or radio station the app will automatically change to the "Now Playing" screen.

2

• When you select a music track to play you will be asked how you want to queue up your music.

Play Now:	Inserts the item into the queue after the currently playing track and plays the selected item immediately.
Play Now & Replace Queue:	Clears the queue and plays the selected item immediately.
Play Next:	Inserts the item into the queue after the current song and plays it when the current song ends.
Add to End of Queue:	Adds the item to the end of the queue.

• When you select a radio station the following items are displayed.

Plays Now: Plays the selected item immediately.

Add to HEOS Favorites: Adds to HEOS Favorites.





Front panel

95

Remote





Contents

Settings

Tips

Appendix

Listening to the same music in multiple rooms

The HEOS system is a true multi-room audio system that automatically synchronizes audio playback between multiple HEOS devices so that the audio coming from different rooms is perfectly in sync and always sounds amazing! You can easily add up to 32 HEOS devices to your HEOS system. You can join or group up to 16 individual HEOS devices into a group of HEOS devices that function as if they were a single HEOS device.

Grouping rooms

- **1** Press and hold your finger on room that is not playing music.
- 2 Drag it into the room that is playing music (indicated by the red outline) and lift your finger.
- **3** The two rooms will be grouped together into a single device group and both rooms will be playing the same music in perfect sync.



Front panel

96

Remote





Contents Connections Playback **Settings** Tips Appendix Ungrouping rooms Rooms ß Rooms Drag one room into another to group them Drag one room into another to group them 1 Press and hold your finger on room that you want to Dining Dining remove from the group. Song Name 1 Song Name 1 2 Drag it out of the group and lift your finger. Living Song Name 2 Living Song Name 2 Living Kitchen Song Name 4 NOTE 2

1→

Kitchen Bedroom

5

Norma Planete

• You can not remove the first room that started playing the music before grouping.

Front panel









Bedroom

5

Now Playing

Tips

Appendix

Grouping all rooms (party mode)

You can easily group 16 rooms together into Party Mode by using a "pinch" gesture.

- Place two fingers on the screen over the list of rooms.
- **2** Quickly pinch your two fingers together and release.
- **3** All of your rooms will be joined together and begin playing the same music in perfect sync.



Front panel









Settings

Tips

Appendix

Ungrouping all rooms

You can easily ungroup all of your rooms and exit Party Mode by using a "spread" gesture.

- **1** Place two fingers close together on the screen over list of rooms.
- **2** Quickly spread your two fingers apart from each other and release.
- **3** All of your rooms will be ungrouped.











AirPlay function

Music files stored on your iPhone, iPod touch, iPad or iTunes can be played on this unit via the network.

- Source input will be switched to "HEOS Music" when AirPlay playback is started.
- You can stop AirPlay playback by choosing other input source.
- To see song and artist names together, press STATUS on the main unit.
- For information about how to use iTunes, also see the Help for iTunes.
- The screen may differ depending on the OS and software versions.

This unit supports AirPlay 2.

Sync multiple AirPlay 2 compatible devices/speakers for simultaneous playback.

• This unit supports AirPlay 2 and requires iOS 11.4 or later.













Playing songs from your iPhone, iPod touch or iPad

If you update your "iPhone/iPod touch/iPad" to iOS 4.2.1 or later, you can stream music stored in your "iPhone/iPod touch/iPad" directly to this unit.

- Connect your iPhone, iPod touch or iPad Wi-Fi to the same network as this unit.
 - · For details, see your device's manual.

2 Play the song on your iPhone, iPod touch or iPad.

AirPlay icon is displayed on the iPhone, iPod touch or iPad screen.

3 Tap the AirPlay icon and select this unit.





Playing iTunes music with this unit

Install iTunes 10, or later, on a Mac or Windows PC that is connected to the same network as this unit.

2 Turn this unit ON.

Set "Network Control" to "Always On" for this unit. (P p. 199)

NOTE

- When "Network Control" is set to "Always On", the unit consumes more standby power.
- 3

Δ

Start iTunes and click the AirPlay icon to select this unit.



Choose a song and click play in iTunes.

The music will stream to this unit.









NOTE

• In playback using the AirPlay function, the sound is output at the iPhone, iPod touch, iPad or iTunes volume setting level.

You should turn down the iPhone, iPod touch, iPad or iTunes volume prior to playback and then adjust it to a suitable level.

Play a song from your iPhone, iPod touch or iPad on multiple synced devices (AirPlay 2)

Songs from an iPhone, iPod touch or iPad operating iOS 11.4 or later can be synced with multiple AirPlay 2 supported devices for simultaneous playback.

Play the song on your iPhone, iPod touch or iPad.

AirPlay icon is displayed on the iPhone, iPod touch or iPad screen.



2 Tap the AirPlay icon.

Displays a list of devices/speakers that can be played back on the same network.

• A circle is displayed to the right of AirPlay 2 compatible devices.



3 Tap the devices/speakers you want to use.

- Multiple AirPlay 2 compatible devices can be selected.
- Volume can be adjusted for each device individually or for all synced devices simultaneously.

	iPhone	
ò	Denon xxxxxxxx	v
ò	Speakers	ø
	•	4 0)





Spotify Connect function

Spotify is the world's most popular streaming service. If you subscribe to Spotify Premium, you can control your new speaker with your phone or tablet. Because Spotify is built-in to your speaker, you can still take calls or use other apps - the music never stops.

For information on how to set up and use Spotify Connect please visit www.spotify.com/connect

Spotify server Spotify Spotify Spotify App This unit Audio streaming / control

Playing Spotify music with this unit

Download the "Spotify App" onto your Android or iOS device beforehand. To play a Spotify track in this unit, you need to register in the Spotify premium account first.

- Connect the Wi-Fi settings of the iOS or Android device in the same network as this unit.
- **2** Launch the Spotify App.
- **3** Play back the Spotify track.
- 4 Tap the Spotify icon 🗐 to select the unit. The music will stream to this unit.









Adding to HEOS Favorites

While content is playing, press OPTION.

The option menu screen is displayed.

Playing back HEOS Favorites

- Press 🕆 (HEOS Music).
- **2** Use $\Delta \nabla$ to select "HEOS Favorites", then press ENTER.



3 Browse the content and select something to play.

Index



- 1 While the HEOS Favorites content list is displayed, use △▽ to select the item you want to remove from HEOS Favorites, then press OPTION.
- $\label{eq:loss_loss} 2 \quad \text{Use } \triangle \nabla \text{ to select "Remove from HEOS Favorites", then} \\ \text{press ENTER.} \\$









Adjusting the volume of each channel to match the input source (Channel Level Adjust)

The volume of each channel can be changed while listening to music. You can set this for each input source.

Press OPTION.

An option menu screen is displayed.

- When the input source is "HEOS Music", an option menu for online music is displayed. Select "AVR Options...", then press ENTER.
- 2 Use $\Delta \nabla$ to select "Channel Level Adjust", then press ENTER.

The "Channel Level Adjust" screen is displayed.

3 Use $\Delta \nabla$ to select the channel that you wish to adjust.

4 Use $\triangleleft \triangleright$ to adjust the volume.

-12.0 dB - +12.0 dB (Default: 0.0 dB)

5 Use $\Delta \nabla \triangleleft \triangleright$ to select "Exit", then press ENTER.

Tips

- Select "Reset" and press ENTER if you want to restore the adjustment values of the various channels to "0.0 dB" (Default).
- Headphone volume can be adjusted when a headphone is connected.
- "Channel Level Adjust" settings are stored for each input source.
- You can only set this for speakers that output audio. In addition, you cannot set this when in the menu "HDMI Audio Out" is set to "TV". (127 p. 158)





Adjusting the tone (Tone)

Adjusts the tonal quality of the sound.

Press OPTION.

An option menu screen is displayed.

 When the input source is "HEOS Music", an option menu for online music is displayed. Select "AVR Options...", then press ENTER.

2 Use $\Delta \nabla$ to select "Tone", then press ENTER.

The "Tone" screen is displayed.

3 Use $\triangleleft \triangleright$ to set the tone control function to on/off.

On:	Allow tone adjustment (bass, treble).
Off (Default):	Playback without tone adjustment.

4 Select "On" in step 3 and press ∇ to select the sound range to be adjusted.

Bass:	Adjust bass.
Treble:	Adjust treble.

5 Use $\triangleleft \triangleright$ to adjust the tone, then press ENTER.

-6 dB - +6 dB (Default : 0 dB)

- "Tone" settings are stored for each input source.
- This cannot be set when the sound mode is set to "Direct" or "Pure Direct".
- This item cannot be set when "Dynamic EQ" is set to "On". (127 p. 154)
- You cannot set this when no audio signal is input or in the menu "HDMI Audio Out" is set to "TV". (127 p. 158)

Front panel




This unit can display video from a different source on TV during audio playback. You can set this for each input source.

Supported input sources: CD* / Tuner / HEOS Music / Phono

* This cannot be set when any of the HDMI, component video or video connectors are assigned.

Press OPTION.

An option menu screen is displayed.

- When the input source is "HEOS Music", an option menu for online music is displayed. Select "AVR Options...", then press ENTER.
- 2 Use △▽ to select "Video Select", then press ENTER. The "Video Select" screen is displayed.
- **3** Use $\triangleleft \triangleright$ to select the Video Select mode.

Off (Default):	Disable Video Select mode.
On:	Enable Video Select mode.

4 If you selected "On" in step 3, press ∇ and select "Source".

Tips

5 Use $\triangleleft \triangleright$ to select the input source for video you want to play back, then press ENTER.

• "Video Select" settings are stored for each input source.







Adjusting the picture quality for your viewing environment (Picture Mode)

Supported input sources : CBL/SAT / DVD / Blu-ray / Game / AUX1 / AUX2 / Media Player / CD* / TV Audio*

* You can set the picture mode when an HDMI is assigned and "i/p Scaler" is set to "On". (IGP p. 165)

Press OPTION.

An option menu screen is displayed.

2 Use △∇ to select "Picture Mode", then press ENTER. The "Picture Mode" screen is displayed.

3 Use $\triangleleft \triangleright$ to select the picture mode.

Off (Default):	No picture quality adjustment is done with this unit.
Standard:	The standard mode suited for most living room viewing environments.
Movie:	A mode suited for watching movies in a dark room such as a theater room.
Vivid:	A mode that makes graphic images for games, etc. brighter and more vivid.
Streaming:	A mode suited for low bit rate video sources.
Custom:	Adjusts the picture quality manually.

4 Press ENTER.

ø

• "Picture Mode" settings are stored for each input source.

Front panel





Playing the same music in all zones (All **Zone Stereo**)

You can play back the music being played back in MAIN ZONE simultaneously in ZONE2 (another room).

It is useful when you want to enjoy the same music at the same time in multiple rooms during home party or when you want to play back the same BGM in the entire house.

Press OPTION.

An option menu screen is displayed.

 When the input source is "HEOS Music", an option menu for online music is displayed. Select "AVR Options...", then press FNTFR.

Use $\Delta \nabla$ to select "All Zone Stereo", then press ENTER. 2

The "All Zone Stereo" screen is displayed.

3 Select "Start", then press ENTER.

The input source for ZONE2 is switched to the same input source as for MAIN ZONE, and playback starts in the All Zone Stereo mode.

Stopping the All Zone Stereo mode

During playback in All Zone Stereo mode, press OPTION.

An option menu screen is displayed.

 When the input source is "HEOS Music", an option menu for online music is displayed. Select "AVR Options...", then press ENTER.

- Use $\Delta \nabla$ to select "All Zone Stereo", then press ENTER.
- Select "Stop", then press ENTER. 3

2

- The All Zone Stereo mode is canceled even when the power supply of the MAIN ZONE is turned off.
- In the All Zone Stereo mode, only the "Multi Ch Stereo" and "Stereo" sound modes can be selected.
- When "HDMI Audio Out" is set to "TV", the All Zone Stereo mode is not available. (IPP p. 158)
- Save the All Zone Stereo mode playback status to the Quick Select Plus function to enable simple playback in All Zone Stereo mode with a single touch.

Front panel





Selecting a sound mode



This unit allows you to enjoy various kinds of surround and stereo playback modes.

Disc formats such as Blu-ray Disc and DVD, as well as being supported by digital broadcasting, and even by streaming movies and music from internet-based subscription services.

Index

This unit supports playback of almost all of these multi-channel audio formats. It also supports surround playback of audio formats other than multi-channel audio such as 2-channel stereo audio.

112

Remote

• For audio formats recorded on a disc, see the disc jacket or label.

Selecting a sound mode

Press MOVIE, MUSIC or GAME to select a sound mode.

MOVIE :	Switches to the sound mode suitable for enjoying movies and TV programs.
MUSIC :	Switches to the sound mode suitable for enjoying music.
GAME :	Switches to the sound mode suitable for enjoying games.

- The MOVIE, MUSIC, or GAME button memorizes the last sound mode selected for its button. Pressing MOVIE, MUSIC, or GAME recalls the same sound mode as the one selected at the previous playback.
- If the content played back does not support the previously selected sound mode, the most appropriate sound mode for the content is automatically selected.
- You can also select the sound mode by pressing SOUND MODE on the main unit.

Switching the sound mode

- Press MOVIE, MUSIC or GAME to display a list of the sound modes that can be selected. Each time you press MOVIE, MUSIC or GAME, the sound mode changes.
- While the list is displayed, you can also use $\bigtriangleup \nabla$ to select a sound mode.
- Try out various sound modes and enjoy sound mode in your favorite mode.

 Please set the surround mode to Dolby Atmos/Surround when playing back Dolby Atmos encoded content. Dolby Atmos/Surround delivers the optimum playback experience from Blu-ray and streaming sources encoded with Dolby Atmos as well as channel based content. The default setting of this receiver is Dolby Atmos/ Surround.







This unit provides not only sound modes that conform to the formats recorded on discs such as Dolby and DTS, but also extended types of modes that match your speaker configuration and "original sound modes" that create atmosphere of Rock Arena and Jazz Club, etc.







Pure Direct playback

This mode is for playback with higher sound quality than in Direct playback mode.

This mode turns off the main unit display and analog video circuit. Doing so suppresses noise sources that affect sound quality.

Press PURE to select "Pure Direct".

The display goes dark, and Pure Direct playback begins.

Ó

- In Direct and Pure Direct sound modes, the following items cannot be adjusted.
 - Tone (🖅 p. 108)
 - Restorer (@ p. 150)
 - MultEQ[®] (@ p. 153)
 - Dynamic EQ (12 p. 154)
 - Dynamic Volume (125 p. 155)
 - Graphic EQ (12 p. 155)

NOTE

- Video signals are only output when HDMI signals are played in the Pure Direct mode.
- When the Pure Direct mode has been selected, the display turns off after about 5 seconds.

Auto surround playback

This mode detects the type of input digital signal, and automatically selects the corresponding mode for playback.

Perform stereo playback when the input signal is PCM. When the input signal is Dolby Digital or DTS, the music is played back according to the respective channel number.

Press PURE to select "Auto".

Auto surround playback begins.









Settings

Description of sound mode types

Dolby sound mode

Sound mode type	Description
Dolby Atmos	Please select this mode to play content encoded with Dolby Atmos. If you have selected a different sound mode previously, please select again this mode for Dolby Atmos content play back. It decodes Dolby Atmos content and its positioning data in real time and outputs audio from the appropriate speakers, creating natural audio images regardless of the speaker layout. Use ceiling speakers and/or Dolby Atmos Enabled speakers to realize a three-dimensional sound field. An immersive audio experience can be enjoyed from traditional speaker layouts that do not employ overhead or Dolby Atmos Enabled Speakers by selecting the Speaker Virtualizer feature*.
Dolby TrueHD	Please select this mode to play back the contents encoded with Dolby TrueHD at 192kHz/96kHz.
Dolby Digital Plus	Please select this mode to play back the contents encoded with Dolby Digital Plus.
Dolby Digital	Please select this mode to play back the contents encoded with Dolby Digital.
Dolby Surround	This mode uses Dolby Surround Upmixer to extend various sources to natural and realistic multi channels for playback. Use ceiling speakers such as top middle speakers to realize a three-dimensional sound field.

* The Speaker Virtualizer feature will be supported via firmware update.









Rear panel

117

Remote

Tips

DTS sound mode

Sound mode type	Description
DTS Surround	This mode can be selected when playing sources recorded in DTS.
DTS ES Dscrt6.1*1	This mode is suitable for playing discs recorded in DTS-ES. The surround back channel added using the discrete method is played as an independent channel. Since all channels are independent, the 360-degree spacial expressiveness and sound localization are enhanced.
DTS ES Mtrx6.1*1	This mode is suitable for playing discs recorded in DTS-ES. The surround back channel added to the surround-left and surround-right channels by a matrix encoder at software recording time is decoded by this unit's matrix decoder and played from each channel (surround left, surround right, surround back).
DTS 96/24	This mode can be selected when playing sources recorded in DTS 96/24.
DTS-HD	This mode can be selected when playing sources recorded in DTS-HD.
DTS Express	This mode can be selected when playing sources recorded in DTS Express.
DTS:X	This mode can be selected when playing back content encoded with DTS:X. It decodes DTS:X content and its positioning data in real time and outputs audio from the appropriate speakers, creating natural audio images regardless of the speaker layout. Use height speakers to realize a three-dimensional sound field.
DTS Neural:X*2	This mode uses DTS Neural:X Upmixer to extend various sources to natural and realistic multi channels for playback. Use height speakers such as front height speakers to realize a three-dimensional sound field.
DTS Virtual:X*2*3	This mode uses DTS Virtual:X with virtual height and virtual surround processing to realize a three-dimensional sound field when the height speakers are not used.

*1 This can be selected when "Speaker Config." - "Surr. Back" is not set to "None". (1) p. 186)

*2 It cannot be selected when the input signal is Dolby Digital, Dolby Digital Plus, Dolby TrueHD or Dolby Atmos.

*3 This can be selected when Height, Ceiling and Dolby Atmos Enabled speakers are not being used.





PCM multi-channel sound mode

Sound mode type	Description
Multi Ch In	This mode can be selected when playing multi-channel PCM sources.

Original sound mode

Sound mode type	Description
Multi Ch Stereo	This mode is for enjoying stereo sound from all speakers.
Rock Arena	This mode simulates the expansive sound of a live concert in an arena.
Jazz Club	This mode simulates the experience of being in an intimate jazz club.
Mono Movie	This mode works with monaural audio sources and delivers a surround sound effect. For optimum channel balance and surround sound effects, connect the monaural source to both of the front (L/R) audio inputs.
Video Game	This mode provides an exciting, dynamic surround sound effect with your favorite action video games.
Matrix	This mode adds a spacious surround sound effect with stereo music sources.
Virtual	This mode lets you experience an expansive surround sound effect when playing back through just the front (L/R) speakers only, and when listening with stereo headphones.

Auto sound mode

Sound mode type	Description
Auto	In this mode, the type of digital signal input, such as Dolby Digital, Dolby TrueHD, Dolby Digital Plus, Dolby Digital EX, Dolby Atmos, DTS, DTS-HD, DTS:X, DTS-ES, PCM (multi-channel) is detected, and the playback mode switches automatically to the corresponding mode. If the input signal is analog or PCM (2-channel), stereo playback is used. For Dolby Digital or DTS, the music is played back according to the respective channel number.





Contents	$\mathbf{\nabla}$	Connec
----------	-------------------	--------

Stereo sound mode

Sound mode type	Description	
Stereo	This mode plays 2-channel stereo audio with no additional surround sound processing.	
	Sound is output from the front left and right speakers, and subwoofer if connected.	
	 When multi-channel signals are inputted, they are mixed down to 2-channel audio and are played back with no additional surround sound processing. 	

Direct sound mode

Sound mode type	Description
Direct	This mode plays back audio as recorded in the source.
Pure Direct	 This mode plays back an even higher quality sound than the "Direct" mode. The following circuits are stopped in order to further improve sound quality. Display indicator circuit of the main body (display will go off.) The applies video input/output switcher and processor is displad.
	I ne analog video input/output switcher and processor is disabled.







Sound mode that can be selected for each input signal

- The following sound modes can be selected using the MOVIE, MUSIC and GAME buttons.
- Adjust the sound field effect with the menu "Surround Parameter" to enjoy surround sound the way you like it. (127 p. 146)

Input signal	Sound mode	MOVIE button	MUSIC button	GAME button
	Stereo	0	0	0
2-channel *1	Dolby Surround *2	0	0	0
	DTS Neural:X *2*3	0	0	0
	DTS Virtual:X *3*4	0	0	0
	Multi Ch Stereo	0	0	0
	Mono Movie	0		
	Rock Arena		0	
	Jazz Club		0	
	Matrix		0	
	Video Game			0
	Virtual	0	0	0

*1 2-channel also includes analog input.

*2 This mode plays back 2-channel sources in 5.1 or 7.1-channel playback. It cannot be selected when headphones are used or when the speaker configuration is front speakers only.

*3 It cannot be selected when the input signal is Dolby Digital, Dolby Digital Plus, Dolby TrueHD or Dolby Atmos.

*4 It cannot be selected when headphones are used, or when a speaker configuration with any height speakers is used.





0	_			_		ж.	_
	n	n	T)	ρ	n	Τ.	5
-	-		-	-			<u> </u>

Input signal Sound mode		MOVIE button	MUSIC button	GAME button	
Multi-channel *5	Stereo	0	0	0	
Dolby Digital	Dolby Digital	0	0	0	
	Dolby Digital + Dolby Surround *6	0	0	0	
	Dolby Digital Plus	0	0	0	
Dolby Digital Plus	Dolby Digital Plus + Dolby Surround *6*7	0	0	0	
	Dolby Atmos *6*8	0	0	0	
Dolby TrueHD	Dolby TrueHD	0	0	0	
	Dolby TrueHD + Dolby Surround *6*7	0	0	0	
	Dolby Atmos *6*8	0	0	0	
Dolby Atmos Dolby Atmos		0	0	0	
DTS	DTS Surround	0	0	0	
	DTS ES Dscrt 6.1 *6	0	0	0	
	DTS ES Mtrx 6.1 *6	0	0	0	
	DTS 96/24	0	0	0	
	DTS + Dolby Surround *6	0	0	0	
	DTS + Neural:X *6	0	0	0	
	DTS + Virtual:X *4	0	0	0	

*4 It cannot be selected when headphones are used, or when a speaker configuration with any height speakers is used.

*5 The sound mode that can be selected differs depending on the audio format of the input signal and the number of channels. For details, see "Types of input signals, and corresponding sound modes" (127 p. 254).

*6 This cannot be selected when headphones are used.

*7 This can be selected when the input signal does not contain Dolby Atmos.

*8 This can be selected when the input signal contains Dolby Atmos.









('Ontent	
OULICIT	

Input signal	Sound mode	MOVIE button	MUSIC button	GAME button
	DTS-HD HI RES	0	0	0
	DTS-HD MSTR	0	0	0
DTS-HD /	DTS Express	0	0	0
DTS Express	DTS-HD + Dolby Surround *6	0	0	0
	DTS-HD + Neural:X *6	0	0	0
	DTS-HD + Virtual:X *4	0	0	0
	DTS:X	0	0	0
DTS:X	DTS:X MSTR	0	0	0
	DTS:X + Virtual:X *4	0	0	0
PCM multi-channel	Multi Ch In	0	0	0
	Multi Ch In 7.1 *6	0	0	0
	Multi In + Dolby Surround *6	0	0	0
	Multi Ch In + Neural:X *6	0	0	0
	Multi In + Virtual:X *4	0	0	0
	Multi Ch Stereo	0	0	0
	Mono Movie	0		
	Rock Arena		0	
Multi-channel *5	Jazz Club		0	
	Matrix		0	
	Video Game			0
	Virtual	0	0	0

*4 It cannot be selected when headphones are used, or when a speaker configuration with any height speakers is used.

*5 The sound mode that can be selected differs depending on the audio format of the input signal and the number of channels. For details, see "Types of input signals, and corresponding sound modes" (127 p. 254).

*6 This cannot be selected when headphones are used.



Rear panel









Views on the display



Shows a decoder to be used.

• In the case of the Dolby Digital Plus decoder, "DD+" is displayed.

Shows a decoder that creates sound output.

• "DSun" indicates that the Dolby Surround decoder is being used.











HDMI Control function

A recent addition to the HDMI standard is CEC (Consumer Electronics Control), which allows control signals from one device to communicate with another device via the HDMI cable connection.

Setting procedure

- Enable the HDMI Control function of this unit. Set "HDMI Control" to "On". (1) p. 160)
- 2 Turn the power on for all the devices connected by HDMI cable.
- **3** Set the HDMI Control function for all devices connected by HDMI cable.
 - Please consult the operating instructions for the connected devices to check the settings.
 - Carry out steps 2 and 3 should any of the devices be unplugged.
- 4 Switch the television input to the HDMI input connected to this unit.

- 5 Switch the input source of this unit to check that video from the player connected by HDMI is played back correctly.
- 6 When you turn the TV's power to standby, check that the power of this unit also goes to standby.



• Some functions may not operate depending on the connected TV or player. Check the owner's manual of each device for details beforehand.







Smart Menu function

This function can be used to configure the settings of this unit, select an input source and set Tuner and Internet Radio stations using the TV remote control.

- Enable the HDMI Control function of this unit and the TV. (127 p. 160)
- 2 Set "Smart Menu" to "On" on this unit. (IPP p. 163)

3 Select "AV Receiver" in a TV menu such as "Input"* or "Operate Connected HDMI Device"*.

The Smart Menu of this unit is displayed on the TV.

- This unit can be operated with the TV remote control while the Smart Menu is displayed.
- * The selection method differs depending on your TV.



Now Playing

Enjoy content from the input source currently selected on this unit.

Source

Switch the input of this unit.

If you select "HEOS Music" or "Tuner", you can continue to operate this unit using the TV remote control.

Sound Mode

Change the sound mode of this unit. You can select from the following three sound modes.

Surround:	Surround sound playback according to the input signal.
Stereo:	Stereo playback.
Multi Ch Stereo:	Multi-channel stereo playback.

Front panel





Contents

Setup Menu

Displays a setup menu for configuring the settings of this unit.

Quick Select

Calls up the "Quick Select" items registered to this unit.

NOTE

- If the "HDMI Control" or "Smart Menu" settings have been changed, always reset the power to connected devices after the change.
- The Smart Menu function may not work properly depending on the specifications of your TV. In this case, set "Smart Menu" to "Off". (☞ p. 163)

Front panel











You can have the power automatically switched to standby once a set time has elapsed. This is convenient for viewing and listening while going to sleep. The sleep timer function can be set for each zone.









Using the sleep timer

Press MAIN or ZONE2 to select the operating zone with the remote control.

The button for the selected zone is lit.

2 Press SLEEP and display the time you want to set.

- The SLEEP indicator lights up on the display and the sleep timer starts.
- You can set the sleep timer in the range from 10 to 120 minutes in steps of 10 minutes.

Checking the remaining time

Press SLEEP when the sleep timer is in operation. The remaining time appears on the display.

To cancel the sleep timer

Press SLEEP to select "Off". The SLEEP indicator on the display turns off.



• The sleep timer setting is canceled when the unit switches to standby mode.

NOTE

 The sleep timer function cannot turn off the power of devices connected to this unit. To turn off the power of those connected devices, set up sleep timers on the connected devices themselves.

Front panel





Quick select plus function



Settings such as the input source, volume level and sound mode can be registered to the QUICK SELECT 1 - 4 buttons.

Tips

You can simply press one of the registered QUICK SELECT buttons in subsequent playbacks to switch to the group of saved settings in a batch. By saving frequently used settings at the QUICK SELECT 1 – 4 buttons, you will always be able to easily call up the same playback environment. The Quick Select Plus function can be memorized for each zone.

The QUICK SELECT button on main unit can only be used to operate the MAIN ZONE.







Calling up the settings

Press MAIN or ZONE2 to select the operating zone with the remote control.

The button for the selected zone is lit.

2 Press QUICK SELECT.

The Quick Select settings registered to the button you pressed are called up.

• The default settings for the input source are as shown below.

•	-
Button	Input source
QUICK SELECT 1	CBL/SAT
QUICK SELECT 2	Blu-ray
QUICK SELECT 3	Game
QUICK SELECT 4	HEOS Music

[MAIN ZONE]

ZONE2

Button	Input source
QUICK SELECT 1	CBL/SAT
QUICK SELECT 2	Blu-ray
QUICK SELECT 3	-
QUICK SELECT 4	HEOS Music

A

 Volume is not registered to Quick Select Plus in the factory default settings. See "Changing the settings" to register volume to Quick Select Plus. (@ p. 131)



Changing the settings

Set the items below to the settings you want to register.

The following settings from (1) to (1) can be memorized for MAIN ZONE, and settings (1) and (2) can be memorized for ZONE2.

- 1 Input source (P p. 67)
- (2) Volume (127 p. 68)
- (3) Sound mode (127 p. 112)
- ④ Audyssey (Audyssey MultEQ[®], Audyssey Dynamic EQ[®], Audyssey Dynamic Volume[®]) (127 p. 153)
- (5) " Restorer " (🖅 p. 150)
- (6) "Adjusting the volume of each channel to match the input source (Channel Level Adjust)" (IP p. 107)
- ⑦ "Displaying your desired video during audio playback (Video Select)" (☞ p. 109)
- (a) "Adjusting the picture quality for your viewing environment (Picture Mode)" (127 p. 110)
- (9) " HDMI Video Output " (12 p. 164)
- 1 "All Zone Stereo" (P p. 111)

- Press and hold QUICK SELECT while a radio station is being received is being played back with any of the following sources, the current radio station is memorized.
 - Tuner / Internet Radio Station

2 Press MAIN or ZONE2 to select the operating zone with the remote control.

The button for the selected zone is lit.

3 Press and hold the desired QUICK SELECT until "Quick* Memory" or "Z2 Quick* Memory" appear on the display.

The current settings will be memorized.

* is displayed the number for the QUICK SELECT button you pressed.

Changing the Quick Select Name

The MAIN ZONE Quick Select name displayed on the TV screen or display of this unit can be changed to a different name.

For the name change method, see "Quick Select Names". ($\ensuremath{\mathfrak{CT}}\xspace$ p. 207)











Panel lock function

To prevent accidental operation of this unit, you can disable operation of the buttons on the front panel.



Disabling all key button operations

- Press () while you press and hold TUNER PRESET CH + and ZONE2 SOURCE with the unit in standby mode.
- 2 Use TUNER PRESET CH + or TUNER PRESET CH to select "FP/VOL LOCK On".
- **3** Press STATUS to enter the setting.

All button operations except \bullet are disabled.

Disabling all button operations except VOLUME

- Press (b) while you press and hold TUNER PRESET CH + and ZONE2 SOURCE with the unit in standby mode.
- 2 Use TUNER PRESET CH + or TUNER PRESET CH to select "FP LOCK On".
- **3** Press STATUS to enter the setting.

All button operations except 0 and VOLUME are disabled.







Tips

Canceling the Panel lock function

- Press (b) while you press and hold TUNER PRESET CH + and ZONE2 SOURCE with the unit in standby mode.
- 2 Press TUNER PRESET CH + or TUNER PRESET CH to select "FP LOCK *Off".

(* The currently set mode.)

3 Press STATUS to enter the setting.

The Panel lock function is canceled.

Ó

• Even when the Panel lock function is set, you can operate the unit using the remote control unit.









Remote lock function

When connecting an IR receiver, enable the Remote lock function. When the function is enabled, you can not perform operations with the remote control unit.

By default, this function is disabled.



Disabling the sensor function of the remote control unit

- Press (b) while you press and hold TUNER PRESET CH + and ZONE2 SOURCE with the unit in standby mode.
- 2 Use TUNER PRESET CH + or TUNER PRESET CH to select "RC LOCK On".
- **3** Press STATUS to enter the setting.

The infrared light receiving function is disabled.

Enabling the remote sensor function

- **1** Press (b) while you press and hold TUNER PRESET CH + and ZONE2 SOURCE with the unit in standby mode.
- 2 Press TUNER PRESET CH + or TUNER PRESET CH to select "RC LOCK *Off".

(* The currently set mode.)

3 Press STATUS to enter the setting.

Infrared light receiving function on the main unit is enabled.









Web control function

You can control this unit from a web control screen on a web browser.





(

- This unit and the PC or tablet need to be connected correctly to the network in order to use the web control function. (127 p. 63)
- Depending on the settings of your security-related software, you may not be able to access this unit from your PC. If this is the case, then change the settings of the security-related software.

Controlling the unit from a web control

- Switch the "Network Control" setting to "Always On". (@ p. 199)
- 2 Check the IP address of this unit with "Information". (© p. 194)

Friendly Name DHCP Connection IP Address MAC Address (Ethernet) MAC Address (Wi-Fi)	Denon AVR-S950H On <u>Wired (Ethernet)</u> 192.168.100.19 ******-000000 ******-000000
Checking th	e IP address.
Displays the surrent net	work cottings of the AVP

3 Start up the web browser.







For example, if the IP address of this unit is "192.168.100.19", enter "http://192.168.100.19".

	,
\odot	📲 📴 http://192.168.100.19 🛯
<u>F</u> ile	Edit View Favorites Tools Help

5 When the top menu is displayed on the web browser, click on the menu item you want to operate.







Tips

Playback in ZONE2 (Another room)

You can operate this unit to enjoy audio in a room (ZONE2) that is different from the room where this unit is placed (MAIN ZONE). You can simultaneously play back the same source in both the MAIN ZONE and ZONE2. You can also play back separate sources in the MAIN ZONE and ZONE2.

• It is not possible to play the digital audio signals input from the HDMI, COAXIAL or OPTICAL connectors in ZONE2. Use analog connections for ZONE2 playback.

Connecting ZONE2

When "Assign Mode" is set to "ZONE2" in the menu, ZONE2 audio is output from the SURROUND BACK speaker terminal. (127 p. 184)





Contents Connections	Playback	Settings Tips Appendix
Playback in ZONE2		1 Press ZONE2 to set the operating zone to ZONE2 with the remote control. The ZONE2 button lights.
	— POWER 也	 Press POWER of to turn on the ZONE2 power. The 2 indicator on the display lights. Power in ZONE2 can be turned on or off by pressing ZONE2 ON/OFF on the main unit.
select buttons		3 Press the input source select button to select the input source to be played.
		 The audio signal of the selected source is output to ZONE2. To perform an operation with the main unit, press ZONE2 SOURCE. Each time you press ZONE2 SOURCE, the input source changes

Front panel







Adjusting the volume (ZONE2)

Use VOLUME $\blacktriangle V$ to adjust the volume.

At time of purchase, "Volume Limit" is set to "70 (-10 dB)".
 (127 p. 206)

• Turn MASTER VOLUME after pressing ZONE2 SOURCE on the main unit to adjust the volume.

Turning off the sound temporarily (Muting) (ZONE2)

Press MUTE

The sound is reduced to the level set at "Mute Level" in the menu. ($\textcircled{\begin{subarray}{c} p\end{subarray}} p. 207)$

- To cancel mute, either adjust the sound volume or press MUTE ${\mathfrak q} \times$ again.









Contents

Menu map

When using menu operations, connect this unit to a TV and operate this unit while viewing the TV.

The recommended settings are configured for this unit by default. You can customize this unit based on your existing system and your preferences.

Setting items	Detailed items	Description	Page
	Center Level Adjust	Adjusts the center channel volume to clarify the dialog for all sources.	145
	Subwoofer Level Adjust	Adjusts the subwoofer channel volume for all input sources.	145
	Surround Parameter	Adjusts surround sound parameters.	146
Audio	Restorer	Expands the low and high frequency components of compressed audio content such as MP3 files to enable richer audio playback.	150
	Audio Delay	Compensates for incorrect timing between video and audio.	151
	Volume	Sets the MAIN ZONE (room where the unit is located) volume setting.	152
	Audyssey	Makes Audyssey MultEQ [®] , Audyssey Dynamic EQ [®] and Audyssey Dynamic Volume [®] settings.	153
	Graphic EQ	Uses the graphic equalizer to adjust the tone of each speaker.	155
	Picture Adjust	Adjusts picture quality.	157
	HDMI Setup	Makes settings for HDMI Audio Out, HDMI Pass Through and HDMI Control settings.	158
	Output Settings	Makes settings for video output.	164
	On Screen Display	Configures the on-screen display settings.	167
Video	4K Signal Format	Set the 4K signal format when the TV or playback device is 4K compatible.	168
	TV Format	Sets the video signal format to be output for the TV you are using.	169





Setting items	Detailed items	Description	Page
Inputs	Input Assign	Changes input connector assignment and the audio input mode.	170
	Source Rename	Changes the display name for input source.	173
	Hide Sources	Removes from the display input sources that are not used.	173
	Source Level	Adjusts the playback level of the audio input.	173
Speakers	Audyssey [®] Setup	The acoustic characteristics of the connected speakers and listening room are measured and the optimum settings are made automatically.	174
	Manual Setup	Sets up the speakers manually or changes Audyssey [®] Setup settings.	184
Network	Information	Displays network information.	194
	Connection	Selects whether to connect the home network to a wireless LAN or a wired LAN.	194
	Settings	Used for manually setting the IP address.	197
	Network Control	Enables network communication in standby power mode.	199
	Friendly Name	The "Friendly Name" is the name of this unit displayed on the network. You can change the Friendly Name according to your preferences.	199
	Diagnostics	Used to check the network connection.	200
	AirPlay	Settings for Apple AirPlay.	200

Front panel





Contents	Connections	Playback Settings Tips Appe	ndix		
Setting items	Detailed items	Description	Page		
	[When the user is signed of	out the HEOS Account]			
	I have a HEOS Account	Selects to sign in.	201		
	Create Account	Creates new HEOS Account.	201		
HEOS Account	Forgot Password	If you forgot your password, we'll send you an email with instructions about how to reset it.	201		
	[When the user is signed in the HEOS Account]				
	Signed in As	Displays your HEOS Account.	201		
	Change Location	Selects your location.	201		
	Change Password	Changes your HEOS Account Password.	201		
	Delete Account	Deletes your HEOS Account.	201		
	Sign Out	Sign out of your HEOS Account.	201		



142





Contents

Setting items	Detailed items	Description	Page
General	Language	Changes the language of the display on the TV screen.	202
	ECO	Configures the ECO Mode and Auto Standby energy-saving functions.	202
	ZONE2 Setup	Makes settings for audio playback with ZONE2.	206
	Zone Rename	Changes the display title of each zone to one you prefer.	207
	Quick Select Names	Changes the Quick Select Name display title to one you prefer.	207
	Front Display	Makes settings related to the display on this unit.	208
	Firmware	Checks for the latest firmware information about updates and upgrades, updates the firmware, and sets up the notification message display.	209
	Information	Shows information about this unit settings, input signals, etc.	212
	Usage Data	Selects whether or not to send anonymous usage data to Denon.	213
	Save & Load	Save and restore device settings by using a USB memory device.	214
	Setup Lock	Protects settings from inadvertent changes.	214
	Reset	Various settings are reset to the factory default values.	215
	Begin Setup	Performs basic installation/connections/settings from the beginning according to the guidance indicated on the TV screen.	Page 9 of the separate
	Language Select	Sets individual setting items according to the guidance displayed on the TV screen.	manual "Quick Start Guide"
	Speaker Setup		
Setup Assistant	Speaker Calibration		
	Network Setup		
	TV Audio Connection		
	Input Setup		
	Mobile Apps		

Front panel





Front panel


Audio

Make audio-related settings.

Center Level Adjust

Adjusts the center channel volume to clarify the dialog for all sources.

Center

Adjusts the volume output from the center channel.

-12.0 dB - +12.0 dB (Default: 0.0 dB)

• This setting is also reflected in the center channel level in the "Speakers" - "Levels" menu settings. (127 p. 191)

Subwoofer Level Adjust

Adjusts the subwoofer channel volume for all input sources.

Subwoofer

Adjusts the volume level for the subwoofer.

-12.0 dB - +12.0 dB (Default: 0.0 dB)

 This setting is also reflected in the subwoofer channel level in the "Speakers" -"Levels" menu settings. (1) p. 191)









Surround Parameter

You can adjust the surround audio sound field effects to match your preferences.

The items (parameters) that can be adjusted depend on the signal being input and the currently set sound mode. For details on the adjustable parameters, see "Sound modes and surround parameters" (1 p. 251).

- Some setting items cannot be set while playback is stopped. Make the settings during playback.
- "Surround Parameter" settings are stored for each sound mode.

Cinema EQ

Gently softens the upper treble range of movie soundtracks to reduce possible harshness and improve clarity.

On:	"Cinema EQ" is used.
Off (Default):	"Cinema EQ" is not used.

Loudness Management

This sets whether to output as specified in "Dynamic Compression" or output directly without compressing the dynamic range of audio recorded in the disc.

On (Default):	Outputs are given based on enabling the settings made in "Dynamic Compression" and Dialogue normalization function.
Off:	"Dynamic Compression" settings and Dialogue normalization are disabled, and the signals on the disc are output as is.

• "Loudness Management" can be set when Dolby Digital, Dolby Digital Plus, Dolby TrueHD and Dolby Atmos signal is input.







Dynamic Compression

Compress dynamic range (difference between loud and soft sounds).

Auto:	Automatic dynamic range compression on/off control according to source.
Low / Medium / High:	These set the compression level.
Off:	Dynamic range compression is always off.

- "Dynamic Compression" can be set when Dolby Digital, Dolby Digital Plus, Dolby TrueHD, Dolby Atmos or DTS signal is input.
- When the input signal is a Dolby signal, the default setting is "High".
- When the input signal is a DTS signal, the default setting is "Off".
- "Auto" cannot be set when inputting a DTS signal.

Dialog Control

Adjust the volume of dialog in movies, vocals in music, etc. so these can be heard more easily.

0 – 6 (Default : 0)

• This can be set when a DTS:X signal that is compatible with the Dialog Control function is input.

Low Frequency Effects

Adjust the low frequency effects level (LFE).

-10 dB - 0 dB (Default: 0 dB)

A

- For proper playback of the different sources, we recommend setting to the values below.
 - Dolby Digital sources: 0 dB
 - DTS movie sources: 0 dB
 - DTS music sources: -10 dB

Front panel







Speaker Virtualizer

The Speaker Virtualizer enhances the surround and height speaker channels to create an enveloping virtual surround effect.

On (Default):	Enables "Speaker Virtualizer".
Off:	Disables "Speaker Virtualizer".

- You can set this when the sound mode is "Dolby Atmos", "Dolby Surround" or sound mode that has "+Dolby Surround" in the sound mode name.
- Usable when not using height, ceiling or "Dolby Atmos Enabled" speakers, or when not using surround speakers.
- This feature will be supported via firmware update.

DTS Neural:X

DTS Neural:X Expands the non-object based audio signals and optimizes them for your speaker configuration.

On

Use "DTS Neural:X".

(Default): Off:

Do not use "DTS Neural:X".

You can set this when sound mode is "DTS'X" or "DTS'X MSTB".

Delay Time

Adjust the audio delay time against video to extend the sound field image.

0 ms - 300 ms (Default: 30 ms)

You can set this when the sound mode is "Matrix".

Effect Level

Adjust the sound effect level of the current sound mode.

1 - 15 (Default: 10)

• Set to a lower level if the positioning and sense of phase of the surround signals seems unnatural.







Room Size

Determine size of acoustic environment.

Small:	Simulate acoustics of a small room.
Medium small:	Simulate acoustics of a medium-small room.
Medium (Default):	Simulate acoustics of a medium room.
Medium large:	Simulate acoustics of a medium-large room.
Large:	Simulate acoustics of a large room.

• "Room Size" does not indicate the size of the room in which sources are played.

Subwoofer

Turn subwoofer output on and off.

On (Default):	The subwoofer is used.
Off:	The subwoofer is not used.

Ó

• You can set this when the sound mode is "Direct" or "Stereo" and in the menu "Subwoofer Mode" is set to "LFE+Main". (127 p. 193)

Set Defaults

The "Surround Parameter" settings are returned to the default settings.





Restorer

Compressed audio formats such as MP3, WMA (Windows Media Audio) and MPEG-4 AAC reduce the amount of data by eliminating signal components that are hard for the human ear to hear. The "Restorer" function generates the signals eliminated upon compression, restoring the sound to conditions near those of the original sound before compression. It also restores the original bass characteristics for a rich and expanded tonal range.

Mode

High:	Optimized mode for compressed sources with very weak highs (64 kbps and under).
Medium:	Apply suitable bass and treble boost for all compressed sources (96 kbps and under).
Low:	Optimized mode for compressed sources with normal highs (96 kbps and over).
Off:	Do not use "Restorer".

- This item can be set with analog signals or PCM signal (Sample Rate = 44.1/48 kHz) is input.
- This item default setting for "HEOS Music" is "Low". All others are set to "Off".
- This cannot be set when the sound mode is set to "Direct" or "Pure Direct".
- "Restorer" settings are stored for each input source.









Audio Delay

Compensates for incorrect timing between video and audio.

• "Audio Delay" settings are stored for each input source.

Auto Lip Sync

Automatically adjusts the audio processing time to compensate for delays in audio/video timing from TV compatible with Auto Lip Sync.

On (Default):	Correct automatically.
Off:	Do not correct automatically.

 Automatic correction may not be performed depending on the specifications of your TV even when "Auto Lip Sync" is set to "On".

Adjust

The timing mismatch between the picture and sound needs to be corrected manually.

0 ms - 500 ms (Default : 0 ms)

- You can also finely adjust the delay correction value set by "Auto Lip Sync".
- Adjust for game mode can be set when "Video Mode" is set to "Auto" or "Game". (IP p. 165)

Front panel







Playback

Volume

Contents

Set the MAIN ZONE (room where the unit is located) volume setting.

Connections

Scale

Set how volume is displayed.

0 - 98 (Default):	Display in the range 0 (Min) to 98.
-79.5 dB - 18.0 dB:	DisplaydB (Min), in the range –79.5 dB to 18.0 dB.



• "Scale" settings are reflected in all the zones.

Limit

Make a setting for maximum volume.

60 (-20 dB) / 70 (-10 dB) / 80 (0 dB)

Off (Default)

A

• The dB value is displayed when the "Scale" setting is "-79.5 dB - 18.0 dB". (😰 p. 152)

Power On Level

Settings

Define the volume setting that is active when the power is turned on.

Tips

Last (Default):	Use the memorized setting from the last session.
Mute:	Always use the muting on condition when power is turned on.
1 – 98 (–79 dB – 18 dB) :	The volume is adjusted to the set level.

• The dB value is displayed when the "Scale" setting is "-79.5 dB - 18.0 dB". (🖙 p. 152)

Mute Level

Set the amount of attenuation when muting is on.

Full (Default):	The sound is muted entirely.
-40 dB :	The sound is attenuated by 40 dB down.
–20 dB :	The sound is attenuated by 20 dB down.

Audyssey®

Set Audyssey MultEQ[®], Audyssey Dynamic EQ[®] and Audyssey Dynamic Volume[®]. These can be selected after Audyssey[®] Setup has been performed.

For additional information on Audyssey technology, please see "Explanation of terms" (27 p. 257).

- "MultEQ[®]", "Dynamic EQ", "Reference Level Offset" and "Dynamic Volume" settings are stored for each input source.
- When the sound mode is in the "Direct" or "Pure Direct" mode, "MultEQ[®]", "Dynamic EQ" and "Dynamic Volume" settings cannot be configured.
- When the sound mode is in "DTS Virtual:X" or sound mode that have "+Virtual:X" in the sound mode name, "MultEQ[®]", "Dynamic EQ" and "Dynamic Volume" settings cannot be configured.

MultEQ[®]

MultEQ[®] compensates for both time and frequency characteristics of the listening area based on "Audyssey[®] Setup" measurement results. Selection is done from three types of compensation curves. We recommend the "Reference" setting.

Reference (Default):	Selects the default calibrated setting with a slight roll off at high frequencies, which is optimized for movies.
L/R Bypass:	Selects the reference setting, but bypasses MultEQ [®] on the front left and right speakers.
Flat:	Selects the calibrated setting which is optimized for small rooms where your listening position is closer to the speakers.
Off:	Do not use "MultEQ®".

• When using headphones, "MultEQ®" is automatically set to "Off".

Front panel



Dynamic EQ

Solves the problem of deteriorating sound quality as volume is decreased by taking into account human perception and room acoustics.

Works with MultEQ®.

On (Default):	Use "Dynamic EQ".	
Off:	Do not use "Dynamic EQ".	

 When the menu "Dynamic EQ" setting is "On", it is not possible to do "Tone" adjustment. (Cp p. 108)

Reference Level Offset

Audyssey Dynamic EQ[®] is referenced to the standard film mix level. It makes adjustments to maintain the reference response and surround envelopment when the volume is turned down from 0 dB. However, film reference level is not always used in music or other non-film content. Dynamic EQ Reference Level Offset provides three offsets from the film level reference (5 dB, 10 dB, and 15 dB) that can be selected when the mix level of the content is not within the standard. Recommended setting levels for content are shown below.

0 dB (Film Reference) (Default):	Optimized for content such as movies.
5 dB :	Select this setting for content that has a very wide dynamic range, such as classical music.
10 dB :	Select this setting for jazz or other music that has a wider dynamic range. This setting should also be selected for TV content as that is usually mixed at 10 dB below film reference.
15 dB :	Select this setting for pop/rock music or other program material that is mixed at very high listening levels and has a compressed dynamic range.

• Setting is enabled when "Dynamic EQ" is "On". (154)

Front panel

154



Index

Dynamic Volume

Solves the problem of large variations in volume level between TV, movies and other content (between quiet passages and loud passages, etc.) by automatically adjusting to the user's preferred volume setting.

Works with MultEQ[®].

Heavy:	Most adjustment to softest and loudest sounds.
Medium:	Medium adjustment to loudest and softest sound.
Light:	Least adjustment to loudest and softest sounds.
Off (Default):	Do not use "Dynamic Volume".

 If "Dynamic Volume" is set to "Yes" in "Audyssey[®] Setup", the setting is automatically changed to "Medium". (127 p. 174)

Graphic EQ

Uses the graphic equalizer to adjust the tone of each speaker.

- Speakers for which "Graphic EQ" can be set differ according to the sound mode.
- This can be set when "MultEQ[®]" setting is "Off". (@ p. 153)
- This cannot be set when the sound mode is set to "Direct" or "Pure Direct".
- If you are using headphones, you can set the equalizer for headphones. ((\mathfrak{T} p. 155)

Graphic EQ / Headphone EQ

Set whether to use the graphic equalizer or not.

On:	Use the graphic equalizer.
Off (Default):	Do not use the graphic equalizer.

• "Headphone EQ" is set in the menu when headphones are used.





Speaker Selection

Select whether to adjust tones for individual speakers or for all speakers.

All:	Adjust all speaker tones together.
Left/Right (Default):	Adjust the left and right speaker tones together.
Each:	Adjust the tone for each speaker.

Adjust EQ

Adjust tonal balance for each frequency band.

- 1. Select the speaker.
- 2. Select the adjustment frequency band.
 63 Hz / 125 Hz / 250 Hz / 500 Hz / 1 kHz / 2 kHz / 4 kHz / 8 kHz / 16 kHz
- 3. Adjust the level.
 - -20.0 dB +6.0 dB (Default: 0.0 dB)

• Front Dolby and Surround Dolby speakers can only be set when 63 Hz/125 Hz/250 Hz/500 Hz/1 kHz.

Curve Copy

Copy the Flat correction curve created in Audyssey® Setup.

- "Curve Copy" is displayed after Audyssey® Setup has been performed.
- "Curve Copy" cannot be used when using headphones.

Set Defaults

The "Graphic EQ" settings are returned to the default settings.









Video

Make video-related settings.

Picture Adjust

Picture quality can be adjusted.

- This can be set when "HDMI" is assigned for each input source. (127 p. 171)
- "Contrast", "Brightness", "Saturation", "Noise Reduction" and "Enhancer" can be set when "Picture Mode" is set to "Custom". (127 p. 157)
- "Picture Adjust" settings are stored for each input source.
- "Picture Adjust" cannot be set when 4K signals are input.
- This cannot be set when "Video Mode" is set to "Bypass" or "i/p Scaler" is set to "Off". (27 p. 165)

Picture Mode

Select the desired picture mode according to the video content and your viewing environment.

Standard:	The standard mode suited for most living room viewing environments.
Movie:	A mode suited for watching movies in a dark room such as a theater room.
Vivid:	A mode that makes graphic images for games, etc. brighter and more vivid.
Streaming:	A mode suited for low bit rate video sources.
Custom:	Adjusts the picture quality manually.
Off (Default):	No picture quality adjustment is done with this unit.

• These settings can also be configured using "Picture Mode" in the option menu. (@ p. 157)

Front panel





Contents	\mathbb{N}	Connections	\bigvee	Playback	\bigcirc
Contrast					

Adjust picture contrast.

-50 - +50 (Default : 0)

Brightness

Adjust picture brightness.

-50 - +50 (Default : 0)

Saturation

Adjust picture chroma level (color saturation).

-50 - +50 (Default : 0)

Noise Reduction

Reduce overall video noise.

Low / Medium / High / Off (Default : Off)

Enhancer

Emphasize picture sharpness.

0 - +12 (Default : 0)

HDMI Setup

Settings

Make settings for HDMI Audio Out, HDMI Pass Through and HDMI Control settings.

Tips

NOTE

 When "HDMI Pass Through" and "HDMI Control" is set to "On", it consumes more standby power. (" HDMI Pass Through " (127 p. 159), " HDMI Control " (127 p. 160))

If you are not using this unit for an extended period, it is recommended that you unplug the power cord from the power outlet.

HDMI Audio Out

Select HDMI audio output device.

AVR (Default):	Play back through speakers connected to the unit.
TV:	Play back through TV connected to the unit.

- When the HDMI Control function is activated, priority is given to the TV audio setting. ($({\rm Im} \ p. \, 124)$
- When the power of this unit is on and "HDMI Audio Out" is set to "TV", audio is output as 2-channel from the HDMI OUT connector.



158

Remote



HDMI Pass Through

Selects how this unit will transmit HDMI signals to the HDMI output in standby power mode.

On (Default):	Transmits the selected HDMI input through this unit's HDMI output when this unit is in standby power mode.
Off:	No HDMI signals are transmitted through this unit's HDMI output in standby power mode.

Pass Through Source

Sets the HDMI connector that inputs HDMI signals when in standby.

Last:	The most recently used input source will go into standby mode.
CBL/SAT / DVD / Blu-ray / Game / AUX1 / AUX2 / Media Player / CD* (Default : CBL/SAT):	Pass through the selected input source.

* "Pass Through Source" can be set when any of the HDMI connectors is assigned to "CD" for the input source in the "Input Assign" setting. (2 p. 170)

• "Pass Through Source" can be set when "HDMI Control" is set to "On" or "HDMI Pass Through" is set to "On". ("HDMI Pass Through " (159), "HDMI Control " (159, 160))



RC Source Select

Set whether to allow this unit to be turned on by the input source select button on the remote control when this unit is on standby.

Power On + Source (Default):	The power of this unit is turned on and the input source changes.	
Source Select Only:	The HDMI input source changes while this unit is on standby. The power display of this unit blinks when the input source select button of the remote control is pressed.	

 "RC Source Select" can be set when "HDMI Control" is set to "On" or "HDMI Pass Through" is set to "On". ("HDMI Pass Through " (P p. 159), "HDMI Control " (P p. 160))

HDMI Control

You can link operations with devices connected to HDMI and compatible with HDMI Control.

Tips

On:	Use HDMI Control function.
Off (Default):	Do not use HDMI Control function.

- If using the HDMI Control function, connect a TV compatible with HDMI control to the HDMI MONITOR 1 connector.
- Please consult the operating instructions for each connected device to check
 the settings.
- Refer to "HDMI Control function" for more information about the HDMI Control function. (127 p. 124)

NOTE

• If the "HDMI Control" settings have been changed, always reset the power to connected devices after the change.

Front panel







On the TV connected to the HDMI MONITOR 1 connector, set whether to receive sound from the TV via HDMI.

On:	Use ARC function.
Off (Default):	Do not use ARC function.

- You can adjust the volume of this unit using the TV remote control.
- If using this function, use a TV compatible with ARC (Audio Return Channel) and enable the HDMI Control function of the TV.

NOTE

- If the "ARC" settings have been changed, always reset the power to connected devices after the change.
- Using an eARC function-compatible television enables audio playback from the speaker connected to this unit, regardless of "ARC" settings in the menu.

TV Audio Switching

Sets automatic switching to the "TV Audio" input when a TV connected via HDMI sends an appropriate CEC control command to this unit.

On (Default):	Select the "TV Audio" input automatically when receiving a command from the TV.
Off:	Do not select the "TV Audio" input automatically when receiving a command from the TV.

• "TV Audio Switching" can be set when "HDMI Control" is set to "On". (
 (
 () p. 160)







Power Off Control

Links the power standby of this unit to external devices.

All (Default):	If power to a connected TV is turned off independently of the input source, power to this unit is automatically set to standby.
Video:	With an input source being selected that is assigned either "HDMI", "COMP" or "VIDEO", when you turn the power of the TV off, power to this unit is automatically set to standby. (() 171)
Off:	This unit does not link with power to a TV.

• "Power Off Control" can be set when "HDMI Control" is set to "On". (1257 p. 160)

Power Saving

If "TV Speaker" is set as the audio output setting of your TV, this unit is automatically set to standby mode to reduce power consumption. This function is activated in the following cases.

- When "TV Audio" is selected as the input source of this unit
- When playing content from a device connected by HDMI

On:	Use Power Saving function.
Off (Default):	Do not use Power Saving function.

• "Power Saving" can be set when "HDMI Control" is set to "On". (1 p. 160)







Smart Menu

This function can be used to configure the settings of this unit, select an input source and set Tuner and Internet Radio stations using the TV remote control.

On:	Use Smart Menu function.
Off:	Do not use Smart Menu function.

• "Smart Menu" can be set when "HDMI Control" is set to "On". (12 p. 160)

NOTE

- If the "Smart Menu" settings have been changed, always reset the power to connected devices after the change.
- The Smart Menu function may not work properly depending on the specifications of your TV. In this case, set "Smart Menu" to "Off".

Front panel









Output Settings

Makes settings for video output.

¢,

- "Output Settings" cannot be set when 4K signals are input.
- "Video Mode", "i/p Scaler", "Resolution", "Progressive Mode" and "Aspect Ratio" settings are stored for each input source. (" Video Mode " (2 p. 165), " i/p Scaler " (2 p. 165), " Resolution " (2 p. 166), " Progressive Mode " (2 p. 166), " Aspect Ratio " (2 p. 166))

HDMI Video Output

Select the HDMI monitor connector to be used.

Auto(Dual) (Default):	The presence of a TV connected to the HDMI MONITOR 1 or HDMI MONITOR 2 connector is detected automatically, and that TV connection is used.
Monitor 1:	A TV connected to the HDMI MONITOR 1 connector is always used.
Monitor 2:	A TV connected to the HDMI MONITOR 2 connector is always used.

- If both the HDMI MONITOR 1 and HDMI MONITOR 2 connectors are connected and "Resolution" is set to "Auto", the signals are output with a resolution that is compatible with both TVs. (@p p. 166)
 When the "Resolution" setting in the menu is not set to "Auto", set the resolution in "Video" - "HDMI Monitor 1" and "HDMI Monitor 2" to one that is compatible with both TVs. (@p p. 212)
- You can check which resolutions are compatible with your TV in "HDMI Monitor 1" and "HDMI Monitor 2". (@ p. 212)
- When connecting multiple Dolby Vision TVs, the signal will only be optimal for one TV. A TV connected to the HDMI MONITOR 1 connector has priority.

Front panel



Video Mode

Configure the video processing method to match the type of video content.

Auto (Default):	Process video automatically based on the HDMI content information.
Game:	Always process video for game content. Minimize the video delay when the video is delayed compared to the button operations on the controller of the game console.
Movie:	Perform image processing that is suitable for contents other than games.
Bypass:	Remove all video processing from the HDMI video path.

- If "Video Mode" is set to "Auto", the mode is switched according to the input contents.
- Information displays such as the volume bar cannot be overlaid with the video signal when "Video Mode" is set to "Bypass".
- This item can be set when "HDMI" is assigned for each input source.

■ i/p Scaler

Set the video input signal to be subjected to i/p Scaler processing. i/p Scaler will convert the resolution of the input video signal to the value set in "Resolution". (\mathbb{T} p. 166)

On:	Use i/p Scaler function.
Off:	Do not use i/p Scaler function.

- This item can be set when "HDMI" is assigned for each input source.
- This item can be set when "Video Mode" is set to anything other than "Bypass". (\mathfrak{T} p. 165)
- This function is not effective when the input signal is "x.v.Color", 3D, sYCC601 color, Adobe RGB color, Adobe YCC601 color or computer resolutions.







Resolution

Set the output resolution.

Auto (Default):	The resolution supported by the TV connected to the HDMI MONITOR OUT connector is detected automatically and the appropriate output resolution is set.
480p/576p / 1080i / 720p / 1080p / 1080p:24Hz / 4K :	Set the output resolution.

- When set to "1080p:24Hz", you can enjoy film-like pictures for film sources (in 24 Hz). For video sources and mixed sources, we recommend setting the resolution to "1080p".
- It is not possible to convert a 50 Hz signal into 1080p/24Hz. It is output at a resolution of 1080p/50Hz.
- This item can be set when "i/p Scaler" is set to "On". (I p. 165)

Progressive Mode

Set an appropriate progressive conversion mode for the source video signal.

Auto (Default):	The video signal is automatically detected and the appropriate mode is set.
Video:	Select mode suitable for video playback.
Video and Film:	Select mode suitable for video and 30- frame film material playback.

• This item can be set when "i/p Scaler" is set to "On". (I p. 165)

Aspect Ratio

Set the aspect ratio for the video signals output to the HDMI.

16:9 (Default):	Output at 16:9 aspect ratio.
4:3 :	Output at 4:3 aspect ratio with black bars on the sides of a 16:9 TV screen. (except for 480p/576p output)

• This item can be set when "i/p Scaler" is set to "On". (127 p. 165)





On Screen Display

Select the on-screen display user interface preferences.

Volume

Sets where to display the volume level.

Bottom (Default):	Display at the bottom.
Тор:	Display at the top.
Off:	Turn display off.

• When the master volume display is hard to see when superimposed text (closed captioning) or movie subtitles are present, set to "Top".

Info

Displays status of operation temporarily when the input source is switched.

On (Default):	Turn display on.	
Off:	Turn display off.	

Now Playing

Sets the display time for the playback display when the input source is "HEOS Music" or "Tuner".

Always On (Default):	Show display continuously.
Auto Off:	Show display for 30 seconds after operation.







4K Signal Format

Set the 4K signal format to be played back by this unit when the TV or playback device connected to this unit is HDMI 4K (60Hz/50Hz) signal compatible.

4K Signal Format

Set the format of the 4K signal played back by this unit.

Standard (Default):	Select if your TV and playback devices support standard 4K 60p 4:2:0 8 bit video signals.
Enhanced:	Select if your TV, playback devices, and cables support high quality 4K 60p 4:4:4, 4:2:2 or 4K 60p 4:2:0 10 bit video signals.

[Relation between the "4K Signal Format" setting and supported resolutions]

Tips

Support	Color	Color Bixol	4K Signal Format	
Resolution Space	Space	Depth	Enhanced	Standard (Default)
4K 24p, 4K	RGB /	8 bit	\checkmark	\checkmark
30p, 4K 25p	YCbCr 4:4:4	10,12 bit	\checkmark	-
	YCbCr 4:2:2	12 bit	\checkmark	\checkmark
4K 60p, 4K 50p	YCbCr 4:2:0	8 bit	\checkmark	\checkmark
		10,12 bit	\checkmark	-
	RGB / YCbCr 4:4:4	8 bit	\checkmark	-
	YCbCr 4:2:2	12 bit	\checkmark	-







- When setting this to "Enhanced", we recommend using a "Premium High Speed HDMI Cable" or "Premium High Speed HDMI Cable with Ethernet" that has an "HDMI Premium Certified Cable" label attached to the product package.
- When this setting is "Enhanced", configure the television or playback device settings to match this setting.
- When this setting is "Enhanced", video may not be output correctly depending on the connected playback device or HDMI cable. In this case, change this setting to "Standard".
- "Custom" is displayed for the setting item if our service engineers or custom installers has configured the HDMI signal format for this unit.
- "4K Signal Format" can also be set by the following procedure. However, the menu screen is not displayed. Watch the display while configuring the setting.
- 1. Press and hold the main unit's TUNER PRESET CH + and TUNE + at the same time for at least 3 seconds.

"V.Format:<NTSC>" appears on the display.

- 2. Press the main unit's DIMMER.
 - "4K :<Standard>" appears on the display.
- 3. Use the main unit's TUNER PRESET CH + or TUNER PRESET CH and select the 4K Signal Format.
- 4. Press the main unit's STATUS to complete the setting.

TV Format

Set the video signal format to be output for the TV you are using.

Format

NTSC (Default):	Select NTSC output.
PAL:	Select PAL output.

- "Format" can also be set by the following procedure. However, the menu screen is not displayed. Following the display content to make the setting.
 - 1. Press and hold the main unit's TUNER PRESET CH + and TUNE + at the same time for at least 3 seconds.

"V.Format:<NTSC>" appears on the display.

- 2. Use the main unit's TUNER PRESET CH + or TUNER PRESET CH and set the video signal format.
- 3. Press the main unit's STATUS to complete the setting.

NOTE

• When a format other than the video format of the connected TV is set, the picture will not be displayed properly.

169

Remote



Inputs

Perform settings related to input source playback.

You do not have to change the settings to use the unit. Make settings when needed.

Input Assign

By making connections as indicated by the input sources printed on the audio/video input connectors of this unit, you can just press one of the input source select buttons to easily play back audio or video from a connected device.

Please change the assignment of the HDMI input connector, digital audio input connector, analog audio input connector, component video input connector and video input connector when connecting an input source that differs from that printed to the audio/video input connectors of this unit.

Sets the audio input mode for each "INPUT MODE" source. "AUTO" is normally recommended for this setting. This automatically detects and plays signal input to this unit prioritized in the following order: HDMI > DIGITAL > ANALOG.

• By default, each item is set as follows.

Input source	Input connector			INPUT	
input source	HDMI	DIGITAL	ANALOG	VIDEO	MODE
CBL/SAT	1	COAX	1	VIDEO1	AUTO
DVD	2	-	2	COMP1	AUTO
Blu-ray	3	-	3	VIDEO2	AUTO
Game	4	OPT2	-	COMP2	AUTO
Media Player	5	-	-	-	HDMI
TV Audio	-	OPT1	-	-	DIGITAL
AUX1	FRONT	-	-	-	HDMI
AUX2	6	-	-	-	HDMI
CD	-	-	4	-	ANALOG







TV set top box/satellite users please note

When using the digital audio output on a TV/satellite box:

To play the video signal assigned to "HDMI" combined with the audio signal assigned at "Input Assign" - "DIGITAL", you will also need to select "DIGITAL" in the "INPUT MODE".

Ó

 The same input connector can be assigned to multiple input sources. For example, assign the same HDMI input connector to multiple sources to use each input source in combination with analog or digital audio as you prefer. In such cases, set the audio connector for playback in "INPUT MODE". (This feature will be supported via firmware update.)

I HDMI

Set this to change the HDMI input connectors assigned to the input sources.

1/2/3/4/5/6/7/ FRONT:	Assign an HDMI input connector to the selected input source.
-:	Do not assign an HDMI input connector to the selected input source.

- When "HDMI Control" or "ARC" is set to "On" in the menu, "HDMI" cannot be assigned to "TV Audio". (" HDMI Control " (127 p. 160), "ARC" (127 p. 161))
- The eARC function does not operate when "HDMI" is set as the "TV Audio" input source.

DIGITAL

Set this to change the digital audio input connectors assigned to the input sources.

COAX (Coaxial) / OPT1 (Optical) / OPT2:	Assign a digital audio input connector to the selected input source.
-:	Do not assign a digital audio input connector to the selected input source.

Set this to change the analog audio input connectors assigned to the input sources.

1/2/3/4:	Assign a analog audio input connector to the selected input source.
-:	Do not assign a analog audio input connector to the selected input source.

Set this to change the component video input connectors and composite video input connectors assigned to the input sources.

COMP1 (Component video) / COMP2 / VIDEO1 / VIDEO2:	Assign the video input connector to the selected input source.
-:	Do not assign a video input connector to the selected input source.





INPUT MODE

Set the audio input modes for each input source.

It is normally recommended to set the audio input mode to "AUTO".

AUTO (Default):	Automatically detect input signal and perform playback.
HDMI:	Play only signals from HDMI input.
DIGITAL:	Play only signals from digital audio input.
ANALOG:	Play only signals from analog audio input.

- When digital signals are properly input, the DG indicator lights on the display. If the DG indicator does not light, check "Input Assign" and the connections. (CP p. 170)
- If "HDMI Control" is set to "On" and a TV compatible with the ARC is connected via the HDMI MONITOR 1 connectors, the input mode whose input source is "TV Audio" is fixed to ARC.
- When an eARC function-compatible television is connected to the HDMI MONITOR 1 connector, the input mode whose input source is "TV Audio" is fixed to eARC.

Set Defaults

The "Input Assign" settings are returned to the default settings.

Front panel







Source Rename

- Changes the display name of the input source.
 Once changed, the name is displayed on the display and menu screens of this unit.
- If the device name can be acquired from a connected HDMI device, the display name is changed automatically.

Use this function to change names as needed when the device you are using differs from the input source on this unit. (This feature will be supported via firmware update.)

CBL/SAT / DVD / Blu-ray / Game / AUX1 / AUX2 / Media Player / CD / TV Audio / Phono:	Change the display name for input source.
Set Defaults:	The "Source Rename" settings are returned to the default settings.

• Up to 16 characters can be input.

Hide Sources

Remove from the display input sources that are not used.

Show (Default):	Use this source.
Hide:	Do not use this source.

Source Level

This function corrects the playback level of the selected input source's audio input.

Make this setting if there are differences in the input volume levels between the different sources.

-12 dB - +12 dB (Default : 0 dB)

<u>s</u>

• "Source Level" settings are stored for each input source.







0	_	-	~ ~	+-
C	υ	nι	en	ιs

Tips

Speakers

The acoustic characteristics of the connected speakers and listening room are measured and the optimum settings are made automatically. This is called "Audyssey[®] Setup".

You do not have to perform Audyssey® Setup when you have already performed "Speaker Calibration" in "Setup Assistant".

To set up the speakers manually, use "Manual Setup" on the menu. (127 p. 184)

Audyssey[®] Setup

To perform measurement, place the Sound calibration microphone in multiple locations all around the listening area. For best results, we recommend you measure in six positions, as shown in the illustration.

When measuring the second and subsequent positions, install the Sound calibration microphone within 2 ft (60 cm) of the first measurement position (main listening position).



 If you perform Audyssey[®] Setup, Audyssey MultEQ[®], Audyssey Dynamic EQ[®] and Audyssey Dynamic Volume[®] functions are enabled. (127 p. 153)



Front panel

174



Index

Remote

About the main listening position

The main listening position is the position where listeners would normally sit or where one would normally sit alone within the listening environment. Before starting Audyssey[®] Setup, place the Sound calibration microphone in the main listening position.

Audyssey MultEQ $^{\otimes}$ uses the measurements from this position to calculate speaker distance, level, polarity, and the optimum crossover value for the subwoofer.

NOTE

- Make the room as quiet as possible. Background noise can disrupt the room measurements. Close windows and turn off the power on electronic devices (radios, air conditioners, fluorescent lights, etc.). The measurements could be affected by the sounds emitted by such devices.
- During the measurement process, place cell phones outside the listening room. Cell phone signals could disrupt the measurements.
- Do not stand between the speakers and Sound calibration microphone or allow obstacles in the path while the measurements are being made. Also, install the Sound calibration microphone at least 20 inches (50 cm) away from the wall.
 Failure to do so will result in inaccurate readings.
- During the measurement process, audible test tones will come from the speakers and subwoofer(s), but this is part of normal operation. If there is background noise in the room, these test signals will increase in volume.
- Operating VOLUME ▲ ▼ on the remote control unit or MASTER VOLUME on the main unit during the measurements will cancel the measurements.
- Measurement cannot be performed when headphones are connected. Unplug the headphones before performing Audyssey® Setup.









Contents Connections Playback		Settings Tips Appendix
Procedure for speaker settings (Audyssey [®] Setup)	1	Attach the Sound calibration microphone to the supplied microphone stand or own tripod and install it at the main listening position.
Preparation		When installing the Sound calibration microphone, point the tip of the microphone toward the ceiling and adjust the height to match the height of the ears of a listener in a seated position.
Measurement	2	If using a subwoofer capable of the following adjustments, set up the subwoofer as shown below.
•		When using a subwoofer with a direct mode
Calculation & Store		Set the direct mode to "On" and disable the volume adjustment and crossover frequency setting.
+		When using a subwoofer without a direct mode
Check		Make the following settings:
•		 Volume : 12 o'clock position Crossover frequency : Maximum/Highest Frequency Low pass filter : Off
(Finish		Standby mode : Off





3 Connect the Sound calibration microphone to the SETUP MIC jack of this unit.



When the Sound calibration microphone is connected, the following screen is displayed.

Audyssey Setup Your AV receiver can automat your room then optimize your microphone and microphone :	cally measure the acoustics of speakers using the included tand.
Set the following items	
if necessary.	
Amp Assign	
Channel Select	
Dolby Speaker Setup	
Start	

4 Select "Start", then press ENTER.

Audyssey® Setup can also make the following settings.

Amp Assign

The signals output from the SURROUND BACK speaker terminals can be switched in accordance with your speaker environment. (" Amp Assign " (127 p. 184))

Channel Select

If channels that are not to be used are set in advance, measurement for the set channels is skipped, and measuring time can be reduced. You can also change the number of surround back speakers.

Dolby Speaker Setup

Set the distance between the Dolby Atmos Enabled speaker and the ceiling.

This can be set when "Assign Mode" is set to "Front Dolby" or "Surround Dolby" in the "Amp Assign" settings. (127 p. 184)

5 Follow the instructions on the screen display and press "Next" to proceed further.

Front panel





 Contents
 Connections
 Playback
 Settings
 Tips
 Appendix

 6
 When the following screen is displayed, select "Begin Test" and then press ENTER. Start the measurement of the first position.
 7
 When the detected speaker is displayed, select "Next" and then press ENTER.



• Measurement requires several minutes.

NOTE

Front panel

- If "Caution!" is displayed on TV screen:
 - Go to "Error messages" (127 p. 182). Check any related items, and perform the necessary procedures.





Next

Audyssey Setup

:Yes

:Yes

:Yes

:No

Front

Center

Subwoofer

Surround

Surr. Back

Repeat Last Test



8 Move the Sound calibration microphone to position 2, select "Continue", then press ENTER.

The measurement of the second position starts. Measurements can be made in up to six positions.



□ Stopping Audyssey[®] Setup

- (1) Press BACK to display the popup screen.
- $\overline{(2)}$ Press \triangleleft to select "Yes", then press ENTER.

9 Repeat step 8, measuring positions 3 to 6.

Tips

• To skip measuring the fourth and subsequent listening position, press ⊲ to select "Complete" and press ENTER to proceed to step 11.

10 Select "Continue", then press ENTER.



Start the analysis and storage of the measurement results.

· Analysis takes several minutes to complete.

The more speakers and measurement positions that there are, the more time it takes to perform the analysis.

NOTE

• When the measurement results are being saved, make sure the power is not turned off.

Front panel







Playback

11 Perform the settings for Audyssey Dynamic EQ[®] and Audyssey Dynamic Volume[®].

The following screen is displayed during the analysis. Configure the settings as preferred.

sound at low volumes letting you enjoy late-night movies
and television.
Turn on Dynamic EQ?
Yes No
Analyzing room data
50%

• Dynamic EQ corrects the frequency response in consideration of the audio characteristics of the room and human hearing ability so that sound can be heard even at low volume.

This is recommended when using the unit with the volume turned down, e.g. when enjoying a movie or TV program in the middle of the night.

• Dynamic Volume adjusts the output volume to the optimal level while constantly monitoring the level of the audio input to the unit. Optimal volume control is performed automatically without any loss in the dynamism and clarity of the sound when, for example, the volume suddenly increases for commercials shown during television programs. 2 When the analysis and storage ends, unplug the Sound calibration microphone from the SETUP MIC jack on the main unit and then press "Next".

Now Pleas	Audyssey Se Analyzing and o se disconnect th	tup correcting you e microphone	r room data from your	AUDYSSEY OYNAME MOLTER a. AV receiver.	
_	Applying Back	g room correct	ions	100% Next	






13 Select "Details" and press ENTER to verify the measurement results.

 Subwoofers may measure a greater reported distance than the actual distance due to added electrical delay common in subwoofers.

NOTE

 Do not change the speaker connection or subwoofer volume after Audyssey[®] Setup. If these are changed, run Audyssey[®] Setup again in order to configure the optimum equalizer settings.











Error messages

An error message is displayed if Audyssey[®] Setup could not be completed due to speaker placement, the measurement environment, etc. If an error message is displayed, check the relevant items and perform the necessary measures. Be sure to turn off the power before checking speaker connections.

Examples	Error details	Measures
No speakers found.	 Sound calibration microphone is not detected. 	Connect the included Sound calibration microphone to the SETUP MIC jack of this unit.
	Not all speakers could be detected.	Check the speaker connections.
Ambient noise is too high or level is too	There is too much noise in the room.	• Either turn off any device generating noise or move it away.
low		Perform again when the surroundings are quieter.
	Speaker or subwoofer sound is too low.	• Check the speaker installation and the direction in which the speakers are facing.
		Adjust the subwoofer's volume.
Front R : None	 The displayed speaker could not be detected. 	Check the connections of the displayed speaker.
Front R : Phase	• The displayed speaker is connected with the	Check the polarity of the displayed speaker.
	polarity reversed.	• For some speakers, this error message may be displayed even if the speaker is properly connected. If you are sure the connection is correct, press ▷ to select "Ignore", then press ENTER.





Retrieving Audyssey® Setup settings

If you set "Restore..." to "Restore", you can return to Audyssey[®] Setup measurement result (value calculated at the start by MultEQ[®]) even when you have changed each setting manually.

💍 Audyssey Setu	p MUDYSSEY
Your AV receiver can a your room then optimi microphone and micro	utomatically measure the acoustics of ze your speakers using the included phone stand.
Set the following items	
if necessary.	
Amp Assign	
Channel Select	
Dolby Speaker Setup	
Check Results	
Restore	
Start	







Manual Setup

Perform when setting the speakers manually or when changing settings made in ${\rm Audyssey}^{\circledast}$ Setup.

- If you add or remove a speaker after performing Audyssey[®] Setup, you will no longer be able to select Audyssey MultEQ[®], Audyssey Dynamic EQ[®] or Audyssey Dynamic Volume[®]. (127 p. 153)
- "Manual Setup" can be used without changing the settings. Please set if necessary.

Amp Assign

Select the power amplifier usage method to match your speaker system. See "Speaker configuration and "Amp Assign" settings" (P p. 41) regarding the speaker configuration and connection.

Assign Mode

Select how to use the power amp.

Surround Back:	Setting for 7.1-channel playback using surround back speakers.
Front Height:	Setting for 7.1-channel playback using front height speakers.
Top Front:	Setting for 7.1-channel playback using top front speakers.
Top Middle:	Setting for 7.1-channel playback using top middle speakers.
Front Dolby:	Setting for 7.1-channel playback using front Dolby Atmos Enabled speakers.
Surround Dolby:	Setting for 7.1-channel playback using surround Dolby Atmos Enabled speakers.
ZONE2 (Default):	Setting to assign the unit's built-in power amplifier for ZONE2 and output the audio in stereo.

184



Speaker Config.

Select whether or not speakers are present, playback capacity for low bass frequencies and speaker size.

Front

Set the front speaker size.

Large (Default):	Use a large speaker that can adequately play back very low bass frequencies.
Small:	Use a small speaker that has inadequate playback capacity for very low bass frequencies.

- When "Subwoofer" is set to "No", "Front" is automatically set to "Large".
- When "Front" is set to "Small", you cannot set speakers other than "Front" to "Large".

Center

Set the presence and size of the center speaker.

Large:	Use a large speaker that can adequately play back very low bass frequencies.
Small (Default):	Use a small speaker that has inadequate playback capacity for very low bass frequencies.
None:	Select when a center speaker is not connected.

Subwoofer

Set the presence of a subwoofer.

Yes (Default):	Use a subwoofer.
No:	Select when a subwoofer is not connected.

 When "Subwoofer" is set to "No" and you set "Front" to "Small", "Subwoofer" is automatically set to "Yes".





Surround

Set the presence and size of the surround speakers.

Large:	Use a large speaker that can adequately play back very low bass frequencies.
Small (Default):	Use a small speaker that has inadequate playback capacity for very low bass frequencies.
None:	Select when the surround speakers are not connected.

 When "Surround" is set to "None", "Surr. Back" and "Surround Dolby" are automatically set to "None".

Surr. Back

Set the presence, size and number of surround back speakers.

Large:	Use a large speaker that can adequately play back very low bass frequencies.
Small (Default):	Use a small speaker that has inadequate playback capacity for very low bass frequencies.
None:	Select when the surround back speakers are not connected.
2 spkrs (Default):	Use two surround back speakers.
1 spkr:	Use only one surround back speaker. Connect to the L terminal to SURROUND BACK when this setting is selected.

When "Assign Mode" setting is "Surround Back", you can make this setting.
 (12) p. 184)





Front Height

Set the presence and size of the front height speakers.

Large:	Use a large speaker that can adequately play back very low bass frequencies.
Small (Default):	Use a small speaker that has inadequate playback capacity for very low bass frequencies.
None:	Select when the front height speakers are not connected.

When "Assign Mode" setting is "Front Height", you can make this setting.
 (12) p. 184)

Top Front

Set the presence and size of the top front speakers.

Large:	Use a large speaker that can adequately play back very low bass frequencies.
Small (Default):	Use a small speaker that has inadequate playback capacity for very low bass frequencies.
None:	Select when the top front speakers are not connected.

Ó

• When "Assign Mode" setting is "Top Front", you can make this setting. (
 (
 () P. 184)









Top Middle

Set the presence and size of the top middle speakers.

Large:	Use a large speaker that can adequately play back very low bass frequencies.
Small (Default):	Use a small speaker that has inadequate playback capacity for very low bass frequencies.
None:	Select when the top middle speakers are not connected.

When "Assign Mode" setting is "Top Middle", you can make this setting.
 (1) p. 184)

Front Dolby

Set the presence and size of the front Dolby speakers.

Large:	Use a large speaker that can adequately play back very low bass frequencies.
Small (Default):	Use a small speaker that has inadequate playback capacity for very low bass frequencies.
None:	Select when the front Dolby speakers are not connected.

Ó

When "Assign Mode" setting is "Front Dolby", you can make this setting.
 (1) p. 184)









Surround Dolby

Set the presence and size of the surround Dolby speakers.

Large:	Use a large speaker that can adequately play back very low bass frequencies.
Small (Default):	Use a small speaker that has inadequate playback capacity for very low bass frequencies.
None:	Select when the surround Dolby speakers are not connected.

When "Assign Mode" setting is "Surround Dolby", you can make this setting.
 (12) p. 184)

Distances

Set distance from listening position to speakers.

Measure beforehand the distance from the listening position to each speaker.

Unit

Set the unit of distance.

Feet (Default)

Meters

Step

Set the minimum variable width of the distance.

1 ft / 0.1 ft (Default: 1 ft)

0.1 m / 0.01 m









Set the distance

0.0 ft - 60.0 ft / 0.00 m - 18.00 m

- The speakers that can be selected differ depending on the "Amp Assign" and "Speaker Config." settings. ("Amp Assign" (2 p. 184), "Speaker Config." (2 p. 185))
- Default settings: Front L / Front R / F. Height L / F. Height R / Center / Front Dolby L / Front Dolby R / Subwoofer: 12.0 ft (3.60 m) Speakers other than the above: 10.0 ft (3.00 m)
- Set the difference in the distance between the speakers to less than 20.0 ft (6.00 m).

Dolby Speaker Setup

Set the distance between the Dolby Atmos Enabled speaker and the ceiling.

3.0 ft - 11.0 ft / 0.90 m - 3.30 m (Default: 6.0 ft / 1.80 m)

• This can be set when "Front Dolby" or "Surround Dolby" is set to "Large" or "Small" in "Speaker Config.".

Set Defaults

The "Distances" settings are returned to the default settings.









Levels

Set the volume of the test tone to be the same at the listening position when it is output from each speaker.

Test Tone Start

A test tone is output from the selected speaker.

While listening to the test tone, adjust the volume output from the selected speaker.

-12.0 dB - +12.0 dB (Default : 0.0 dB)

- The set "Levels" are reflected in all sound modes.
- If you wish to adjust the channel level for each input source, carry out the settings in "Channel Level Adjust". (27 p. 107)
- When headphones are connected to the PHONES connector on this unit, you cannot set "Levels".

Set Defaults

The "Levels" settings are returned to the default settings.







Crossovers

Set in accordance with the lower limit frequency of the base frequencies that can be played back through each speaker. See the speaker manual for information concerning speaker crossover frequency.

Speaker Selection

Selects how to set the crossover frequency.

All (Default):	Sets the same crossover frequency for all speakers.
Individual:	Selects the crossover points for each speaker individually.

Set the crossover frequency

40 Hz / 60 Hz / 80 Hz / 90 Hz / 100 Hz / 110 Hz / 120 Hz / 150 Hz / 180 Hz / 200 Hz / 250 Hz (Default: 80 Hz)

Ó

- "Crossovers" can be set when the "Subwoofer Mode" setting is "LFE+Main", or when you have a speaker that is set to "Small". (127 p. 193)
- The default crossover frequency is "80 Hz", which will work best with the widest variety of speakers. We recommend setting to a higher frequency that the crossover frequency when small speakers are used. For example, set to "250 Hz" when the frequency range of the speakers is 250 Hz – 20 kHz.
- Sound below the crossover frequency is cut off from the output of the speakers set in "Small". This cut off bass frequency is output from the subwoofer or front speakers.
- The speakers that can be set when "Individual" is selected differ depending on to the "Subwoofer Mode" setting. (127 p. 193)
 - When "LFE" is selected, speakers set to "Small" at "Speaker Config." can be set. If the speakers are set to "Large", "Full Band" is displayed and the setting cannot be made. (127 p. 185)
 - When "LFE+Main" is selected, speakers can be set regardless of the "Speaker Config." setting. (127 p. 185)

Front panel

192





Bass

Set subwoofer and LFE signal range playback.

Subwoofer Mode

Select low range signals to be reproduced by subwoofer.

LFE (Default):	The low range signal of the channel set to "Small" speaker size is added to the LFE signal output from the subwoofer.
LFE+Main:	The low range signal of all channels is added to the LFE signal output from the subwoofer.

- "Subwoofer Mode" can be set when "Speaker Config." "Subwoofer" on the menu is set to other than "No". (127 p. 185)
- Play music or a movie source and select the mode offering the strongest bass.
- If "Speaker Config." "Front" and "Center" are set to "Large", and "Subwoofer Mode" is set to "LFE", no sound may be output from the subwoofers, depending on the input signal or selected sound mode. (127 p. 185) Select "LFE+Main" if you want the bass signals to always be produced from the subwoofer.

LPF for LFE

Set LFE signal playback range. Set this when you want to change the playback frequency (low pass filter point) of the subwoofer.

80 Hz / 90 Hz / 100 Hz / 110 Hz / 120 Hz / 150 Hz / 180 Hz / 200 Hz / 250 Hz (Default: 120 Hz)





Network

To use this unit by connecting it to a home network (LAN), you must configure network settings.

If you set up your home network (LAN) via DHCP, set "DHCP" to "On". (Use the default setting.) This allows this unit to use your home network (LAN). When assigning an IP address to each device manually, you need to assign an IP address to this unit using the "IP Address" settings, and enter information about your home network (LAN) such as the gateway address and subnet mask, etc.

Information

Display network information.

Friendly Name / Connection / SSID / DHCP / IP Address / MAC Address (Ethernet) / MAC Address (Wi-Fi) / Wi-Fi signal strength

Connection

Choose whether to connect the home network to a wireless LAN or a wired LAN.

When connecting to the network using wired LAN, select "Wired (Ethernet)" after connecting a LAN cable.

When connecting to the network using wireless LAN, select "Wireless (Wi-Fi)" and configure the "Wi-Fi Setup". (${\it I\!C\!P}$ p. 195)

Connect Using

Select the method for connecting to the home network (LAN).

Wired (Ethernet):	Use a LAN cable to connect to a network.
Wireless (Wi-Fi)	Use the wireless LAN (Wi-Fi) function to
(Default):	connect to a network.

194



Wi-Fi Setup

Connect to a wireless LAN (Wi-Fi) router.

The router can be connected in the following ways. Select the connection method to suit your home environment.

Scan Networks

Select the network you wish to connect to from the list of possible networks shown on the TV screen.

1. Select the network you wish to connect to from the list of wireless networks.

Select "Rescan" if the network cannot be found.

2. Enter your password and select "OK".

Use iOS Device

Use your iOS device (iPhone/iPod/iPad) to connect to the network. By connecting your iOS device to this unit using Wi-Fi, the unit can be automatically connected to the same network as your device.

- 1. Select "Use iOS Device" on the TV screen.
- Check that your iOS device is connected to the wireless LAN (Wi-Fi) router and select "Denon AVR-S950H" from "SET UP NEW AIRPLAY SPEAKER..." at the bottom of the Wi-Fi configuration screen of your iOS device.
- 3. Tap "Next" on the screen of the iOS device.

• The iOS device firmware version needs to support iOS 7 or later.









WPS Router

Use a WPS-compatible router to connect using the push button method.

- 1. Select "Push Button" on the TV screen.
- 2. Switch to the WPS mode by pressing the WPS button of the router you wish to connect to.
 - The time for pressing the button varies depending on the router.
- 3. Select "Connect" on the TV screen within 2 minutes.

Manual

Enter the name (SSID) and password of the network you wish to connect to.

1. Set the following items.

SSID:	Input the name of the wireless network (SSID).
Security:	Select the encryption method according to the encryption setting of the access point you are using.
Password:	Input the password.

2. Select "Connect" at the end of the setting.









- The wireless LAN (Wi-Fi) settings of this unit can also be configured from a PC or tablet that supports wireless LAN connection.
- 1. Press and hold the TUNE + and TUNE buttons on the main unit for at least 3 seconds when the power of the unit is on.
- Connect the wireless LAN of the PC or tablet used to "Denon AVR-S950H" when the message "Connect your Wi-Fi device to Wi-Fi network called "Denon AVR-S950H"." appears in the display.
- 3. Start up the browser and enter "192.168.1.16/Settings/" in the URL.
- 4. Use the browser to enter the settings, select "Connect" and then exit the settings.
- The Default key of this unit is fixed at "1". Set Default key of the router to "1" to use.

Settings

Configure the IP address.

- If you are using a broadband router (DHCP function), the information required for network connection such as the IP address will be automatically configured since the DHCP function is set to "On" in the default settings of this unit.
- Set up the IP Address, Subnet Mask, Default Gateway and DNS server information only when assigning a fixed IP address or when connecting to a network without DHCP function.

DHCP	Off
-IP Address	000.000.000.000
-Subnet Mask	000.000.000.000
-Default Gateway	000.000.000.000
-DNS	000.000.000.000







DHCP

Selects how to connect to the network.

On	Configure the network settings
(Default):	automatically from your router.
Off:	Configure the network settings manually.

IP Address

Set the IP address within the ranges shown below.

The Network Audio function cannot be used if other IP addresses are set.

CLASS A: 10.0.0.1 - 10.255.255.254

CLASS B: 172.16.0.1 - 172.31.255.254

CLASS C: 192.168.0.1 - 192.168.255.254

Subnet Mask

When connecting an xDSL modem or connector adapter directly to this unit, input the subnet mask indicated in the documentation supplied by your provider. Normally input "255.255.255.0".

Default Gateway

When connected to a gateway (router), input its IP address.

DNS

Enter the DNS address indicated in the documentation supplied by your provider.

- If you cannot connect to the Internet, recheck the connections and settings. (${ \ensuremath{\mathbb{C}}}^{\mathbf{p}}$ p. 63)
- If you do not understand about Internet connection, contact your ISP (Internet Service Provider) or the store from which you purchased your computer.





Network Control

Enables network communication in standby power mode.

Off In Standby:	Suspend network function during standby.	
Always On (Default):	Network is on during standby. Main unit operable with a network compatible controller.	

ø

• When using the web control function, Denon 2016 AVR Remote App or HEOS App, use with the "Network Control" setting set to "Always On".

NOTE

When "Network Control" is set to "Always On", the unit consumes more standby power.

Friendly Name

The Friendly Name is the name of this unit displayed on the network. You can change the Friendly Name according to your preferences.

Friendly Name

Selects Friendly Name from the list.

When you select "Other", you can change the Friendly Name according to your preferences.

Home Theater /Living Room / Family Room / Guest Room / Kitchen / Dining Room / Master Bedroom / Bedroom / Den / Office / Other

- Up to 30 characters can be input.
- The default Friendly Name on first use is "Denon AVR-S950H".

Set Defaults

Restores Friendly Name, which you had changed, to the default setting.

Front panel

199





Diagnostics

Used to check the network connection.

Physical Connection

Checks the physical LAN port connection.

ОК

Error:

The LAN cable is not connected. Check the connection.

Ó

• When connected using a wireless LAN, "Connection Wireless (Wi-Fi)" will be displayed.

Router Access

Checks the connection from this unit to the router.

ок

Error: Failed to communicate with the router. Check the router settings.

Internet Access

Checks whether this unit has access to the Internet (WAN).

ОК	
Error:	Failed to connect to the Internet. Check the Internet connection environment or router settings.

AirPlay Settings for Apple AirPlay. On (Default): Enables Apple AirPlay. Off: Disables Apple AirPlay.





HEOS Account

Make HEOS Account-related settings.

HEOS Account is needed in order to use HEOS Favorites.

The menu displayed differs depending on the status of the HEOS Account.

You have not signed in

I have a HEOS Account

If you already have a HEOS Account, enter the current account name and password to sign in.

Create Account

If you do not have a HEOS Account, create a new HEOS Account.

Forgot Password

If you have forgotten the password, an email explaining how to reset the password will be sent.

You have already signed in

Signed in As

The currently signed in HEOS Account is displayed.

Change Location

Change the regional settings for the signed in HEOS Account.

Change Password

Change the password for the signed in HEOS Account.

Delete Account

Delete the signed in HEOS Account.

Sign Out

Sign out from the HEOS Account.







General

Make various other settings.

Language

Set the language for display the menu on the TV screen.

English / Français / Español (Default: English)

- "Language" can also be set up by the following operation. However, the menu screen is not displayed. Watch the display while configuring the settings.
- 1. Press and hold the main unit's TUNER PRESET CH + and TUNE + at the same time for at least 3 seconds.
 - "V.Format:< NTSC>" appears on the display.
- 2. Press DIMMER on the main unit twice.
 - "Lang.:<ENGLISH >" appears on the display.
- 3. Use the main unit's TUNER PRESET CH + or TUNER PRESET CH and set the language.
- 4. Press the main unit's STATUS to complete the setting.

ECO

Configure the ECO Mode and auto standby mode settings.

ECO Mode

This mode can reduce the power consumption and heat generation of this unit when power on.

This is done by reducing the power supply line to the power amplifier, in turn the maximum power output.





Playback

On:	Power savings are always active, regardless of volume or input signal.
Auto (Default):	Gives you the best balance between power savings and maximum power output: For low volume levels, the power savings are active. If you increase the volume level, the power savings are switched off automatically, so you can enjoy maximum output power without distortion. If the volume is set to a high level but no input signal is detected for more than 2 minutes, this unit will enable power savings. When an input signal is detected again or the input source is changed, this unit will automatically turn off power savings again at high volume levels.
Off:	No power savings.

- /hen the unit is switching between the different power saving states in "ECO lode: Auto", you may notice a click noise from the inside of this unit, this is ormal.
- content is paused for more than 2 minutes and playback is resumed from the ame source at these high volume levels, there may be short delay before aximum power is restored.
- ECO Mode" can also be switched by pressing ECO I on the remote control nit.





Power On Default

Set the mode to ECO when the power is on.

Last (Default):	The ECO Mode will be set to the previous setting before the power was switched off.
On:	When power is turned on, the mode will always be switched to the ECO Mode in "On".
Auto:	When power is turned on, the mode will always be switched to the ECO Mode in "Auto".
Off:	When power is turned on, the mode will always be switched to the ECO Mode in "Off".

On Screen Display

Display the power consumption of this unit using a meter on the TV screen.

Always On:	Always display the meter on the TV screen.
Auto (Default):	Display the meter when changing the mode or volume.
Off:	Do not display the meter.





Auto Standby

Set so the unit power automatically switches to standby.

MAIN ZONE

Sets the time for switching to auto standby when there are no audio or video signals input into this unit.

Before the unit enters standby mode, "Auto Standby" is displayed on the unit display and the menu screen.

60 min:	The unit goes into standby after 60 minutes.
30 min:	The unit goes into standby after 30 minutes.
15 min:	The unit goes into standby after 15 minutes.
Off (Default):	The unit does not go into standby automatically.

ZONE2

When there are no operations for a certain period of time as set here, the power is automatically shut off even if there is audio or video input.

8 hours:	Switches ZONE2 the standby state after about 8 hours.
4 hours:	Switches ZONE2 to the standby state after about 4 hours.
2 hours:	Switches ZONE2 to the standby state after about 2 hours.
Off (Default):	Does not automatically switch ZONE2 to the standby state.





ZONE2 Setup

Makes settings for audio playback with ZONE2.

- Values set for "Volume Limit" and "Power On Volume" are displayed according to the setting specified for the volume "Scale". (IPP p. 152)
- This can be set when "Assign Mode" is set to "ZONE2". (127 p. 184)

Lch Level

Adjust the left channel output level.

-12 dB - +12 dB (Default : 0 dB)

Rch Level

Adjust the right channel output level.

-12 dB - +12 dB (Default : 0 dB)

Volume Level

Set the volume output level.

Variable (Default):	Volume can be adjusted.
1 – 98 (–79 dB – 18 dB):	Volume is fixed at the desired level. The volume cannot be adjusting using the remote control unit.

The dB value is displayed when the "Scale" setting is "-79.5 dB - 18.0 dB".
 (CP p. 152)

Volume Limit

Make a setting for maximum volume.

60 (-20 dB) / 70 (-10 dB) / 80 (0 dB) (Default : 70 (-10 dB))

Off:

Do not set a maximum volume.

- This can be set when "Volume Level" is set to "Variable". (1 p. 206)
- The dB value is displayed when the "Scale" setting is " –79.5 dB 18.0 dB". ($\textcircled{\mbox{res}}$ p. 152)



Power On Volume

Define the volume setting that is active when the power is turned on.

Last (Default):	Use the memorized setting from the last session.
Mute:	Always mute when power is turned on.
1 – 98 (–79 dB – 18 dB):	The volume is adjusted to the set level.

- This can be set when "Volume Level" is set to "Variable". (@ p. 206)
- The dB value is displayed when the "Scale" setting is "-79.5 dB 18.0 dB".
 (12) p. 152)

Mute Level

Set the amount of attenuation when muting is on.

Full (Default):	The sound is muted entirely.
-40 dB :	The sound is attenuated by 40 dB down.
-20 dB :	The sound is attenuated by 20 dB down.

Zone Rename

Change the display title of each zone to one you prefer.

MAIN ZONE / ZONE2

Set Defaults: The default setting is restored for the edited zone name.

• Up to 10 characters can be input.

Quick Select Names

Change the quick select name that appears on the TV screen to one you prefer.

Quick Select 1 / Quick Select 2 / Quick Select 3 / Quick Select 4

Sot Dofaulte:	The default setting is restored for the edited
Set Delaults.	quick select name.

• Up to 16 characters can be input.







Front Display

Makes settings related to the display on this unit.

Dimmer

Adjust the display brightness of this unit.

Bright (Default):	Normal display brightness.
Dim:	Reduced display brightness.
Dark:	Very low display brightness.
Off:	Turns the display off.

• You can also adjust the display by pressing DIMMER on the main unit.







Firmware

Checks for the latest firmware information about updates and upgrades, updates the firmware, and sets up the notification message display for upgrades.

Check for Update

Check for firmware updates.

The firmware can be updated if a firmware update has been released.

Update Now:	Execute the update process. When the update starts, the menu screen is shut down. During the update, the progress is shown on the display.
Update Later:	Update later.

 This unit automatically retries updating if updating fails. If an update still cannot be performed, an "Update Error" message appears in the display. See "Troubleshooting" – "Update/upgrade error messages" for information on update error messages. (IPP p. 237)

Check the conditions according to the message and try the update again.

• This menu cannot be selected when "Allow Update" is set to "Off".

Auto-Update

Turns on Automatic Updates so that futures updates are automatically downloaded and installed when this unit is in standby mode.

□ Auto-Update

This unit will automatically update to the newest firmware when in standby mode.

On:	Turns on Automatic Updates.
Off (Default):	Turns off Automatic Updates.

Time Zone

Change the time zone.

Set the time zone that matches the area where you live.



• This menu cannot be selected when "Allow Update" is set to "Off".





Allow Update

Enable or disable updates and upgrades for this unit.

On (Default):	Enables this unit to receive updates and upgrades.
Off:	Prevents this unit from receiving update and upgrade.

• This setting causes Incompatibilities between this unit and HEOS App.

Upgrade Notification

When the latest Upgrade firmware is available, a notification message is displayed on the TV screen at power on.

The notification message is displayed for about 40 seconds when the power is turned on.

On (Default):	Display upgrade message.
Off:	Do not display upgrade message.

<u>í</u>

• This menu cannot be selected when "Allow Update" is set to "Off".









Add New Feature

Display new features that can be downloaded to this unit and perform an upgrade.

Upgrade Package:	Display the items to be upgraded.
Upgrade Status:	Display a list of the additional functions provided by the upgrade.
Upgrade:	Execute the upgrade process. When the upgrade starts, the menu screen is shut down. During the upgrade, the amount of upgrade time which has elapsed is displayed.

- Information regarding the "Update" function and "Add New Feature" will be announced on the Denon website each time related plans are defined. See the Denon website for details about upgrades.
- When the procedure is complete, "Registered" is displayed in this menu and upgrades can be carried out. If the procedure has not been carried out, "------" is displayed.

The ID number shown on this screen is needed when carrying out the procedure.

The ID number can also be displayed by pressing and holding the main unit's ZONE2 SOURCE and TUNE + for at least 3 seconds.

 If the upgrade is not successful, "Upgrade Error" message appears in the display. See "Troubleshooting" – "Update/upgrade error messages" for information on upgrade error messages. (127 p. 237) Check the settings and network environment and then perform the upgrade again.

• This menu cannot be selected when "Allow Update" is set to "Off".

Notes concerning use of "Update" and "Add New Feature"

- In order to use these functions, you must have the correct system requirements and settings for an Internet connection. (127 p. 63)
- Do not turn off the power until updating or upgrading is completed.
- Approximately 1 hour is required for the updating/upgrading procedure to be completed.
- Once updating/upgrade starts, normal operations on this unit cannot be performed until updating/upgrading is completed. Furthermore, there may be cases where backup data is reset for the parameters, etc., set on this unit.
- If the update or upgrade fails, press and hold the O on the main unit for more than 5 seconds, or remove and re-insert the power cord. After about 1 minute, "Please wait" appears on the display and update restarts. If the error continues, check the network environment.









Playback

212

2

Appendix

Information

Contents

Show information about this unit settings, input signals, etc.

Audio

Show the audio information for MAIN ZONE.

Sound Mode:	The currently set sound mode.
Input Signal:	The input signal type.
Format:	The number of input signal channels (presence of front, surround, LFE).
Sample Rate:	The input signal's sampling frequency.
Offset:	The dialogue normalization correction value.
Flag:	This is displayed when inputting signals including a surround back channel. "MATRIX" is displayed with DTS-ES Matrix input signals, "DISCRETE" with DTS-ES Discrete signals.

Connections

Video

Settings

Show the HDMI input/output signals and HDMI monitor information for MAIN ZONE.

HDMI Signal Info.

Resolution / HDR / Color Space / Pixel Depth

HDMI Monitor 1 / HDMI Monitor 2

Interface / HDR / Resolutions

ZONE

Show information about current settings.

MAIN ZONE:	This item shows information about settings for MAIN ZONE. The information displayed differs according to the input source.
ZONE2:	This item shows information about settings for ZONE2.

Firmware

DTS Version:	Displays the current DTS version.
Version:	Displays information for the current firmware.

Index



Notifications

Displays and sets notifications.

Also, sets whether or not to display the notification when the power is turned on.

Notification Alerts

On (Default):	Notification messages are displayed.
Off:	Notification messages are not displayed.

• Press INFO on the remote control unit to display current source name, volume, sound mode name, and other information at the bottom of the screen.



Usage Data

To help us improve our products and customer service, Denon collects anonymous information about how you use this unit (such as frequently used input sources and sound modes and speaker settings).

Denon will never provide any information we collect to third parties.

Yes:	Provide information on the operating status of this unit.
No:	Do not provide information on the operating status of this unit.











Save & Load

Save and restore device settings by using a USB memory device.

- Use a USB memory device that has at least 128 MB of free space and is formatted to FAT32. Data may not Save/Load correctly to some USB memory devices.
- It may take up to 10 minutes for data to Save/Load. Do not turn off the power until the process is complete.

Save Configuration

Current unit settings are stored on the USB memory device. When the settings are saved correctly, "Saved" appears on the display and the file "config.avr" is created on the USB memory device.

• Do not change the file name of the created file. Doing so will prevent the file from being recognized as a settings file when restoring.

Load Configuration

Settings saved on the USB memory device are restored.

When the saved settings are restored correctly, "Loaded" appears on the display and the unit automatically restarts.

Setup Lock

Protect settings from inadvertent changes.

Lock

On:	Turn protection on.	
Off (Default):	Turn protection off.	

• When cancelling the setting, set "Lock" to "Off".

NOTE

• When "Lock" is set to "On", no setting items are displayed except for "Setup Lock".







Reset

Returns settings to the factory default.

Initialization can be performed for all unit settings or for Network settings only.

All Settings

All settings are reset to the factory default values.

Network Settings

Only network settings are reset to the factory default values.

- Before returning the settings to the default settings, use the "Save & Load" function from the menu to save and restore the details of various settings configured on the unit. (127 p. 214)
- The "Reset" operation can also be performed by using the button on the main unit. For details on resetting all of the settings to the factory defaults see "Resetting factory settings" (IP p. 238), and for details on resetting the network settings to the factory defaults see "Resetting network settings" (IP p. 239).

NOTE

• Do not disconnect the power or turn the device off during network settings initialization.












Contents

Tips

I want the volume not to become too loud by mistake	218
I want to keep the volume at the same level when I turn the power on	218
I want to have the subwoofer always output audio	218
I want to make human voices in the movies clearer	218
I want to keep bass and clarity during playback at a lower volume level	218
I want to automatically adjust the volume level difference in content such as TV and movies	218
I want to set the optimized listening environment after changing the configuration/position of the speakers or changing a speaker to a new one	219
I want to combine a desired video with the current music	219
I want to skip unused input sources	219
I want to enjoy the same music in all zones at the home party, etc.	219
I want to minimize the delay in video signals when I'm playing a game on my game console	219
I want to operate this unit using the TV remote control	219

Connections

Troubleshooting

Settings

Power does not turn on / Power is turned off	221
Operations cannot be performed through the remote control unit	222
Display on this unit shows nothing	222
No sound comes out	223
Desired sound does not come out	224
Sound is interrupted or noise occurs	227
No video is shown on the TV	228
The menu screen is not displayed on the TV	229
The color of the menu screen and operations content displayed on the television is different from normal	229
AirPlay cannot be played back	230
USB memory devices cannot be played back	231
Bluetooth cannot be played back	232
The Internet radio cannot be played back	233
Music files on PC or NAS cannot be played back	234
Various online services cannot be played	235
The HDMI Control function does not work	235
Cannot connect to a wireless LAN network	236
Update/upgrade error messages	237

Tips

Front panel

217

Remote



Playback

< ``

Tips

I want the volume not to become too loud by mistake

• Set the volume upper limit for "Volume Limit" in the menu beforehand. This prevents children or others from increasing the volume too much by mistake. You can set this for each zone. (" Volume " (197 p. 152), " Volume Limit " (197 p. 206))

I want to keep the volume at the same level when I turn the power on

By default, the volume setting when power was previously set to standby on this unit is applied at next power on with no change. To use a fixed volume level, set the volume level at power on for "Power On Volume" in the menu. You can set this for each zone. (" Volume " (127 p. 152), " Power On Volume" (127 p. 207))

I want to have the subwoofer always output audio

• Depending on the input signals and sound mode, the subwoofer may not output audio. When "Subwoofer Mode" in the menu is set to "LFE+Main", you can have the subwoofer always output audio. (127 p. 193)

I want to make human voices in the movies clearer

• Use "Center Level Adjust" in the menu to adjust the level. (127 p. 145)

I want to keep bass and clarity during playback at a lower volume level

• Set "Dynamic EQ" in the menu to "On". This setting corrects the frequency characteristics to allow you to enjoy clear sound without the bass being lost even during playback at a lower volume level. (1) p. 154)

I want to automatically adjust the volume level difference in content such as TV and movies

• Set "Dynamic Volume" in the menu. Volume level changes (between quiet scenes and loud scenes) in TV shows or movies are automatically adjusted to your desired level. (127 p. 155)





I want to set the optimized listening environment after changing the configuration/position of the speakers or changing a speaker to a new one

• Perform Audyssey® Setup. This automatically makes the optimized speaker settings for the new listening environment. (127 p. 174)

I want to combine a desired video with the current music

• Set "Video Select" in the option menu to "On". You can combine the current music with your desired video source from a Set-top Box or DVD, etc. while listening to music from the Tuner, CD, Phono, HEOS Music, USB or Bluetooth. (127 p. 109)

I want to skip unused input sources

• Set unused input sources for "Hide Sources" in the menu. This allows you to skip unused input sources when turning the SOURCE SELECT knob on this unit. (127 p. 173)

I want to enjoy the same music in all zones at the home party, etc.

• Set "All Zone Stereo" in the option menu to "Start". You can simultaneously play back music in another room (ZONE2) that is played back in MAIN ZONE. (127 p. 111)

I want to minimize the delay in video signals when I'm playing a game on my game console

• When the video is delayed against button operations with the controller on the game console, set "Video Mode" in the menu to "Game". (127 p. 165)

I want to operate this unit using the TV remote control

- Select "AV Receiver" in a TV menu such as "Input" * or "Operate Connected HDMI Device" *. The Smart Menu of this unit is displayed on the TV. This Smart Menu can be operated using the remote control of your TV.
- * The selection method differs depending on your TV. See the owner's manual of your TV for details.



	Contents	\bigvee	Connections	\bigvee	Playback	\bigvee	Settings	\bigvee	Tips	\bigvee	Appendix	
--	----------	-----------	-------------	-----------	----------	-----------	----------	-----------	------	-----------	----------	--

Troubleshooting

If a problem should arise, first check the following:

- 1. Are the connections correct?
- 2. Is the set being operated as described in the owner's manual?
- 3. Are the other devices operating properly?
- If steps 1 to 3 above do not improve the problem, restarting the device may improve the problem.
 Continue pressing the db button on the unit until "Restart" appears in the display, or remove and re-insert the power cord of the unit.

If this unit does not operate properly, check the corresponding symptoms in this section.

If the symptoms do not match any of those described here, consult your dealer as it could be due to a fault in this unit. In this case, disconnect the power immediately and contact the store where you purchased this unit.









Power does not turn on / Power is turned off

Power does not turn on.

• Check whether the power plug is correctly inserted into the power outlet. (127 p. 65)

Power automatically turns off.

- The sleep timer is set. Turn on the power again. (Imp p. 127)
- "Auto Standby" is set. "Auto Standby" is triggered when there is no operation for a set amount of time. To disable "Auto Standby", set "Auto Standby" on the menu to "Off". (127 p. 205)

Power turns off and the power indicator flashes in red approx. every 2 seconds.

- The protection circuit has been activated due to a rise in temperature within this unit. Turn the power off, wait about an hour until this unit cools down sufficiently, and then turn the power on again. (127 p. 265)
- Please re-install this unit in a place having good ventilation.

Power turns off and the power indicator flashes in red approx. every 0.5 seconds.

- Check the speaker connections. The protection circuit may have been activated because speaker cable core wires came in contact with each other or a core wire was disconnected from the connector and came in contact with the rear panel of this unit. After unplugging the power cord, take corrective action such as firmly re-twisting the core wire or taking care of the connector, and then reconnect the wire. (127 p. 37)
- Turn down the volume and turn on the power again. (127 p. 67)
- This unit's amplifier circuit has failed. Unplug the power cord and contact our customer service center.

Power does not turn off even when the power button is pressed, and the display shows "ZONE2 On".

• The power supply of ZONE2 is turned to ON. To turn off the power supply of this unit (standby), press the ZONE2 ON/OFF on the main unit, or press the POWER Φ button after pressing the ZONE2 button on the remote control unit to turn off the power supply of ZONE2.

Operations cannot be performed through the remote control unit

Operations cannot be performed through the remote control unit.

- Batteries are worn out. Replace with new batteries. (12 p. 9)
- Operate the remote control unit within a distance of about 23 ft/7 m from this unit and at an angle of within 30°. (127 p. 9)
- Remove any obstacle between this unit and the remote control unit.
- Insert the batteries in the proper direction, checking the \oplus and Θ marks. (127 p. 9)
- The set's remote control sensor is exposed to strong light (direct sunlight, inverter type fluorescent bulb light, etc.). Move the set to a place in which the remote control sensor will not be exposed to strong light.
- The operation target zone does not correspond to the zone setting specified on the remote control unit. Press the MAIN or ZONE2 button to select the operating zone of the remote control. (127 p. 144)
- When using a 3D video device, the remote control unit of this unit may not function due to effects of infrared communications between units (such as TV and glasses for 3D viewing). In this case, adjust the direction of units with the 3D communications function and their distance to ensure they do not affect operations from the remote control unit of this unit.

Display on this unit shows nothing

Display is off.

- Set "Dimmer" on the menu to something other than "Off". (@ p. 208)
- When the sound mode is set to "Pure Direct", the display is off. (127 p. 115)







No sound comes out

No sound comes out of speakers.

- Check the connections for all devices. (127 p. 37)
- Insert connection cables all the way in.
- · Check that input connectors and output connectors are not reversely connected.
- Check cables for damage.
- Check that speaker cables are properly connected. Check that cable core wires come in contact with the metal part on speaker terminals. (127 p. 37)
- Securely tighten the speaker terminals. Check speaker terminals for looseness. (127 p. 37)
- Check that a proper input source is selected. (127 p. 67)
- Adjust the volume. (12 p. 68)
- Cancel the mute mode. (12 p. 68)
- Check the digital audio input connector setting. (127 p. 170)
- Check the digital audio output setting on the connected device. On some devices, the digital audio output is set to off by default.
- When a headphone is plugged into the PHONES jack on the main unit, sound is not output from the speaker terminal and PRE OUT connector.

No sound comes out when using the DVI-D connection.

• When this unit is connected to a device equipped with a DVI-D connector, no sound is output. Make a separate audio connection.



Settings

Desired sound does not come out

The volume does not increase.

- The maximum volume is set too low. Set the maximum volume using "Limit" on the menu. (127 p. 152)
- Appropriate volume correction processing is performed according to the input audio format and settings, so the volume may not reach the upper limit.

No sound comes out with the HDMI connection.

- Check the connection of the HDMI connectors. (127 p. 51)
- When outputting HDMI audio from the speakers, set "HDMI Audio Out" on the menu to "AVR". To output from the TV, set "TV". (127 p. 158)
- When using the HDMI Control function, check that the audio output is set to the AV amplifier on the TV. (127 p. 124)

When an eARC function-compatible television is connected, television audio is not output from the speaker connected to this unit

- eARC function settings may be required depending on the eARC function-compatible television you are using. Make sure eARC is set to on if this setting exists on your television. For more information, check your television's owner's manual.
- Make sure the input source of this unit is "TV Audio".
- The eARC function does not operate when the HDMI input connector is set to the "TV Audio" input source. To enable eARC function operation, remove the HDMI input connector setting, then restart this unit and the television. (127 p. 171)

No sound comes out of a specific speaker.

- Check that speaker cables are properly connected.
- Check that a selection other than "None" is set for the "Speaker Config." setting in menu. (127 p. 185)
- Check the "Assign Mode" setting in the menu. (I p. 184)
- When the sound mode is "Stereo" and "Virtual", audio is only output from the front speakers and subwoofer.
- Audio is not output from the surround back speaker if "Speaker Virtualizer" is set to "On" when "Speaker Config." "Surr. Back" is set to "1 spkr" in the menu. (127 p. 148)









No sound is produced from subwoofer.

- Check the subwoofer connections.
- Turn on the subwoofer's power.
- Set "Speaker Config." "Subwoofer" on the menu to "Yes". (127 p. 185)
- When "Speaker Config." "Front" in the menu is set to "Large", depending on the input signal and the sound mode, no sound may be output from the subwoofer. (127 p. 185)
- When no subwoofer audio signal (LFE) is included in the input signals, no sound may be output from the subwoofer. (127 p. 193)
- You can make the subwoofer always output sound by setting the "Subwoofer Mode" to "LFE+Main". (127 p. 193)

DTS sound is not output.

• Check that the digital audio output setting on the connected device is set to "DTS".

Dolby Atmos, Dolby TrueHD, DTS-HD, Dolby Digital Plus audio is not output.

- Make HDMI connections. (12 p. 56)
- Check the digital audio output setting on the connected device. On some devices, "PCM" is set by default.

DTS Neural:X mode cannot be selected.

• DTS Neural:X cannot be selected when using the headphones.

Dolby Surround mode cannot be selected.

• Dolby Surround cannot be selected when using the headphones.

Sound modes other than "Stereo" or "Direct" cannot be selected.

• Only "Stereo" or "Direct" can be selected for the sound mode if Headphone:X signals are input.







Audyssey MultEQ®, Audyssey Dynamic EQ® and Audyssey Dynamic Volume® cannot be selected.

- These cannot be selected when you have not performed Audyssey® Setup. (127 p. 174)
- Switch to a sound mode other than "Direct" or "Pure Direct". (1) p. 114)
- These cannot be selected when sound mode is "DTS Virtual:X" or sound mode that have "+Virtual:X" in the sound mode name.
- These cannot be selected when using the headphones.

"Restorer" cannot be selected.

- Check that an analog signal or PCM signal (Sample Rate = 44.1/48 kHz) is input. For playback of multichannel signals such as Dolby Digital or DTS surround, "Restorer" cannot be used. (127 p. 150)
- Switch to a sound mode other than "Direct" or "Pure Direct". (1) p. 114)

No sound is output when using ZONE2.

- Digital signal audio input from the HDMI connector or digital audio connectors (OPTICAL/COAXIAL) cannot be played back. Use analog connections.
- When listening to audio from a Bluetooth device in ZONE2, remove any obstructions between the Bluetooth device and this unit and use it within a range of about 98.4 ft/30 m.







Sound is interrupted or noise occurs

During playback from the Internet radio or USB memory device, sound is occasionally interrupted.

- When the transfer speed of the USB memory device is slow, sound may occasionally be interrupted.
- The network communication speed is slow or the radio station is busy.

When making a call on iPhone, noise occurs in audio output on this unit.

• When making a call, keep a distance of 0.7 ft/20 cm or longer between iPhone and this unit.

Noise often occurs in FM/AM broadcasting.

- Change the antenna orientation or position. (1 p. 61)
- Separate the AM loop antenna from the unit.
- Use an outdoor antenna. (12 p. 61)
- Separate the antenna from other connection cables. (127 p. 61)

The sounds appear to be distorted.

- Lower the volume. (127 p. 68)
- Set "Off" to the "ECO Mode". When "On" or "Auto" is in the "ECO Mode", the audio may by distorted when the playback volume is high. (127 p. 202)

Sound cuts out when using Wi-Fi connection.

- The frequency band used by the wireless LAN is also used by microwave ovens, cordless telephones, wireless game controllers and other wireless LAN devices. Using such devices at the same time as this unit may cause sound to cut out due to electronic interference. Sound cut out can be improved using the following methods. (127 p. 63)
 - Install devices that cause interference away from this unit.
 - Turn off the power supply to devices that cause interference.
 - Change the settings of the router channel to which this unit is connected to. (See the instruction manual of the wireless router for details on how to change the channel.)
 - Switch to a wired LAN connection.
- Particularly when you play back large music files, depending on your wireless LAN environment, the playback sound may be interrupted. In this case, make the wired LAN connection. (127 p. 195)

227



Index



No video is shown on the TV

No picture appears.

- Check the connections for all devices. (127 p. 51)
- Insert connection cables all the way in.
- · Check that input connectors and output connectors are not reversely connected.
- Check cables for damage.
- Match the input settings to the input connector of the TV connected to this unit. (IP p. 170)
- Check that the proper input source is selected. (127 p. 67)
- Check the video input connector setting. (127 p. 170)
- Check that the resolution of the player corresponds to that of the TV. (127 p. 212)
- Check whether the TV is compatible with copyright protection (HDCP). If connected to a device not compatible with HDCP, video will not be output correctly. (127 p. 242)
- To enjoy content that is copyright protected by HDCP 2.2 or HDCP 2.3, use a playback device and TV compatible with HDCP 2.2 or HDCP 2.3.
- To play back a 4K video, use a "High Speed HDMI Cable" or an "High Speed HDMI Cable with Ethernet". In order to achieve a higher fidelity for 4K videos, it is recommended to use a "Premium High Speed HDMI Cables" or an "Premium High Speed HDMI Cables with Ethernet" that has an HDMI Premium Certified Cable label on the product package.

No video is shown on the TV with the DVI-D connection.

• With the DVI-D connection, on some device combinations, devices may not function properly due to the copy guard copyright protection (HDCP). (1) p. 242)

While the menu is being displayed, no video is shown on the TV.

- The video being played will not appear in the background of the menu when the menu is operated during playback of the following video signals.
 - Some images of 3D video contents
 - Computer resolution images (example: VGA)
 - Video with an aspect ratio other than 16:9 or 4:3
 - 4K video
 - Some kind of HDR signals

228





Settings

The menu screen is not displayed on the TV

The menu screen or status information screen is not displayed on the TV.

- The menu screen is only displayed on this unit and a TV connected with an HDMI cable. If this unit is connected to a TV using a different video output connector, operate while watching the display on this unit.
- The status information will not appear on the TV when the following video signals are being played.
 - Some images of 3D video content
 - Computer resolution images (example: VGA)
 - Video with an aspect ratio other than 16:9 or 4:3
 - Some kind of HDR signals
- When a 2D video is converted to a 3D video on the TV, the menu screen or status information screen is not displayed properly. (127 p. 213)
- In the pure direct playback mode, the menu screen or status information is not displayed. Switch to a sound mode other than the pure direct mode. (1) p. 113)
- Set the "TV Format" setting in the menu to a selection that is appropriate for the TV. (127 p. 169)

The color of the menu screen and operations content displayed on the television is different from normal

The color of the menu screen and operations content displayed on the television is different.

• Performing operations on this unit during playback of a Dolby Vision signal may cause variance in the color display of the menu screen and operations content. This is a characteristic of the Dolby Vision signal and is not a malfunction.







AirPlay cannot be played back

The AirPlay icon is not displayed on iTunes / iPhone / iPod touch / iPad.

- This unit and PC / iPhone / iPod touch / iPad are not connected to the same network (LAN). Connect it to the same LAN as this unit. (127 p. 63)
- The firmware on iTunes / iPhone / iPod touch / iPad is not compatible with AirPlay. Update the firmware to the latest version.

Audio is not output.

- The volume on iTunes / iPhone / iPod touch / iPad is set to the minimum level. The volume on iTunes / iPhone / iPod touch / iPad is linked with the volume on this unit. Set a proper volume level.
- The AirPlay playback is not performed, or this unit is not selected. Click the AirPlay icon on the iTunes / iPhone / iPod touch / iPad screen and select this unit. (127 p. 101)

Audio is interrupted during the AirPlay playback on iPhone / iPod touch / iPad.

- Quit the application running in the background of the iPhone/iPod touch/iPad, and then play using AirPlay.
- Some external factors may be affecting the wireless connection. Modify the network environment by taking measures such as shortening the distance from the wireless LAN access point.

iTunes cannot be played back through the remote control unit.

• Enable the "Allow iTunes audio control from remote speakers" setting on iTunes. Then, you can perform playback, pause, and skip operations through the remote control unit.







Settings

USB memory devices cannot be played back

USB memory device is not recognized.

- Disconnect and reconnect the USB memory device. (12 p. 60)
- Mass storage class compatible USB memory devices are supported.
- This unit does not support a connection through a USB hub. Connect the USB memory device directly to the USB port.
- The USB memory device must be formatted to "FAT32" or "NTFS".
- Not all USB memory devices are guaranteed to work. Some USB memory devices are not recognized. When using a type of portable hard disc drive compatible with the USB connection that requires power from an AC adapter, use the AC adapter that came with the drive.

Files on the USB memory device are not displayed.

- Files of a type not supported by this unit are not displayed. (IPP p. 69)
- This unit is able to display files in a maximum of eight folder layers. A maximum of 5000 files (folders) can also be displayed for each layer. Modify the folder structure of the USB memory device.
- When multiple partitions exist on the USB memory device, only files on the first partition are displayed.

iOS and Android devices are not recognized.

• The USB port of this unit does not support playback from iOS and Android devices.

Files on a USB memory device cannot be played.

- Files are created in a format that is not supported by this unit. Check the formats supported by this unit. (127 p. 245)
- You are attempting to play a file that is copyright protected. Files that are copyright protected cannot be played on this unit.
- Playback may not be possible if the album art file size exceeds 2 MB.





Bluetooth cannot be played back

Bluetooth devices cannot be connected to this unit.

- The Bluetooth function in the Bluetooth device has not been enabled. See the Owner's Manual of the Bluetooth device to enable the Bluetooth function.
- Bring the Bluetooth device near to this unit.
- The Bluetooth device cannot connect with this unit if it is not compatible with the A2DP profile.
- Turn the power of the Bluetooth device off and on again, and then try again.

The sound is cut off.

- Bring the Bluetooth device near to this unit.
- · Remove obstructions between the Bluetooth device and this unit.
- To prevent electromagnetic interference, locate this unit away from microwave ovens, wireless LAN devices and other Bluetooth devices.
- Reconnect the Bluetooth device.









The Internet radio cannot be played back

A list of broadcasting stations is not displayed.

- The LAN cable is not properly connected, or the network is disconnected. Check the connection status. (127 p. 63)
- Perform the network diagnostic mode.

Internet Radio cannot be played.

- The selected radio station is broadcasting in a format that is not supported by this unit. Formats that can be played back in this unit are MP3, WMA and AAC. (127 p. 248)
- The firewall function is enabled on the router. Check the firewall setting.
- The IP address is not properly set. (PP p. 197)
- Check the power of the router is on.
- To obtain the IP address automatically, enable the DHCP server function on the router. Also, set the DHCP setting to "On" on this unit. (127 p. 197)
- To obtain the IP address manually, set the IP address on this unit. (127 p. 197)
- Some radio stations broadcast silently during some time period. In this case, no audio is output. Wait for a while and select the same radio station, or select another radio station. (127 p. 86)
- The selected radio station is not in service. Select a radio station in service.

Cannot connect to favorite radio stations.

• Radio station is not currently in service. Register radio stations in service.



Music files on PC or NAS cannot be played back

Files stored on a computer cannot be played.

- Files are stored in a non-compatible format. Record in a compatible format. (IP p. 247)
- Files that are copyright protected cannot be played on this unit.
- The USB port of this unit cannot be used for connection to a computer.
- Media sharing settings on the server or NAS do not allow this unit. Change the settings to allow this unit. For details, see the owner's manual of the server or NAS.

Server is not found, or it is not possible to connect to the server.

- The computer's or router's firewall is activated. Check the computer's or router's firewall settings.
- Computer's power is not turned on. Turn on the power.
- Server is not running. Launch the server.
- IP address of this unit is wrong. Check the IP address of this unit. (127 p. 194)

Music files on PC cannot be played back.

• Even if PC is connected to the USB port on this unit, music files on it cannot be played back. Connect PC to this unit through the network. (12) p. 63)

Files on PC or NAS are not displayed.

• Files of a type not supported by this unit are not displayed. (127 p. 247)

Music stored on a NAS cannot be played.

- If you use a NAS in conformity with the DLNA standard, enable the DLNA server function in the NAS setting.
- If you use a NAS that does not conform with the DLNA standard, play the music via a PC. Set Windows Media Player's media sharing function and add NAS to the selected play folder.
- If connection is restricted, set audio equipment as the connection target.







Various online services cannot be played

Various online services cannot be played.

• The online service may have been discontinued.

The HDMI Control function does not work

The HDMI Control function does not work.

- Check that "HDMI Control" in the menu is set to "On". (12 p. 160)
- You cannot operate devices that are not compatible with the HDMI Control function. In addition, depending on the connected device or the settings, the HDMI Control function may not work. In this case, operate the external device directly. (127 p. 124)
- Check that the HDMI Control function setting is enabled on all devices connected to this unit. (127 p. 124)
- When you make connection related changes such as connecting an additional HDMI device, the link operation settings may be initialized. Turn off this unit and devices connected via HDMI, and turn them on again. (127 p. 124)
- The HDMI MONITOR 2 connector is not compatible with the HDMI Control function. Use the HDMI MONITOR 1 connector to connect to the TV. (1) p. 51)









Index

Cannot connect to a wireless LAN network

Cannot connect to the network.

- The network name (SSID), password and encryption setting have not been set up correctly. Configure the network settings according to the setting details of this unit. (127 p. 196)
- Shorten the distance from the wireless LAN access point and remove any obstructions to improve access first before re-connecting again. Place the unit away from microwave ovens and other network access points.
- Configure the access point channel settings away from channels that are being used by other networks.
- This unit is not compatible with WEP (TSN).

Cannot connect to a WPS Router.

Front panel

- Check that the WPS mode of the router is operating.
- Press the WPS button on the router and then press the "Connect" button displayed on the TV within 2 minutes.
- A router/settings that are compatible with WPS 2.0 standards are required. Set the encryption time to "None", "WPA-PSK (AES)" or WPA2-PSK (AES). (12) p. 196)
- If the router encryption method is WEP/WPA-TKIP/WPA2-TKIP, you cannot connect by using the WPS button on the router. In this case, use the "Scan Networks" or "Manual" method to connect.

236

Remote

Rear panel

Cannot connect to the network using iPhone/iPod touch/iPad.

· Update the iPhone/iPod touch/iPad firmware to the latest version.

Display

• When configuring the settings via a wireless connection, iOS 7 or later needs to be supported.

Update/upgrade error messages

If an update/upgrade is interrupted or fails, an error message appears.

Display	Description
Connection failed. Please check your network, then try again.	The network connection is unstable. Connection to the server failed. Check your network environment and try the update again.
Update failed. Please check your network, then try again.	The download of the firmware failed. Check your network environment and try the update again.
Upgrade failed. Please check your network, then try again.	The download of the firmware failed. Check your network environment and try the upgrade again.
Please check your network, unplug and reconnect the power cord, and try again.	The update failed. Press and hold the \oplus on the main unit for more than 5 seconds, or remove and re-insert the power cord. The update restarts automatically.
Please contact customer service in your area.	This unit may be broken. Contact our Customer Service Center in your area.







Resetting factory settings

If the indicators are incorrect or the unit cannot be operated, restarting the unit may improve the problem. We recommend restarting the unit before returning the settings to the default settings. (12) p. 220)

If the operations are not improved by restarting the unit, follow the steps below.

Various settings are reset to the factory default values. Make settings again.



Turn off the power using $\mathbf{\Phi}$.

- 2 Press () while simultaneously pressing TUNER PRESET CH + and TUNER PRESET CH -.
 - Remove your fingers from the two buttons when "Initialized" appears on the display.

3

- Before returning the settings to the default settings, use the "Save & Load" function from the menu to save and restore the details of various settings configured on the unit. (127 p. 214)
- You can also reset all settings to the factory defaults using "Reset" "All Settings" in the menu. ($p.\ 215)$

238





Resetting network settings

If network contents cannot be played or the unit cannot connect to the network, restarting the unit may improve the problem. We recommend restarting the unit before returning the settings to the default settings. (127 p. 220)

If the operations are not improved by restarting the unit, follow the steps below.

Network settings are reset to the factory default values. Make settings again.

However, the menu "Amp Assign", "Speaker Config." and "Video" settings are not reset.



- Press () to turn on power to the unit.
- 2 Turn SOURCE SELECT to select "HEOS Music".
- **3** Press and hold the main unit's ZONE2 ON/OFF and ZONE2 SOURCE at the same time for at least 3 seconds.
- **4** Remove your fingers from the two buttons when "Network Reset..." appears on the display.
- 5 "Completed" is shown in the display when reset is complete.

- Before returning the settings to the default settings, use the "Save & Load" function from the menu to save and restore the details of various settings configured on the unit. (127 p. 214)
- You can also reset the network settings to the factory defaults using "Reset" -"Network Settings" in the menu. (Pp p. 215)

NOTE

Remote

• Do not turn the power off until reset is complete.

Front panel

239





About HDMI

HDMI is an abbreviation of High-Definition Multimedia Interface, which is an AV digital interface that can be connected to a TV or amplifier. With the HDMI connection, high definition video and high quality audio formats adopted by Blu-ray Disc players (Dolby Digital Plus, Dolby TrueHD, DTS-HD, DTS-HD Master Audio) can be transmitted, which is not possible with the analog video transmission.

Furthermore, in the HDMI connection, audio and video signals can be transmitted through a single HDMI cable, while in conventional connections it is necessary to provide audio and video cables separately for connection between devices. This allows you to simplify the wiring configuration that tends to be quite complex in a home theater system. This unit supports the following HDMI functions.

• Deep Color

An imaging technology supported by HDMI. Unlike RGB or YCbCr, which uses 8 bits (256 shades) per color, it can use 10 bits (1024 shades), 12 bits (4096 shades), or 16 bits (65536 shades) to produce colors in higher definition.

Both devices linked via HDMI must support Deep Color.

• x.v.Color

This function lets HDTVs display colors more accurately. It enables display with natural, vivid colors.

"x.v.Color" is trademark of Sony Corporation.

• 3D

This unit supports input and output of 3D (3 dimensional) video signals of HDMI. To play back 3D video, you need a TV and player that provide support for the HDMI 3D function and a pair of 3D glasses.

• 4K

This unit supports input and output of 4K (3840 x 2160 pixels) video signals of HDMI.

Content Type

It automatically makes settings suitable for the video output type (content information).

Adobe RGB color, Adobe YCC601 color

The color space defined by Adobe Systems Inc. Because it is a wider color space than RGB, it can produce more vivid and natural images.

sYCC601 color

Each of these color spaces defines a palette of available colors that is larger than the traditional RGB color model.

ALLM (Auto Low Latency Mode)

This unit automatically switches to low latency mode depending on playback contents when using a combination of television and game console compatible with the ALLM function.

240

Remote



Auto Lip Sync

This function can automatically correct delay between the audio and video.

Use a TV that is compatible with the Auto Lip Sync function.

HDMI Pass Through

Even when the power to this unit is set to standby, signals input from the HDMI input connector are output to a TV or other device that is connected to the HDMI output connector.

HDMI Control

If you connect the unit and an HDMI Control function compatible TV or player with an HDMI cable and then enable the HDMI Control function setting on each device, the devices will be able to control each other.

Power off link

This unit power off can be linked to the TV power off step.

Audio output destination switching

From the TV, you can switch whether to output audio from the TV or the AV amplifier.

· Volume adjustment

You can adjust this unit's volume in the TV volume adjustment operation.

· Input source switching

You can switch this unit input sources through linkage to TV input switching.

When playing the player, this unit input source switches to the source for that player.

• ARC (Audio Return Channel)

This function transmits audio signals from the TV to this unit through the HDMI cable and plays back the audio from the TV on this unit based on the HDMI Control function.

If a TV without the ARC function is connected via HDMI connections, video signals of the playback device connected to this unit are transmitted to the TV, but this unit can not play back the audio from the TV. If you want to enjoy surround audio for TV program, a separate audio cable connection is required.

In contrast, if a TV with the ARC function is connected via HDMI connections, no audio cable connection is required. Audio signals from the TV can be input to this unit through the HDMI cable between this unit and the TV. This function allows you to enjoy surround playback on this unit for the TV.

• eARC (Enhanced Audio Return Channel)

The eARC function is an extension of the conventional ARC function. It utilizes dedicated eARC function control to play back television audio from this unit without passing through HDMI control. Furthermore, the eARC function can transmit multichannel linear PCM, Dolby TrueHD, Dolby Atmos, DTS-HD Master Audio, DTS:X and other audio formats not compatible with conventional ARC. Connecting to an eARC function-compatible television also enables enjoyment of higher-quality surround playback of the audio content played from your television.

Front panel

241





Contents Connections

Settings

Supported audio formats

2-channel Linea PCM	2-channel, 32 kHz – 192 kHz, 16/20/24 bit
Multi-channel Linear PCM	7.1-channel, 32 kHz – 192 kHz, 16/20/24 bit
Bitstream	Dolby Digital / DTS / Dolby Atmos / Dolby TrueHD / Dolby Digital Plus / DTS:X / DTS-HD Master Audio / DTS-HD High Resolution Audio / DTS Express

Supported video signals

- 480i
- 576i
- 720p 60/50Hz
- 1080p 60/50/24Hz
- 480p576p
- 1080i 60/50Hz
- 4K 60/50/30/25/24 Hz

Copyright protection system

In order to play back digital video and audio such as BD video or DVD video via HDMI connection, both this unit and the TV or player must to support the copyright protection system known as HDCP (Highbandwidth Digital Content Protection System). HDCP is copyright protection technology comprised of data encryption and authentication of the connected AV devices. This unit supports HDCP.

 If a device that does not support HDCP is connected, video and audio are not output correctly. Read the owner's manual of your television or player for more information.

 When connecting this unit to a device that is compatible with the Deep Color, 4K, ARC and eARC functions, use a "High Speed HDMI cable with Ethernet" that bears the HDMI logo.











Relationship between video signals and monitor output



\int	Contents	Connections		Playback	\setminus	Settings	\setminus	Tips		Appendix	١
--------	----------	-------------	--	----------	-------------	----------	-------------	------	--	----------	---

This unit can convert the input video signals to the resolution that is set for "Resolution" in the menu before outputting them to the TV. (127 p. 166)

	Output signal	HDMI							
Input signal		480i/576i	480p/576p	720p	1080i	1080p	1080p 24Hz	4K 30/25/24Hz	4K 60/50Hz
HDMI	480i/576i	~	~	\checkmark	~	~	\checkmark	\checkmark	
	480p/576p		\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
	720p			\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
	1080i			\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
	1080p 24Hz					\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
	1080p					\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	
	4K 30/25/24Hz							\checkmark	
	4K 60/50Hz								√ *

* The HDMI connector on the front panel supports YCbCr 4:2:0 format only.





Contents	\setminus /	Coni
----------	---------------	------

Playing back a USB memory devices

- This unit is compatible with MP3 ID3-Tag (Ver. 2) standard.
- This unit can show the artwork that was embedded by using MP3 ID3-Tag Ver. 2.3 or 2.4.
- This unit is compatible with WMA META tags.
- If the image size (pixels) of an album artwork exceeds 500 × 500 (WMA/MP3/Apple Lossless/DSD) or 349 × 349 (MPEG-4 AAC), then music may not be played back properly.

Compatible formats

	Sampling frequency	Channel	Bit rate	Extension
WMA *1	32/44.1/48 kHz	2-channel	48 – 192 kbps	.wma
MP3	32/44.1/48 kHz	2-channel	32 – 320 kbps	.mp3
WAV	32/44.1/48/88.2/ 96/176.4/192 kHz	2-channel	-	.wav
MPEG-4 AAC*1	32/44.1/48 kHz	2-channel	48 - 320 kbps	.aac/.m4a
FLAC	44.1/48/88.2/ 96/176.4/192 kHz	2-channel	-	.flac
Apple Lossless*2	44.1/48/88.2/ 96/176.4/192 kHz	2-channel	-	.m4a
DSD	2.8/5.6 MHz	2-channel	_	.dsf/.dff

*1 Only files that are not protected by copyright can be played on this unit. Content downloaded from pay sites on the Internet are copyright protected. Also, files encoded in WMA format when ripped from a CD, etc. on a computer may be copyright protected, depending on the computer's settings.

*2 The Apple Lossless Audio Codec (ALAC) decoder is distributed under the Apache License, Version 2.0 (http://www.apache.org/licenses/LICENSE-2.0).





Maximum number of playable files and folder

The limits on the number of folders and files that can be displayed by this unit are as follows.

Item	USB memory device
Number of folder directory levels *1	8 levels
Number of folders	500
Number of files*2	5000

- *1 The limited number includes the root folder.
- *2 The allowable number of files may differ according to the USB memory device capacity and the file size.

Playing back a Bluetooth device

This unit supports the following Bluetooth profile.

- A2DP (Advanced Audio Distribution Profile): When a Bluetooth device that supports this standard is connected, monaural and stereo sound data can be streamed at a high quality.
- AVRCP (Audio/Video Remote Control Profile): When a Bluetooth device that supports this standard is connected, the Bluetooth device can be operated from this unit.

About Bluetooth communications

Radio waves broadcast from this unit may interfere with the operation of medical devices. Make sure you turn off the power of this unit and Bluetooth device in the following locations as radio wave interference may cause malfunctions.

- Hospitals, trains, aircraft, petrol kiosks and places where flammable
 gases are generated
- Near automatic doors and fire alarms

Front panel

246



Front panel



Index

Playing back a file saved on a PC or NAS

Connections

- This unit is compatible with MP3 ID3-Tag (Ver. 2) standard.
- This unit can show the artwork that was embedded by using MP3 ID3-Tag Ver. 2.3 or 2.4.
- This unit is compatible with WMA META tags.

Contents

If the image size (pixels) of an album artwork exceeds 500 × 500 (WMA/MP3/WAV/FLAC/Apple Lossless/DSD) or 349 × 349 (MPEG-4 AAC), then
music may not be played back properly.

Settings

Playback

A server or server software compatible with distribution in the corresponding formats is required to play music files via a network.
 For playing mentioned audio formats via a network a server software, for example Twonky Media Server or jRiver Media Server, needs to be installed on your computer or NAS for full support. There are other server software available too. Please check supported formats.

Specifications of supported files

	Sampling frequency	Channel	Bit rate	Extension
WMA *1	32/44.1/48 kHz	2-channel	48 – 192 kbps	.wma
MP3	32/44.1/48 kHz	2-channel	32 – 320 kbps	.mp3
WAV	32/44.1/48/88.2/ 96/176.4/192 kHz	2-channel	-	.wav
MPEG-4 AAC*1	32/44.1/48 kHz	2-channel	48 - 320 kbps	.aac/.m4a
FLAC	44.1/48/88.2/ 96/176.4/192 kHz	2-channel	-	.flac
Apple Lossless*2	44.1/48/88.2/ 96/176.4/192 kHz	2-channel	-	.m4a
DSD	2.8/5.6 MHz	2-channel	-	.dsf/.dff

*1 Only files that are not protected by copyright can be played on this unit. Content downloaded from pay sites on the Internet are copyright protected. Also, files encoded in WMA format when ripped from a CD, etc. on a computer may be copyright protected, depending on the computer's settings.

*2 The Apple Lossless Audio Codec (ALAC) decoder is distributed under the Apache License, Version 2.0 (http://www.apache.org/licenses/LICENSE-2.0).

Front panel



Playback

Playing back Internet Radio

Contents

Playable broadcast station specifications

	Sampling frequency	Bit rate	Extension
WMA	32/44.1/48 kHz	48 – 192 kbps	.wma
MP3	32/44.1/48 kHz	32 – 320 kbps	.mp3
MPEG-4 AAC	32/44.1/48 kHz	48 - 320 kbps	.aac/ .m4a

Connections

Personal memory plus function

The most recently used settings (input mode, HDMI output mode, sound mode, tone control, channel level, MultEQ[®], Dynamic EQ, Dynamic Volume, Restorer and audio delay, etc.) are saved for each input source.

Settings

• "Surround Parameter" settings are stored for each sound mode.

Last function memory

This function stores the settings which were made before going into the standby mode.

Index

Sound modes and channel output

 \bigcirc This indicates the audio output channels or surround parameters that can be set.

This indicates the audio output channels. The output channels depend on the settings of "Speaker Config.". (17 p. 185)

	Channel output									
Sound mode	Front L/R	Center	Surround L/R	Surround Back L/R	Front Height L/R	Top Front L/R	Top Middle L/R	Front Dolby Atmos Enabled L/R	Surround Dolby Atmos Enabled L/R	Subwoofer
Direct/Pure Direct (2-channel)	0									©*5
Direct/Pure Direct (Multi-channel)	0	O	O	◎*4	◎*4	◎*4	◎*4	◎*4	◎*4	O
Stereo	0									O
Dolby Atmos	0	O	O	O	O	0	O	0	O	O
Dolby TrueHD	0	O	O	©*4						O
Dolby Digital Plus	0	O	O	◎*4						O
Dolby Digital	0	O	O							O
Dolby Surround *1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	O
DTS:X	0	O	O	O	O	O	O	0	O	O
DTS-HD	0	0	0	◎*4	◎*4					0
DTS Express	0	0	O	0						O
DTS 96/24	0	0	0	0						0
DTS Surround	0	O	O	O						O
DTS Neural:X *2	0	\bigcirc	O	O	0	0	O	0	O	O
DTS Virtual:X *3	0	O	O	O						O
Multi Ch In	0	\odot	O	◎*4						O
Multi Ch Stereo	0	O	O	O	O	O	O	0	O	O
Rock Arena	0	O	O	O	O	O	O	0	O	O
Jazz Club	0	O	O	O	O	O	O	0	O	O
Mono Movie	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	O
Video Game	0	O	O	O	O	O	O	0	O	O
Matrix	0	0	O	O	0	O	O	0	0	O
Virtual	0									O

*1 - *5 : "Sound modes and channel output" (m p. 250)

249



Contents Connections	Playback Settings	Tips	Appendix
----------------------	-------------------	------	----------

- *1 The applicable sound mode includes "Dolby Surround" and sound modes that have "+Dolby Surround" in the sound mode name.
- *2 The applicable sound mode includes "DTS Neural:X" and sound modes that have "+Neural:X" in the sound mode name.
- *3 The applicable sound mode includes "DTS Virtual:X" and sound modes that have "+Virtual:X" in the sound mode name.
- *4 A signal for each channel contained in an input signal is output as audio.
- *5 Audio is output when "Subwoofer Mode" in the menu is set to "LFE+Main". (@ p. 193)



0		ton	to
	511	len	LS

Playback

Sound modes and surround parameters

				5	Surround Parameter				
Sound mode	Cinema EQ	Loudness Management *2	Dynamic Compression *3	Dialog Control *4	Low Frequency Effects *5	Delay Time	Effect Level	Room Size	Speaker Virtualizer *6
Direct/Pure Direct (2-channel) *1		0	0						
Direct/Pure Direct (Multi-channel) *1		0	0	0	0				
Stereo		0	0	0	0				
Dolby Atmos	0	0	0		0				0
Dolby TrueHD	0	0	0		0				○*7
Dolby Digital Plus	0	0	0		0				○*7
Dolby Digital	0	0	0		0				○*7
Dolby Surround	0	0	0						0
DTS:X	0		0	0	0				
DTS-HD	0				0				○*7
DTS Express	0				0				○*7
DTS 96/24	0				0				○*7
DTS Surround	0		0		0				○*7
DTS Neural:X	0		0						
DTS Virtual:X	0		0						
Multi Ch In	0				0				○*7
Multi Ch Stereo	0	0	0	0	0				
Rock Arena		0	0		0		0	0	
Jazz Club		0	0		0		0	0	
Mono Movie		0	0		0		0	0	
Video Game		0	0		0		0	0	
Matrix		0	0		0	0			
Virtual		0	0		0				

*1 - *7: "Sound modes and surround parameters" (1 p. 253)

Remote



0			+-
	JU	len	ιs

Sound mode	Surround Parameter		Tone	Center Level	Subwoofer Level	Audyssey			Bestorer
	DTS Neural:X	Subwoofer	*8	Adjust	Adjust *9	MultEQ® *10*11*12	Dynamic EQ *13	Dynamic Volume *13	*14
Direct/Pure Direct (2-channel) *1		○*15			○*15				
Direct/Pure Direct (Multi-channel) *1				0	0				
Stereo		○*16	0		○*16	0	0	0	0
Dolby Atmos			0	0	0	0	0	0	
Dolby TrueHD			0	0	0	0	0	0	
Dolby Digital Plus			0	0	0	0	0	0	
Dolby Digital			0	0	0	0	0	0	
Dolby Surround			0	0	0	0	0	0	0
DTS:X	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	
DTS-HD			0	0	0	0	0	0	
DTS Express			0	0	0	0	0	0	
DTS 96/24			0	0	0	0	0	0	
DTS Surround			0	0	0	0	0	0	
DTS Neural:X			0	0	0	0	0	0	0
DTS Virtual:X			0	0	0				0
Multi Ch In			0	0	0	0	0	0	
Multi Ch Stereo			0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Rock Arena			0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Jazz Club			0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Mono Movie			0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Video Game			0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Matrix			0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Virtual			0		0	0	0	0	0

*1, *8 - *16: "Sound modes and surround parameters" (@ p. 253)



252

Remote


Playback

- *1 During playback in Pure Direct mode, the surround parameters are the same as in Direct mode.
- *2 This item can be selected when a Dolby Digital, Dolby Digital Plus, Dolby TrueHD or Dolby Atmos signal is played.
- *3 This item can be selected when a Dolby Digital, Dolby Digital Plus, Dolby TrueHD, Dolby Atmos, DTS:X or DTS signal is played.
- *4 This item can be selected when a DTS:X signal that is compatible with the Dialog Control function is input.
- *5 This item can be selected when a Dolby Digital or DTS signal or DVD-Audio is played.
- *6 This feature will be supported via firmware update.
- *7 This item can be selected when sound mode is the sound mode that have "+ Dolby Surround" in the sound mode name.
- *8 This item cannot be set when "Dynamic EQ" is set to "On". (@ p. 154)
- *9 This item cannot be set when "Subwoofer" in the menu is set to "No". (I p. 185)
- *10 This item cannot be set when Audyssey® Setup (Speaker Calibration) has not been performed.
- *11 This item cannot be selected when a DTS:X format with a sampling frequency of over 48 kHz is input.
- *12 This item cannot be set when sound mode is "DTS Virtual:X" or sound mode that have "+Virtual:X" in the sound mode name.
- *13 This item cannot be set when "MultEQ®" is set to "Off". (@p. 153)
- *14 This item can be set when the input signal is analog, PCM 48 kHz or 44.1 kHz.
- *15 This setting is available when "Subwoofer Mode" in the menu is set to "LFE+Main". (127 p. 193)
- *16 This item can be set when "Front" is set to "Small" or "Subwoofer Mode" is set to "LFE+Main". (127 p. 185, 193)









Contents	\setminus /	Connections	\backslash /	Playback	\setminus /	Settings
	~ ~		~ ~		~ ~	•

Types of input signals, and corresponding sound modes

• This indicates the default sound mode.

 \bigcirc This indicates the selectable sound mode.

			2	-channel sig	nal					Mu	Ilti-channel s	signal				
	Sound mode	NOTE	Dolby Digital (+/HD)	DTS (-HD)	Analog / PCM	Dolby Atmos	Dolby TrueHD	Dolby Digital Plus	Dolby Digital (EX)	DTS:X	DTS-HD	DTS Express	DTS ES Dscrt6.1	DTS ES Mtrx6.1	DTS	PCM multi- channel
Dir	ect															
	Direct		0	0	○*2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Pu	e Direct															
	Pure Direct		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Ste	reo															
	Stereo		0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Do	by Surround															
	Dolby Atmos	*1														
	Dolby TrueHD					○*3	0									
	Dolby Digital Plus					○*4		0								
	Dolby Digital								0							
	Dolby (D+) (HD) + Dolby Surround															
	Dolby Surround			0	0											

*1 - *4 : "Types of input signals, and corresponding sound modes" (P p. 256)







			2	-channel sig	nal					Mu	ulti-channel :	signal				
	Sound mode	NOTE	Dolby Digital (+/HD)	DTS (-HD)	Analog / PCM	Dolby Atmos	Dolby TrueHD	Dolby Digital Plus	Dolby Digital (EX)	DTS:X	DTS-HD	DTS Express	DTS ES Dscrt6.1	DTS ES Mtrx6.1	DTS	PCM multi- channel
DT	S Surround															
	DTS:X MSTR / DTS:X															
	DTS-HD MSTR										○*9					
	DTS-HD HI RES										○*10					
	DTS Express											0				
	DTS ES Dscrt 6.1	*5											0			
	DTS ES Mtrx 6.1	*5												0		
	DTS 96/24														○*11	
	DTS Surround												0	0	0	
	DTS (-HD) + Dolby Surround										0	0	0	0	0	
	DTS (-HD) + Neural:X	*6														
	DTS (-HD) / DTS:X + Virtual:X	*7								0	0	0	0	0	0	
	DTS Neural:X	*6*8			0											
	DTS Virtual:X	*8		0	0											
Mu	lti Ch In															
	Multi Ch In															
	Multi Ch In 7.1	*5														○*12
	Multi In + Dolby Surround															0
	Multi In + Neural:X															0
	Multi In + Virtual:X															0
Ori	ginal sound mode															
	Multi Ch Stereo		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	Rock Arena		0	0	0	○*13	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0
	Jazz Club		0	0	0	○*13	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0
	Mono Movie		0	0	0	○*13	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0
	Video Game		0	0	0	○*13	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0
	Matrix		0	0	0	○*13	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0
	Virtual		0	0	0	○*13	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0

*5 - *13 : "Types of input signals, and corresponding sound modes" (127 p. 256)







Contents	Connections	Playback	Settings	Tips	Appendix
----------	-------------	----------	----------	------	----------

- *1 This item can be selected when using any of the Surround Back, Front Height, Top Front, Top Middle, Front Dolby or Surround Dolby speaker.
- *2 The default sound mode for the AirPlay playback is "Direct".
- *3 This can be selected when the Dolby Atmos signal contains the Dolby TrueHD signal.
- *4 This can be selected when the Dolby Atmos signal contains the Dolby Digital Plus signal.
- *5 This item can be selected when surround back speakers are used.
- *6 This item cannot be selected when a DTS(-HD) format with a sampling frequency of over 48 kHz is input.
- *7 This item cannot be selected when a DTS:X format with a sampling frequency of over 48 kHz is input.
- *8 This item cannot be selected when the input signal is Dolby Digital, Dolby Digital Plus, Dolby TrueHD or Dolby Atmos.
- *9 This item can be selected when the input signal is DTS-HD Master Audio.
- *10 This item can be selected when the input signal is DTS-HD Hi Resolution.
- *11 This item can be selected when the input signal is DTS 96/24.
- *12 This item can be selected when the input signals contain surround back signals.
- *13 This can be selected when the Dolby Atmos signal contains the Dolby TrueHD or Dolby Digital Plus signal.





Explanation of terms

Audyssey

Audyssey Dynamic EQ®

Audyssey Dynamic EQ[®] solves the problem of deteriorating sound quality as volume is decreased by taking into account human perception and room acoustics.

Audyssey Dynamic EQ[®] works in tandem with Audyssey MultEQ[®] to provide well-balanced sound for every listener at any volume level.

Audyssey Dynamic Volume®

Dynamic Volume solves the problem of large variations in volume level between television programs, commercials, and between the soft and loud passages of movies. Audyssey Dynamic EQ[®] is integrated into Dynamic Volume so that as the playback volume is adjusted automatically, the perceived bass response, tonal balance, surround impression, and dialog clarity remain the same.

Audyssey MultEQ®

Audyssey MultEQ[®] is a room equalization solution that calibrates any audio system so that it can achieve optimum performance for every listener in a large listening area. Based on several room measurements, MultEQ[®] calculates an equalization solution that corrects for both time and frequency response problems in the listening area and also performs a fully automated surround system setup.





Settings

Dolby

Dolby Atmos

Introduced first in the cinema, Dolby Atmos brings a revolutionary sense of dimension and immersion to the Home Theater experience. Dolby Atmos is an adaptable and scalable object based format that reproduces audio as independent sounds (or objects) that can be accurately positioned and move dynamically throughout the 3 dimensional listening space during playback. A key ingredient of Dolby Atmos is the introduction of a height plane of sound above the listener.

Dolby Atmos Stream

Dolby Atmos content will be delivered to your Dolby Atmos Enabled AV receiver via Dolby Digital Plus or Dolby TrueHD on Blu-ray Disc, downloadable files and streaming media. A Dolby Atmos stream contains special metadata that describes the positioning of sounds within the room. This object audio data is decoded by a Dolby Atmos AV receiver and scaled for optimum playback through Home Theater speaker systems of every size and configuration.

Dolby Digital

Dolby Digital is a multi-channel digital signal format developed by Dolby Laboratories.

A total of 5.1-channels are played: 3 front channels ("FL", "FR" and "C"), 2 surround channels ("SL" and "SR") and the "LFE" channel for low frequency effects.

Because of this, there is no crosstalk between channels and a realistic sound field with a "three-dimensional" feeling (sense of distance, movement and positioning) is achieved. This delivers a thrilling surround sound experience in the home.

Dolby Digital Plus

Dolby Digital Plus is an improved Dolby Digital signal format that is compatible with up to 7.1-channels of discrete digital sound and also improves sound quality thanks to extra data bit rate performance. It is upwardly compatible with conventional Dolby Digital, so it offers greater flexibility in response to the source signal and the conditions of the playback device.

Dolby Surround

Dolby Surround is a next generation surround technology that intelligently up mixes stereo; 5.1 and 7.1 content for playback through your surround speaker system. Dolby Surround is compatible with traditional speaker layouts, as well as Dolby Atmos enabled playback systems that employ inceiling speakers or products with Dolby speaker technology.



Settings

Dolby Speaker Technology (Dolby Atmos Enabled speakers)

A convenient alternative to speakers built into the ceiling, Dolby Atmos Enabled speakers employ the ceiling above you as a reflective surface for reproducing audio in the height plane above the listener. These speakers feature a unique upward firing driver and special signal processing. These features can be built into a conventional speaker or standalone speaker module. The features minimally impact the overall speaker footprint while providing an immersive listening experience during Dolby Atmos and Dolby Surround playback.

Dolby TrueHD

Dolby TrueHD is a high definition audio technology developed by Dolby Laboratories, using lossless coding technology to faithfully reproduce the sound of the studio master.

This format provides the facility to support up to 8 audio channels with a sampling frequency of 96 kHz/24 bit resolution and up to 6 audio channels with a sampling frequency of 192 kHz/24 bit resolution.

Speaker Virtualizer

Dolby Atmos height virtualization is a digital signal processing solution that leverages Dolby's deep understanding of human audio perception to create the sensation of overhead sound from the listener-level speakers. This signal processing applies height-cue filters to overhead audio components contained within the audio signal before they are mixed into the listener-level speakers.

These filters simulate the natural spectral cues imparted by our ears to sounds that originate from overhead.

For stereo and 3.1-channel speaker configuration, Dolby Atmos height virtualization is combined with surround virtualization to create an enveloping 360-degree audio minus the speakers that would ordinarily be employed behind or to the side of the listener.

Front panel





DTS

Dialog Control

Gives you control of the listening experience. You can lift the dialog out from the background sounds when clarity and intelligibility are desired. This requires that content has been authored to support Dialog Control.

DTS

This is an abbreviation of Digital Theater System, which is a digital audio system developed by DTS. DTS delivers a powerful and dynamic surround sound experience, and is found in the world's finest movie theaters and screening rooms.

DTS 96/24

DTS 96/24 is a digital audio format enabling high sound quality playback in 5.1-channels with a sampling frequency of 96 kHz and 24 bit quantization on DVD-Video.

DTS Digital Surround

DTS[™] Digital Surround is the standard digital surround format of DTS, Inc., compatible with a sampling frequency of 44.1 or 48 kHz and up to 5.1-channels of digital discrete surround sound.

DTS-ES[™] Discrete 6.1

DTS-ES[™] Discrete 6.1 is a 6.1-channel discrete digital audio format adding a surround back (SB) channel to the DTS digital surround sound. Decoding of conventional 5.1-channel audio signals is also possible according to the decoder.

DTS-ES[™] Matrix 6.1

DTS-ES[™] Matrix 6.1 is a 6.1-channel audio format that inserts a surround back (SB) channel to the DTS digital surround sound through matrix encoding. Decoding of conventional 5.1-channel audio signals is also possible according to the decoder.

DTS Express

DTS Express is an audio format supporting low bit rates (max. 5.1channels, 24 to 256 kbps).

DTS-HD

This audio technology provides higher sound quality and enhanced functionality than the conventional DTS and is adopted as an optional audio for Blu-ray Disc.

This technology supports multi-channel, high data transfer speed, high sampling frequency, and lossless audio playback. Maximum 7.1-channels are supported in Blu-ray Disc.

Front panel





DTS-HD High Resolution Audio

DTS-HD High Resolution Audio is an improved version of the conventional DTS, DTS-ES and DTS 96/24 signals formats, compatible with sampling frequencies of 96 or 48 kHz and up to 7.1-channels of discrete digital sound. High data bit rate performance provides high quality sound. This format is fully compatible with conventional products, including conventional DTS digital surround 5.1-channel data.

DTS-HD Master Audio

DTS-HD Master Audio is a lossless audio format created by Digital Theater System (DTS). This format provides the facility to support up to 8 audio channels with a sampling frequency of 96 kHz/24 bit resolution and up to 6 audio channels with a sampling frequency of 192 kHz/24 bit resolution. It is fully compatible with conventional products, including conventional DTS digital surround 5.1-channel data.

DTS:X

DTS:X produces a hemisphere of audio, where flyovers as well as ambient backgrounds become truly enveloping. DTS:X objects enable audio to move smoothly from one speaker to any other creating life-like realism.

DTS Neural:X

Enables an immersive audio experience for older content. DTS Neural:X can upmix your stereo, 5.1 or 7.1 content to take full advantage of all speakers in your surround sound system.

DTS Virtual:X

DTS Virtual:X allows you to enjoy multi-dimensional sound regardless of room size, layout, or speaker configuration.









Settings

Audio

Apple Lossless Audio Codec

This is a codec for lossless audio compression method developed by Apple Inc. This codec can be played back on iTunes, iPod or iPhone. Data compressed to approximately 60 - 70% can be decompressed to exactly the same original data.

FLAC (Free Lossless Audio Codec)

FLAC stands for Free lossless Audio Codec, and is a lossless free audio file format. Lossless means that the audio is compressed without any loss in quality.

The FLAC license is as shown below.

Copyright (C) 2000, 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 Josh Coalson

Redistribution and use in source and binary forms, with or without modification, are permitted provided that the following conditions are met:

- Redistributions of source code must retain the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer.
- Redistributions in binary form must reproduce the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer in the documentation and/or other materials provided with the distribution.
- Neither the name of the Xiph.org Foundation nor the names of its contributors may be used to endorse or promote products derived from this software without specific prior written permission.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY THE COPYRIGHT HOLDERS AND CONTRIBUTORS "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE FOUNDATION OR CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

LFE

This is an abbreviation of Low Frequency Effect, which is an output channel that emphasizes low frequency effect sound. Surround audio is intensified by outputting 20 Hz to 120 Hz deep bass to the system subwoofer(s).

MP3 (MPEG Audio Layer-3)

This is an internationally standardized audio data compression scheme, using the "MPEG-1" video compression standard. It compresses the data volume to about one eleventh its original size while maintaining sound quality equivalent to a music CD.

Front panel





MPEG (Moving Picture Experts Group), MPEG-2, MPEG-4

These are the names for digital compression format standards used for the encoding of video and audio. Video standards include "MPEG-1 Video", "MPEG-2 Video", "MPEG-4 Visual", "MPEG-4 AVC". Audio standards include "MPEG-1 Audio", "MPEG-2 Audio", "MPEG-4 AAC".

WMA (Windows Media Audio)

This is audio compression technology developed by Microsoft Corporation.

WMA data can be encoded using Windows Media® Player.

To encode WMA files, only use applications authorized by Microsoft Corporation. If you use an unauthorized application, the file may not work properly.

Sampling frequency

Sampling involves taking a reading of a sound wave (analog signal) at regular intervals and expressing the height of the wave at each reading in digitized format (producing a digital signal).

The number of readings taken in one second is called the "sampling frequency". The larger the value, the closer the reproduced sound is to the original.

Speaker impedance

This is an AC resistance value, indicated in Ω (ohms). Greater power can be obtained when this value is smaller.

Dialogue normalization function

This function operates automatically during playback of Dolby Digital, Dolby Digital Plus, Dolby TrueHD, Dolby Atmos, DTS or DTS-HD sources. It automatically corrects the standard signal level for individual program sources.

Dynamic range

The difference between the maximum undistorted sound level and the minimum discernible level above the noise emitted by the device.

Downmix

This function converts the number of channels of surround audio to a lower number of channels and plays back according to the system's configuration.







Video

Progressive (sequential scanning)

This is a scanning system of the video signal that displays 1 frame of video as one image. Compared to the interlace system, this system provides images with less flickering and jagged edges.

Network

AirPlay

AirPlay sends (plays) contents recorded in iTunes or on an iPhone/iPod touch/iPad to a compatible device via the network.

WEP Key (network key)

This is key information used for encrypting data when conducting data transfer. On this unit, the same WEP key is used for data encryption and decryption, so the same WEP key must be set on both devices in order for communications to be established between them.

Wi-Fi[®]

Wi-Fi Certification assures tested and proven interoperability by the Wi-Fi Alliance, a group certifying interoperability among wireless LAN devices.

WPA (Wi-Fi Protected Access)

This is a security standard established by the Wi-Fi Alliance. In addition to the conventional SSID (network name) and WEP key (network key), it also uses a user identification function and encrypting protocol for stronger security.

WPA2 (Wi-Fi Protected Access 2)

This is a new version of the WPA established by the Wi-Fi Alliance, compatible with more secure AES encryption.

Front panel







WPA-PSK/WPA2-PSK (Pre-shared Key)

This is a simple authentication system for mutual authentication when a preset character string matches on the wireless LAN access point and client.

Network Names (SSID: Service Set Identifier)

When forming wireless LAN networks, groups are formed to prevent interference, data theft, etc. These groups are based on "SSID (network names)". For enhanced security, a WEP key is set so that communication is unavailable unless both the "SSID" and the WEP key match. This is suitable for constructing a simplified network.

Others

HDCP

When transmitting digital signals between devices, this copyright protection technology encrypts the signals to prevent content from being copied without authorization.

MAIN ZONE

The room where this unit is placed is called the MAIN ZONE.

Pairing

Pairing (registration) is an operation that is required in order to connect a Bluetooth device to this unit using Bluetooth. When paired, the devices authenticate each other and can connect without mistaken connections occurring.

When using Bluetooth connection for the first time, you need to pair this unit and the Bluetooth device to be connected.

Protection circuit

This is a function to prevent damage to devices within the power supply when an abnormality such as an overload, excess voltage occurs or over temperature for any reason.

Front panel







Trademark information



Apple, AirPlay, iPad, iPad Air, iPad Pro and iPhone are trademarks of Apple Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries.

The trademark "iPhone" is used in Japan with a license from Aiphone K.K.

Use of the Works with Apple badge means that an accessory has been designed to work specifically with the technology identified in the badge and has been certified by the developer to meet Apple performance standards.



MULTEQ DYNAMIC VOLUME

Manufactured under license from Audyssey Laboratories[™]. U.S. and foreign patents pending. Audyssey MultEQ[®], Audyssey Dynamic EQ[®] and Audyssey Dynamic Volume[®] are registered trademarks of Audyssey Laboratories.



The Bluetooth[®] word mark and logos are registered trademarks owned by the Bluetooth SIG, Inc. and any use of such marks by D&M Holdings Inc. is under license. Other trademarks and trade names are those of their respective owners.





Manufactured under license from Dolby Laboratories. Dolby, Dolby Atmos, Dolby Audio, Dolby Surround, Dolby Vision, and the double-D symbol are trademarks of Dolby Laboratories.

Front panel





C	nt		nt	C
		C	III	3





For DTS patents, see http://patents.dts.com. Manufactured under license from DTS, Inc. DTS, the Symbol, DTS and the Symbol together, DTS:X, the DTS:X logo, Virtual:X, and the DTS Virtual:X logo are registered trademarks and/or trademarks of DTS, Inc. in the United States and/or other countries. © DTS, Inc. All Rights Reserved.



The terms HDMI, HDMI High-Definition Multimedia Interface, and the HDMI Logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of HDMI Licensing Administrator, Inc.



The Wi-Fi CERTIFIED logo is a registered trademark of the Wi-Fi Alliance.

Wi-Fi Certification provides assurance that the device has passed the interoperability test conducted by the Wi-Fi Alliance, a group that certifies interoperability among wireless LAN devices.









	Contents	Connections	Playback	Settings	Tips		Appendix	
--	----------	-------------	----------	----------	------	--	----------	--

Specifications

Audio section	
Power amplifier	
Rated output:	Front:
	90 W + 90 W (8 Ω/ohms, 20 Hz – 20 kHz with 0.08 % T.H.D.)
	125 W + 125 W (6 Ω/ohms, 1 kHz with 0.7 % T.H.D.)
	Center:
	90 W (8 Ω/ohms, 20 Hz – 20 kHz with 0.08 % T.H.D.)
	125 W (6 Ω/ohms, 1 kHz with 0.7 % T.H.D.)
	Surround:
	90 W + 90 W (8 Ω/ohms, 20 Hz – 20 kHz with 0.08 % T.H.D.)
	125 W + 125 W (6 Ω/ohms, 1 kHz with 0.7 % T.H.D.)
	Surround back:
	90 W + 90 W (8 Ω/ohms, 20 Hz – 20 kHz with 0.08 % T.H.D.)
	125 W + 125 W (6 Ω/ohms, 1 kHz with 0.7 % T.H.D.)
Output connectors:	4 – 16 Ω/ohms



Contents	nections Playback	Settings	Tips	Appendix
		V		
Analog				
Input sensitivity:	200 mV			
Frequency response:	10 Hz – 100 kHz — +1,	, –3 dB (Direct mode)		
S/N:	100 dB (IHF-A weighte	ed, Direct mode)		
Phono equalizer				
Input sensitivity:	2.5 mV			
RIAA deviation:	±1 dB (20 Hz to 20 kHz	z)		
S/N:	74 dB (IHF-A weighted	l, with 5 mV input)		
Distortion factor:	0.03 % (1 kHz, 3 V)			

Video section

- Standard video connectors
 Input/output level and impedance: 1 Vp-p, 75 Ω/ohms
 Frequency response: 5 Hz 10 MHz 0, -3 dB
- Color component video connector Input/output level and impedance: Y signa P_B/C_B

Frequency response:

5 HZ - 10 MHZ - 0, -

Y signal — 1 Vp-p, 75 Ω /ohms P_B / C_B signal — 0.7 Vp-p, 75 Ω /ohms P_R / C_R signal — 0.7 Vp-p, 75 Ω /ohms 5 Hz – 60 MHz — 0, –3 dB





Contents Connections	Playback Settings	Tips Appendix
Tuner section	[FM]	[AM]
	(Note: μ V at 75 Ω /ohms, 0 dBf = 1 x 10 ⁻¹⁵ W)	
Reception frequency range:	87.5 MHz – 107.9 MHz	520 kHz – 1710 kHz
Effective sensitivity:	1.2 μV (12.8 dBf)	18 μV
50 dB sensitivity:	MONO – 2.8 µV (20.2 dBf)	
S/N ratio:	MONO — 70 dB (IHF–A weighted, Direct mode) STEREO — 67 dB (IHF–A weighted, Direct mode)	
Distortion:	MONO — 0.7 % (1 kHz) STEREO — 1.0 % (1 kHz)	
Wireless LAN section		
Network type (wireless LAN standard):	Conforming to IEEE 802.11a/b/g/n (Wi-Fi [®] compliant) *1	
Security:	WEP 64 bit, WEP 128 bit	
	WPA/WPA2-PSK (AES)	
	WPA/WPA2-PSK (TKIP)	

Used frequency range:

*1 The Wi-Fi® CERTIFIED Logo and the Wi-Fi CERTIFIED On-Product Logo are registered trademarks of the Wi-Fi Alliance.

2.4 GHz, 5 GHz





Contents Connections	Playback Settings Tips Appendix
Bluetooth section	
Communications system:	Bluetooth Specification Version 3.0 + EDR (Enhanced Data Rate)
Transmission power:	Bluetooth Specification Power Class 1
Maximum communication range:	Approx. 98.4 ft/30 m in line of sight *2
Used frequency range:	2.4 GHz
Modulation scheme:	FHSS (Frequency-Hopping Spread Spectrum)
Supported profiles:	A2DP (Advanced Audio Distribution Profile) 1.2
	AVRCP (Audio Video Remote Control Profile) 1.5
Corresponding codec:	SBC
Transmission range (A2DP):	20 Hz – 20,000 Hz

*2 The actual communication range varies depending on the influence of such factors as obstructions between devices, electromagnetic waves from microwave ovens, static electricity, cordless phones, reception sensitivity, antenna performance, operating system, application software etc.

General

4

Operating temperature:	41 °F - 95 °F (5 °C - 35 °C)
Power supply:	AC 120 V, 60 Hz
Power consumption:	460 W
Power consumption in standby mode:	0.1 W *
Power consumption in CEC standby mode:	0.5 W

* When "Network Control" in the menu is set to "Off In Standby" and "HDMI Pass Through" is set to "Off".

For purposes of improvement, specifications and design are subject to change without notice.









Remote

Index

Front panel

Display

Rear panel

Index

Contents

P Numerics
3D 240
4K 240
5.1-channel 34, 42
7.1-channel

ICT A

AirPlay1	00
All Zone Stereo 1	11
Audio formats 242, 245, 247, 24	48
Audio settings 140, 14	45
Audyssey Dynamic EQ® 2	57
Audyssey Dynamic Volume® 2	57
Audyssey MultEQ® 2	57
Audyssey settings 153, 1	76
Audyssey® Setup 1	74
Auto sound mode 1	15
Auto Standby 24	05

Connections

Settings

C C

Playback

	U	
Cable	• TV	 56

C D

Direct sound mode	119
Display	20
Dolby Atmos	258
Dolby sound mode	116, 258
DTS sound mode	117, 260
DVD player	57, 68

C E	
ECO Mode	202

C**F**

Tips

EF F	
Firmware Update	209
FM/AM antenna	61, 78
Front panel	16

B

HDCP	242
HDMI Control 124,	160
HEOS Account 92,	201
HEOS Favorites	105

Front panel

273





Appendix

Front panel



R

274



13 I	
Input Assign	170
Input settings	141, 170
Input signal	254
Input source	67
Internet Radio	

Connections

107 L	
Listening position	174

GT M	
Menu map	140
Muting	. 68

13 N	
NAS 87	
Network settings 194	
G 0	Ľ

ICE P	
Pairing	74, 75
PC	87
PCM multi-channel sound mode	118
Picture Mode	157

Original sound mode 118

CT Q

Queue	70, 88, 9	5
Quick select plus	129	9

C R	
Rear panel	. 22
Remote control unit	. 26
Resetting factory settings	238
Resetting network settings	239
Restorer	150

lo∰ S

Tips

-	
Satellite tuner	56
Set-top box	56
Setup Assistant	143
Sleep timer	127
Sound mode	113, 249, 251
Speaker connection	
Speaker settings	141, 174
Spotify	103
Stereo sound mode	119

Contents \

Playback

Settings

Contents	\sim	Conne
т		

G∰ T	kan an a
Tips 218	Web control 135
Troubleshooting 220	Wi-Fi settings 195
TV 51, 53, 54	Wired LAN 63, 194
	Wireless LAN 64, 195

C U

USB memory device	60, 69

Kan €	
Video camcorder	58
Video Select	109
Video settings	140, 157
Volume	. 68, 107

C Z

ZONE2	49, 137
-------	---------

Settings

ections

Playback

Front panel







License

License information for the software used in the unit

About GPL (GNU-General Public License), LGPL (GNU Lesser General Public License) License

This product uses GPL/LGPL software and software made by other companies.

After you purchase this product, you may procure, modify or distribute the source code of the GPL/LGPL software that is used in the product.

Denon provides the source code based on the GPL and LPGL licenses at the actual cost upon your request to our customer service center. However, note that we make no guarantees concerning the source code. Please also understand that we do not offer support for the contents of the source code.

This section describes software license used for this unit. To maintain the correct content, the original (English) is used.

GPL

Open Source Used	Version
bridge-utils	2.8
busybox	1.21.1
ebtables	2.0.10-4
Linux kernel	3.10.74
mtd-utils	1.4.3
ntfs-3g_ntfsprogs	2011.4.12
ntpclient	2007
u-boot	2015.01
wireless-tools	version 29





Front panel



Open Source Used	Version
ffmpeg	0.8.3
glibc	2.9
libmms	0.6.2
QT	5.4.2
cifs-units	6.7

Babel

MIT License

Copyright (c) 2014-2018 Sebastian McKenzie <sebmck@gmail.com>

Permission is hereby granted, free of charge, to any person obtaining a copy of this software and associated documentation files (the "Software"), to deal in the Software without restriction, including without limitation the rights to use, copy, modify, merge, publish, distribute, sublicense, and/or sell copies of the Software, and to permit persons to whom the Software is furnished to do so, subject to the following conditions:

The above copyright notice and this permission notice shall be included in all copies or substantial portions of the Software.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

curl-7.24.0

COPYRIGHT AND PERMISSION NOTICE

Copyright (c) 1996 - 2014, Daniel Stenberg, <daniel@haxx.se> All rights reserved.

Permission to use, copy, modify, and distribute this software for any purpose with or without fee is hereby granted, provided that the above copyright notice and this permission notice appear in all copies.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT OF THIRD PARTY RIGHTS. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

Except as contained in this notice, the name of a copyright holder shall not be used in advertising or otherwise to promote the sale, use or other dealings in this Software without prior written authorization of the copyright holder.

Contents

Connections

Settings

Playback

e2fsprogs-libs-1.40.8/lib/uuid

Redistribution and use in source and binary forms, with or without modification, are permitted provided that the following conditions are met:

- 1. Redistributions of source code must retain the above copyright notice, and the entire permission notice in its entirety, including the disclaimer of warranties.
- 2. Redistributions in binary form must reproduce the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer in the documentation and/or other materials provided with the distribution.
- **3.** The name of the author may not be used to endorse or promote products derived from this software without specific prior written permission.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, ALL OF WHICH ARE HEREBY DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHOR BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF NOT ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

D expat-2.0.1

Copyright (c) 1998, 1999, 2000 Thai Open Source Software Center Ltd and Clark Cooper

Copyright (c) 2001, 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005, 2006 Expat maintainers.

Permission is hereby granted, free of charge, to any person obtaining a copy of this software and associated documentation files (the "Software"), to deal in the Software without restriction, including without limitation the rights to use, copy, modify, merge, publish, distribute, sublicense, and/or sell copies of the Software, and to permit persons to whom the Software is furnished to do so, subject to the following conditions:

The above copyright notice and this permission notice shall be included in all copies or substantial portions of the Software.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT.

IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

Index

Front panel

278

Remote



getopt

http://cvsweb.netbsd.org/bsdweb.cgi/src/lib/libc/stdlib/

Copyright (c) 1987, 1993, 1994 The Regents of the University of California. All rights reserved.

Redistribution and use in source and binary forms, with or without modification, are permitted provided that the following conditions are met:

- 1. Redistributions of source code must retain the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer.
- 2. Redistributions in binary form must reproduce the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer in the documentation and/or other materials provided with the distribution.
- 3. Neither the name of the University nor the names of its contributors may be used to endorse or promote products derived from this software without specific prior written permission.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY THE REGENTS AND CONTRIBUTORS "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE REGENTS OR CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

□ jQuery

Copyright 2014 jQuery Foundation and other contributors http://jquery.com/

Permission is hereby granted, free of charge, to any person obtaining a copy of this software and associated documentation files (the "Software"), to deal in the Software without restriction, including without limitation the rights to use, copy, modify, merge, publish, distribute, sublicense, and/or sell copies of the Software, and to permit persons to whom the Software is furnished to do so, subject to the following conditions:

The above copyright notice and this permission notice shall be included in all copies or substantial portions of the Software.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.







□ libpcap-1.4.0

License: BSD

Redistribution and use in source and binary forms, with or without modification, are permitted provided that the following conditions are met:

- 1. Redistributions of source code must retain the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer.
- 2. Redistributions in binary form must reproduce the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer in the documentation and/or other materials provided with the distribution.
- **3.** The names of the authors may not be used to endorse or promote products derived from this software without specific prior written permission.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS" AND WITHOUT ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

libtar-1.2.11

Copyright (c) 1998-2003 University of Illinois Board of Trustees Copyright (c) 1998-2003 Mark D. Roth

All rights reserved.

Developed by: Campus Information Technologies and Educational Services, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign

Permission is hereby granted, free of charge, to any person obtaining a copy of this software and associated documentation files (the "Software"), to deal with the Software without restriction, including without limitation the rights to use, copy, modify, merge, publish, distribute, sublicense, and/or sell copies of the Software, and to permit persons to whom the Software is furnished to do so, subject to the following conditions:

- Redistributions of source code must retain the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimers.
- Redistributions in binary form must reproduce the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimers in the documentation and/or other materials provided with the distribution.
- Neither the names of Campus Information Technologies and Educational Services, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, nor the names of its contributors may be used to endorse or promote products derived from this Software without specific prior written permission.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT.

IN NO EVENT SHALL THE CONTRIBUTORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS WITH THE SOFTWARE.

Front panel





mDNS 320.10.80

The majority of the source code in the mDNSResponder project is licensed under the terms of the Apache License, Version 2.0, available from:

<http://www.apache.org/licenses/LICENSE-2.0>

To accommodate license compatibility with the widest possible range of client code licenses, the shared library code, which is linked at runtime into the same address space as the client using it, is licensed under the terms of the "Three-Clause BSD License".

The Linux Name Service Switch code, contributed by National ICT Australia Ltd (NICTA) is licensed under the terms of the NICTA Public Software Licence (which is substantially similar to the "Three-Clause BSD License", with some additional language pertaining to Australian law).

mongoose

https://github.com/cesanta/mongoose/

Copyright (c) 2004-2013 Sergey Lyubka

Permission is hereby granted, free of charge, to any person obtaining a copy of this software and associated documentation files (the "Software"), to deal in the Software without restriction, including without limitation the rights to use, copy, modify, merge, publish, distribute, sublicense, and/or sell copies of the Software, and to permit persons to whom the Software is furnished to do so, subject to the following conditions:

The above copyright notice and this permission notice shall be included in all copies or substantial portions of the Software.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

Index

Front panel





openssl-1.0.0d

Copyright (c) 1998-2011 The OpenSSL Project. All rights reserved.

Redistribution and use in source and binary forms, with or without modification, are permitted provided that the following conditions are met:

- 1. Redistributions of source code must retain the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer.
- 2. Redistributions in binary form must reproduce the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer in the documentation and/or other materials provided with the distribution.
- All advertising materials mentioning features or use of this software must display the following acknowledgment: "This product includes software developed by the OpenSSL Project for use in the OpenSSL Toolkit. (http://www.openssl.org/)"
- The names "OpenSSL Toolkit" and "OpenSSL Project" must not be used to endorse or promote products derived from this software without prior written permission. For written permission, please contact openssl-core@openssl.org.
- 5. Products derived from this software may not be called "OpenSSL" nor may "OpenSSL" appear in their names without prior written permission of the OpenSSL Project.
- 6. Redistributions of any form whatsoever must retain the following acknowledgment:

"This product includes software developed by the OpenSSL Project for use in the OpenSSL Toolkit (http://www.openssl.org/)"

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY THE OpenSSL PROJECT "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE OpenSSL PROJECT OR ITS CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

Tips

This product includes cryptographic software written by Eric Young (eay@cryptsoft.com). This product includes software written by Tim Hudson (tjh@cryptsoft.com).

282

Settinas



Playback

D portmap-6.0

Copyright (c) 1990 The Regents of the University of California.

- All rights reserved.
- Redistribution and use in source and binary forms, with or without modification, are permitted provided that the following conditions are met:
- 1. Redistributions of source code must retain the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer.
- Redistributions in binary form must reproduce the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer in the documentation and/or other materials provided with the distribution.
- A II advertising materials mentioning features or use of this software must display the following acknowledgement: This product includes software developed by the University of California, Berkeley and its contributors.
- Neither the name of the University nor the names of its contributors may be used to endorse or promote products derived from this software without specific prior written permission.
- THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY THE REGENTS AND CONTRIBUTORS "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE REGENTS OR CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

pstdint.h-0.1.12

- BSD License:
- Copyright (c) 2005-2011 Paul Hsieh
- All rights reserved.
- Redistribution and use in source and binary forms, with or without modification, are permitted provided that the following conditions are met:
- 1. Redistributions of source code must retain the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer.
- Redistributions in binary form must reproduce the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer in the documentation and/or other materials provided with the distribution.
- **3.** The name of the author may not be used to endorse or promote products derived from this software without specific prior written permission.
- THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY THE AUTHOR "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED.
- IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHOR BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.



Remote





rl78flash 2000.3.1

License

The MIT License (MIT) Copyright (c) 2012 Maxim Salov

Permission is hereby granted, free of charge, to any person obtaining a copy of this software and associated documentation files (the "Software"), to deal in the Software without restriction, including without limitation the rights to use, copy, modify, merge, publish, distribute, sublicense, and/or sell copies of the Software, and to permit persons to whom the Software is furnished to do so, subject to the following conditions:

The above copyright notice and this permission notice shall be included in all copies or substantial portions of the Software.

THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS", WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NONINFRINGEMENT. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHORS OR COPYRIGHT HOLDERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY CLAIM, DAMAGES OR OTHER LIABILITY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE, ARISING FROM, OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SOFTWARE OR THE USE OR OTHER DEALINGS IN THE SOFTWARE.

Given selite 2003.5.7

SQLite Copyright SQLite is in the Public Domain

All of the code and documentation in SQLite has been dedicated to the public domain by the authors. All code authors, and representatives of the companies they work for, have signed affidavits dedicating their contributions to the public domain and originals of those signed affidavits are stored in a firesafe at the main offices of Hwaci. Anyone is free to copy, modify, publish, use, compile, sell, or distribute the original SQLite code, either in source code form or as a compiled binary, for any purpose, commercial or non-commercial, and by any means.

The previous paragraph applies to the deliverable code and documentation in SQLite - those parts of the SQLite library that you actually bundle and ship with a larger application. Some scripts used as part of the build process (for example the "configure" scripts generated by autoconf) might fall under other open-source licenses. Nothing from these build scripts ever reaches the final deliverable SQLite library, however, and so the licenses associated with those scripts should not be a factor in assessing your rights to copy and use the SQLite library.

All of the deliverable code in SQLite has been written from scratch. No code has been taken from other projects or from the open internet. Every line of code can be traced back to its original author, and all of those authors have public domain dedications on file. So the SQLite code base is clean and is uncontaminated with licensed code from other projects.

Front panel





Stricpy.c , v1.11

- Copyright (c) 1998 Todd C. Miller < Todd.Miller@courtesan.com>
- Permission to use, copy, modify, and distribute this software for any purpose with or without fee is hereby granted, provided that the above copyright notice and this permission notice appear in all copies.
- THE SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED "AS IS" AND THE AUTHOR DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES WITH REGARD TO THIS SOFTWARE INCLUDING ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE AUTHOR BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, DIRECT, INDIRECT, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OR ANY DAMAGES WHATSOEVER RESULTING FROM LOSS OF USE, DATA OR PROFITS, WHETHER IN AN ACTION OF CONTRACT, NEGLIGENCE OR OTHER TORTIOUS ACTION, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE USE OR PERFORMANCE OF THIS SOFTWARE.

Laglib-1.5

copyright : (C) 2002 - 2008 by Scott Wheeler email : wheeler@kde.org

"The contents of this file are subject to the Mozilla Public License Version 1.1 (the "License"); you may not use this file except in compliance with the License. You may obtain a copy of the License at http://www.mozilla.org/MPL/

Software distributed under the License is distributed on an "AS IS" basis, WITHOUT WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, either express or implied. See the License for the specific language governing rights and limitations under the License.

Linyxml 2002.4.3

www.sourceforge.net/projects/tinyxml

This software is provided 'as-is', without any express or implied warranty. In no event will the authors be held liable for any damages arising from the use of this software.

Permission is granted to anyone to use this software for any purpose, including commercial applications, and to alter it and redistribute it freely, subject to the following restrictions:

- The origin of this software must not be misrepresented; you must not claim that you wrote the original software. If you use this software in a product, an acknowledgment in the product documentation would be appreciated but is not required.
- 2. Altered source versions must be plainly marked as such, and must not be misrepresented as being the original software.
- **3.** This notice may not be removed or altered from any source distribution.

Front panel





tions \ /

Playback

Settings

Tremor

http://wiki.xiph.org/index.php/Tremor

Copyright (c) 2002, Xiph.org Foundation

Redistribution and use in source and binary forms, with or without modification, are permitted provided that the following conditions are met:

- 1. Redistributions of source code must retain the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer.
- 2. Redistributions in binary form must reproduce the above copyright notice, this list of conditions and the following disclaimer in the documentation and/or other materials provided with the distribution.
- **3.** Neither the name of the Xiph.org Foundation nor the names of its contributors may be used to endorse or promote products derived from this software without specific prior written permission.

THIS SOFTWARE IS PROVIDED BY THE COPYRIGHT HOLDERS AND CONTRIBUTORS "AS IS" AND ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE DISCLAIMED. IN NO EVENT SHALL THE FOUNDATION OR CONTRIBUTORS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DIRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL, EXEMPLARY, OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PROCUREMENT OF SUBSTITUTE GOODS OR SERVICES; LOSS OF USE, DATA, OR PROFITS; OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION) HOWEVER CAUSED AND ON ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, STRICT LIABILITY, OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE OR OTHERWISE) ARISING IN ANY WAY OUT OF THE USE OF THIS SOFTWARE, EVEN IF ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGE.

🛛 zlib

http://www.zlib.net/

zlib.h -- interface of the 'zlib' general purpose compression library version 1.2.3, July 18th, 2005

Copyright (C) 1995-2004 Jean-loup Gailly and Mark Adler This software is provided 'as-is', without any express or implied warranty. In no event will the authors be held liable for any damages arising from the use of this software.

Permission is granted to anyone to use this software for any purpose, including commercial applications, and to alter it and redistribute it freely, subject to the following restrictions:

- 1. The origin of this software must not be misrepresented; you must not claim that you wrote the original software. If you use this software in a product, an acknowledgment in the product documentation would be appreciated but is not required.
- 2. Altered source versions must be plainly marked as such, and must not be misrepresented as being the original software.

Index

3. This notice may not be removed or altered from any source distribution.

Jean-loup Gailly jloup@gzip.org, Mark Adler madler@alumni.caltech.edu

The Spotify software is subject to third party licenses found here:

www.spotify.com/connect/third-party-licenses





3520 10676 00AD Copyright © 2019 D&M Holdings Inc. All Rights Reserved.

DENON®

AVR-S950H

INTEGRATED NETWORK AV RECEIVER

Quick Start Guide

Guide de démarrage rapide / Guía de inicio rápido

Read Me First....

Lisez-moi en premier.... / Lea esto primero....

Check our AVR setup tips online Usa.denon.com/SetupTips Ca.Denon.com/SetupTips

Please do not return this unit to the store. If you need help...

Call for Assistance 1-855-MY.DENON (USA) 1-855-693-3666 1-800-668-0652 (Canada)

Monday – Friday 10:00AM to 10:00PM E.S.T Saturday 12:00PM to 8:00PM E.S.T ENGLISH

FRANÇAIS

ESPAÑOL
Welcome

Thank you for choosing a Denon AV receiver. This guide provides step-bystep instructions for setting up your AV receiver.

Before You Begin

Required for Setup



6

- When connecting this unit to a device that is compatible with the Deep Color, 4K, ARC and eARC functions, use a "High Speed HDMI cable with Ethernet" that displays the HDMI logo.
- These drawings are for illustrative purposes only and may not represent the actual product(s).

What's In the Box

Quick Start Guide	FM indoor antenna	Arr
Safety Instructions	AM loop antenna	Q
Notes on radio	Sound calibration microphone	-
Warranty (for North America model only)	Sound calibration microphone stand	
Cable labels	Remote control unit (RC-1228)	UT BEE
Receiver	R03/AAA batteries	
	External antennas for Bluetooth / wireless connectivity	

 The included sound calibration microphone stand is convenient for use when performing Speaker Calibration. Using your own tripod or the supplied Sound calibration microphone stand enables settings to be automatically configured to the optimum listening environment, providing exceptionally high performance.

Important: External Antennas

The removable external antennas are required for both Bluetooth and Wireless network connectivity. Please make sure to connect the antennas before attempting to use the Bluetooth or Wi-Fi features of the AVR-S950H.

Connecting the external antennas for Bluetooth / Wireless connectivity

For each of the two antennas:

- ① Place the antenna evenly over the antenna terminal located at the upper left or right corner of the rear panel.
- ② Turn the antenna clockwise until it is fully connected. Do not over tighten.
- ③ Rotate the antenna upwards for the best possible reception.



Setup

There are four steps to the setup process.

1	Installing batteries in the remote control unit
2	Connecting the receiver
3	Following the On-Screen Setup Assistant
4	Downloading the Mobile Apps

Installing batteries in the remote control unit



4

2 Connecting the receiver

1) Place the receiver near your TV and connect the power cord



2) Connect the receiver to your home network

Wired LAN

Connect an Ethernet cable (not included) between your receiver and your network router.



Wireless LAN

When connecting to wireless LAN (Wi-Fi), follow the instructions in "Connecting the external antennas for Bluetooth / Wireless connectivity" and connect the antennas.



Interditing Stanfords, etc.) ARC requires that you anable HDMI CEC on your W.P.Messe Infer to your TV's Commun. Manual for districtions on how so extra HDMS CEC. In addition, if your TV supports relfC, A cart side such reck high bitsets such to nects over an Dotter Instelli. Lufty Preset CC ID Maxim Audio and DTS 2. Preser rests to each the Dotter Instelli. Lufty Preset CC of additional Information activity Preservation. 3) Connect the receiver to your TV with 4) Turn on the TV an HDMI cable



ARC (Audio Return Channel) and eARC (Enhanced Audio **Return Channel) support:**

If your TV supports ARC, your TV can send audio back to the AV receiver when you are using your TV's built-in video sources (TV tuner, Smart TV streaming services, etc.) ARC requires that you enable HDMI CEC on your TV. Please refer to your TV's Owner's Manual for instructions on how to setup HDMI CEC. In addition, if your TV supports eARC, it can also send back high bitrate audio formats such as Dolby TrueHD, Dolby Atmos, DTS HD Master Audio and DTS:X. Please refer to your TV's Owner's Manual for additional information about enabling the eARC function.



TV remote control unit

5) Select the appropriate HDMI input on your TV



TV remote control unit

6) Turn on the receiver

• Press 🕁 to turn on the receiver.



7) Verify the connection

• Verify that you can see this screen on your TV.

Plea	se select a language	
	English Français Español	

If this screen is not displayed, please go back and retry the steps again in the recommended sequence.

3 Following the On-Screen Setup Assistant

Now TV is connected to the receiver.

The Setup Assistant will walk you through connecting and configuring your speakers and components to your Denon receiver. Please use the remote control and follow the on-screen instructions.

Please	select a language.	
S. S. S. S. Same	English	
-	Français	
	Español	



4 Downloading the Mobile Apps

Download both the "HEOS" App and the "Denon 2016 AVR Remote" App for the full home entertainment experience. The HEOS App is required to access online music through your AVR.

HEOS



The HEOS App allows you to explore, browse, and play music from many online streaming services or from your own music library.

Denon 2016 AVR Remote



Control your new AVR with the latest Denon 2016 AVR Remote App. Volume control, sound mode selection and advanced settings are always only a tap away.







Owner's Manual

- For more information, visit www.denon.com
- Refer to the Online Manual for other functions information and operation procedure details.
 manuals.denon.com/AVRS950H/NA/EN/



Online Manual



DENON°

www.denon.com

Printed in Vietnam 5411 11735 00AD Copyright © 2019 D&M Holdings Inc. All Rights Reserved.



Microphone Stand Assembly Instructions

Montageanleitung Mikrofonständer Instructions d'assemblage du support de microphone Istruzioni per il montaggio del supporto microfono Instrucciones de montaje del soporte del micrófono Montage-instructies Microfoonstatief Monteringsanvisning för mikrofonställ Инструкции по сборке стойки под микрофон Instrukcje montażu stojaka na mikrofon

マイクスタンド組み立て説明書 麦克风支架组装说明



Safety Instructions (Read these safety instructions before operating the unit.)

□ SAFETY PRECAUTIONS



CAUTION: TO REDUCE THE RISK OF ELECTRIC SHOCK, DO NOT REMOVE COVER (OR BACK). NO USER-SERVICEABLE PARTS INSIDE REFER SERVICING TO QUALIFIED SERVICE PERSONNEL



The lightning flash with arrowhead symbol, within an equilateral triangle, is intended to alert the user to the presence of uninsulated "dangerous voltage" within the product's enclosure that may be of sufficient magnitude to constitute a risk of electric shock to persons

The exclamation point within an equilateral triangle is intended to alert the user to the presence of important operating and maintenance (servicing) instructions in the literature accompanying the appliance.

WARNING: TO REDUCE THE RISK OF FIRE OR ELECTRIC SHOCK, DO NOT EXPOSE THIS APPLIANCE TO RAIN OR MOISTURE.

IMPORTANT SAFETY INSTRUCTIONS

- Read these instructions
- Keen these instructions
- Heed all warnings
- Follow all instructions
- Do not use this apparatus near water
- Clean only with dry cloth
- Do not block any ventilation openings
- Install in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions 8. Do not install near any heat sources such as radiators, heat registers, stoves, or other apparatus (including amplifiers) that produce heat.
- 9. Do not defeat the safety purpose of the polarized or grounding-type plug. A polarized plug has two blades with one wider than the other. A grounding type plug has two blades and a third grounding prong. The wide blade or the third prong are provided for your safety. If the provided plug does not fit into your outlet, consult an electrician for replacement of the obsolete outlet.
- 10. Protect the power cord from being walked on or pinched particularly at plugs, convenience receptacles, and the point where they exit from the annaratus
- 11. Only use attachments/accessories specified by the manufacturer
- 12. Use only with the cart, stand, tripod, bracket, or table specified by the manufacturer, or sold with the apparatus. When a cart is used, use caution when moving the cart/apparatus combination to avoid injury from tip-over.



damaged in any way, such as power-supply cord or plug is damaged, liquid has been spilled or objects have fallen into the apparatus, the apparatus has been exposed to rain or moisture, does not operate normally, or has been dropped. 15. Batteries shall not be exposed to excessive heat such as sunshine, fire or the like.

FCC INFORMATION (For US customers)

1. COMPLIANCE INFORMATION

- This product complies with Part 15 of the FCC Rules. Operation is subject to the following two conditions: (1) this product may not cause harmful interference, and (2) this product must accept any interference received, including interference that may cause undesired operation.
- Denon Electronics (USA), LLC (a D&M Holdings Company)
- 100 Corporate Drive, Mahwah, NJ 07430-2041

Tel (201) 762-666

2. IMPORTANT NOTICE: DO NOT MODIFY THIS PRODUCT

This product, when installed as indicated in the instructions contained in this manual, meets FCC requirements. Modification not expressly approved by Denon may void your authority, granted by the FCC, to use the product. 3. NOTE

This product has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class B digital device, pursuant to Part 15 of

the FCC Rules. These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference in a residential installation This product generates, uses and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance

with the instructions, may cause harmful interference to radio communications. However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation. If this product does cause harmful interference to radio or television reception, which can be determined by turning the product OFF and ON, the user is encouraged to try to correct the interference by one or more of the following measures:

· Reorient or relocate the receiving antenna.

- Increase the separation between the equipment and receiver.
- . Connect the product into an outlet on a circuit different from that to which the receiver is connected. · Consult the local retailer authorized to distribute this type of product or an experienced radio / TV technician for help.

4 IMPORTANT (For Network model)

When connecting this product to network hub or router, use only a shielded STP or ScTP LAN cable which is available at retailer

Follow all installation instructions. Failure to follow instructions could void your authority, granted by the FCC, to use he product

5. CAUTION (For Bluetooth/Wi-Fi model)

 To comply with FCC RF exposure compliance requirement, separation distance of at least 20 cm must be maintained between this product and all persons. . This product and its antenna must not be co-located or operating in conjunction with any other antenna or transmitter.

□ IC INFORMATION (For Canadian customers)

CAN ICES-3 (B) / NMB-3 (B)

CAUTION

To completely disconnect this product from the mains, disconnect the plug from the wall socket outlet. The mains plug is used to completely interrupt the power supply to the unit and must be within easy access by the user

PRECAUTION:

Pour déconnecter complètement ce produit du courant secteur, débranchez la prise de la prise murale. La prise secteur est utilisée pour couper complètement l'alimentation de l'appareil et l'utilisateur doit pouvoir y accéder facilement.

PRECAUCIÓN:

Para desconectar completamente este producto de la alimentación eléctrica, desconecte el enchufe del enchufe de la nared

El enchufe de la alimentación eléctrica se utiliza para interrumpir por completo el suministro de alimentación

Para desligar este produto completamente da tomada de alimentação, retire a ficha da tomada de alimentação

unidade e tem de estar facilmente acessível ao utilizador.

CAUTIONS ON INSTALLATION

For proper heat dispersal, do not install this unit in a confined space, such as a bookcase or similar enclosure Amplifier: 0.3 m or more

• Other units: 0.1 m or more

PRÉCAUTIONS D'INSTALLATION

Pour permettre la dissipation de chaleur requise, n'installez pas cette unité dans un espace confiné tel qu'une bibliothèque ou un endroit similaire. · Amplificateur: 0,3 m ou plus · Autres appareils: 0,1 m ou plus

Para la dispersión del calor adecuadamente, no instale este equipo en un lugar confinado tal como una

eléctrica a la unidad y debe de encontrarse en un lugar al que el usuario tenga fácil acceso.

ATENCÃO:

A ficha da tomada de alimentação é utilizada para cortar completamente a alimentação de corrente à

librería o unidad similar. Amplificador: 0.3 m o más Otras unidades: 0,1 m o más

PRECAUÇÕES DE INSTALAÇÃO

EMPLAZAMIENTO DE LA INSTALACIÓN

Para uma correcta dispersão do calor, não instale esta unidade num espaço confinado, como uma estante de livros ou uma estrutura semelhante. · Amplificador: 0.3 m ou mais • Outros unidades: 0.1 m ou mais

L NOTES ON USE / OBSERVATIONS RELATIVES A L'UTILISATION / NOTAS SOBRE EL USO / NOTAS SOBRE A UTILIZAÇÃO

WARNINGS	AVERTISSEMENTS	ADVERTENCIAS	AVISOS
Avoid high temperatures. Allow for sufficient heat dispersion when installed in a rack. Hold the plug when unplugging the cord. Keep the unit free from moisture, water, and dust. Unplug the power cord when not using the unit for long periods of time. Do not obstruct the ventilation holes. Do not obstruct the ventilation holes. Do not let insecticides, benzene, and thinner come in contact with the unit. Never disassemble or modify the unit in any way. Ventilation should not be impeded by covering the ventilation openings with items, such as newspapers, tablecloths or curtains. Naked flame sources such as lighted cancles should not be placed on the unit. Observe and follow local regulations regarding battery disposal. Do not place objects filled with liquids, such as vases, on the unit. Do not place objects filled with liquids, such as wases, on the unit. Do not handle the mains cord with wet hands. When the switch is in the OFF (STANDBY) position, the equipment is not completely switched off from MAINS. The equipment shall be installed near the power supply so that the power supply is easily accessible. Do not keep the battery in a place exposed to direct sunlight or in places with extremely high temperatures, such as near a heater. Do not bend forcedly the plug on the equipment for the connection between the connector and micro USB/USB cable.	 Eviter des températures élevées. Tenir compte d'une dispersion de chaleur suffisante lors de l'installation sur une étagère. Manipuler le cordon d'alimentation avec précaution. Tenir la prise lors du débranchement du cordon. Protéger l'appareil contre l'humidité, l'eau et la poussière. Débrancher le cordon d'alimentation lorsque l'appareil n'est pas utilisé pendant de longues périodes. Ne pas obstruer les trous d'aération. Ne pas alisser des objets étrangers dans l'appareil. Ne pas alisser des objets étrangers dans l'appareil. Ne pas nettre en contact des insecticides, du benzène et un diluant avec l'appareil. Ne pas mettre es ordit des insecticides, du benzène et un diluant avec l'appareil. Ne pas mettre sordit des journaux, nappes ou rideaux. Cela entraverait la ventilation. Ne jamais plecer de flamme nue sur l'appareil, notamment des bougies allumées. V'allez à respecter les lois en vigueur lorsque vous jetez les piles usgées. L'appareil ne doit pas être exposé à l'eau ou à l'humidité. Ne pas manipuler le cordon d'alimentation avec les mains mouillées. Lorsque l'interrupteur est sur la position OFF (STANDEY), l'appareil n'est pas complètement déconnect du SECTEUR (MAINS). L'appareil sera installé prês de la source d'alimentation, de sorte que cette dernière soit facilement accessible. Ne placez pas la pile dans un endroit exposé à la lumiter directe du soleil ou dans des endroits présentant des températures extrêmement élevées, par exemple près d'un radiateur. Ne pilez pas la fiche sur l'appareil en forçant pour connecter la borne au câble micro USB/USB. 	 Evite altas temperaturas. Permite la suficiente dispersión del calor cuando está instalado en la consola. Maneje el cordón de energía con cuidado. Sostenga el enchufe cuando desconecte el cordón de energía. Mantenga el equipo libre de humedad, agua y polvo. Desconecte el cordón de energía cuando no utilice el equipo por mucho tiempo. No obstruya los orificios de ventilación. No deje objetos extraños dentro del equipo. No portina el contacto de insecticidas, gasolina y diluyentes con el equipo. Nunca desarme o modifique el equipo de ninguna manera. La ventilación no debe quedar obstruida por haberse cubierto las aperturas con objetos como periódicos, manteles o cortínas. No deberán colocarse sobre el aparato fuentes inflamables sin protección, como velas encendidas. A la hora de deshacerse de las pilas, respete la normativa para el cuidado del medio ambiente. No colocar sobre el aparato o salpicaduras cuando se utilice. No colocar sobre el aparato o salpicaduras cuando se utilice. No colocar sobre el aparato o con las manos mojadas. Cuando el interruptor está en la posición OFF (STANDBY), el equipo no está completamente desconectado de la alimentación MAINS. El equipo se instalará cerca de la fuente de alimentación de manera que resulte fácil acceder a ella. No coloque las pilas en un lugar expuesto a la luz directa del sol o donde la temperatura sea extremadamente alta, como cerca de una calefacción. No doble a la fuerza la clavija del equipo para la conexión entre el conector y el cable micro USB/ USB. 	 Evite temperaturas altas. Assegure uma suficiente dispersão do calo quando a unidade for instalada numa prateleira. Manuseie o cabo de alimentação com cuidado. Puxe pela ficha quando desligar o cabo de alimentação. Mantenta a unidade afastada da humidade, di água e do pó. Desligue o cabo de alimentação quando nái estiver a utilizar a unidade por longos períodos de tempo. Não dobra o objectos estranhos dentro da unidade. Não dobra o objectos estranhos dentro da unidade. Não deve objectos estranhos dentro da unidade. A ventilação não deve ser obstruida, tapandi as aberturas de ventilação com objectos, come jornais, toalhas ou cortinas. Não devem ser colocadas junto à unidade for a suberta so de alimentação com objectos, come jornais, toalhas ou cortinas. Não coloque objectos com líquidos, como jartas em cima da unidade. Não coloque objectos com líquidos, como jartas em cima du anidade. Não coloque objectos com líquidos, como jartas em cima da unidade. Não coloque objectos com líquidos, como jartas em cima da unidade. Não manuseie o cabo de alimentação com a osição OFF (STANDBY), o equipamento não est completamente devadas aberidado junto da font de alimentação, para que a fonte de alimentação testeja facilmente acesivel. Não dobre forced/y o plugue do equipamento para a conexão entre o conector e cabo USB / micro USB.

DENON

CAUTION (FOR AMPLIFIER): HOT SURFACE. DO NOT TOUCH.

The top surface over the internal heat sink may become hot when operating this product continuously. Do not touch hot areas, especially around the "Hot surface mark" and the top panel.

PRECAUTION (POUR AMPLIFICATEUR):

SURFACE CHAUDE. NE PAS TOUCHER.

La surface supérieure du dissipateur de chaleur peut devenir chaude si vous utilisez ce produit en continu. Ne touchez pas les zones chaudes, tout particulièrement vers l'inscription "Hot surface mark" et le panneau supérieur.

PRECAUCIÓN (PARA EL AMPLIFICADOR):

SUPERFICIE CALIENTE NO TOCAR

La superficie superior sobre el disipador de calor interno podría llegar a calentarse al operar este producto de forma continua. No toque las áreas calie ntes, especialmente las situadas alrededor de la "Hot surface mark" y del panel superior.

CUIDADO (PARA O AMPLIFICADOR): SUPERFÍCIE QUENTE, NÃO TOCAR.

A face superior localizada por cima do dissipador interno de calor pode ficar quente ao funcionar com este produto em modo contínuo. Não tocar nas zonas guentes, especialmente à volta do "Hot surface mark" e no painel superior.

CLASS 1 LASER PRODUCT (FOR DISC PLAYER) CAUTION:

USE OF CONTROLS OR ADJUSTMENTS OR PERFORMANCE OF PROCEDURES OTHER THAN THOSE SPECIFIED HEREIN MAY RESULT IN HAZARDOUS RADIATION EXPOSURE THIS PRODUCT SHOULD NOT BE ADJUSTED OR REPAIRED BY ANYONE EXCEPT PROPERLY QUALIFIED SERVICE PERSONNEL.

PRODUIT LASER CLASSE 1 (POUR LECTEUR DE DISQUE) **ATTENTION:**

L'UTILISATION DE COMMANDES, DE RÉGLAGES QU DE PERFORMANCE DE PROCÉDURES AUTRES QUE CELLES SPÉCIFIÉES ICI PEUT ENTRAÎNER UNE EXPOSITION DANGEREUSE À DES RADIATIONS.

CE PRODUIT DOIT UNIQUEMENT ÊTRE RÉGLÉ OU RÉPARÉ PAR UN PERSONNEL DE SERVICE SUFFISAMMENT QUALIFIÉ.

PRODUCTO LÁSER DE CLASE 1 (PARA EL REPRODUCTOR DE DISCOS) PRECAUCIÓN:

EL USO DE CONTROLES, AJUSTES, O LA REALIZACIÓN DE PROCEDIMIENTOS DISTINTOS A LOS AQUÍ ESPECIFICADOS, PUEDE PROVOCAR UNA EXPOSICIÓN PELIGROSA A LA RADIACIÓN ESTE PRODUCTO NO DEBE SER AJUSTADO O REPARADO POR NINGUNA PERSONA EXCEPTO POR PERSONAL DE SERVICIO DEBIDAMENTE

CUALIFICADO

PRODUTO LASER DE CLASSE 1 (PARA LEITOR DE DISCOS) CUIDADO:

O USO DE CONTROLOS, AJUSTES OU DESEMPENHO DE PROCEDIMENTOS QUE NÃO OS AQUI ESPECIFICADOS PODE RESULTAR EM EXPOSIÇÃO A RADIAÇÃO PERIGOSA

ESTE PRODUTO NÃO DEVE SER AJUSTADO OU REPARADO POR NINGUÉM EXCEPTO POR PESSOAL TÉCNICO DEVIDAMENTE QUALIFICADO.

WARNING:

DO NOT INGEST BATTERY, CHEMICAL BURN HAZARD

- The remote control supplied with this product contains a coin/button cell battery. If the coin/button cell battery is swallowed it can cause severe internal burns in just 2 hours and can lead to death.
- . Keep new and used batteries away from children. If the battery compartment does not close securely, stop using the product and keep it away from children. If you think batteries might have swallowed or placed inside any part of the body, seek immediate Medical attention

AVERTISSEMENT:

N'INGÉREZ PAS LA PILE, RISQUE DE BRÛLURE CHIMIQUE

• La télécommande fournie avec ce produit contient une pile bouton. Une ingestion de la pile bouton risque de causer de sévères brûlures internes en à peine 2 heures et peut entraîner la mort.

 Conservez les piles neuves et usagées hors de portée des enfants. Si le compartiment à piles ne se ferme pas de manière sécurisée, arrêtez d'utiliser le produit et conservez-le hors de portée des enfants. Si vous pensez que des piles ont été ingérées ou placées dans n'importe quel orifice corporel, contactez immédiatement une assistance médicale.

ADVERTENCIA:

NO INGERIR LA BATERÍA, RIESGO DE QUEMADURAS POR PRODUCTOS QUÍMICOS

- El control remoto suministrado con este producto contiene una pila de botón. En caso de ingestión, la pila de botón puede causar quemaduras internas graves en solo 2 horas y puede ocasionar la muerte.
- Mantenga las pilas nuevas y usadas fuera del alcance de los niños. Si el compartimento de la pila no se cierra firmemente, deie de utilizar el producto y manténgalo fuera del alcance de los niños. Si cree que se han podido ingerir pilas, o las mismas se encuentran en alguna parte en el interior del cuerpo, solicite atención médica de inmediato.

AVISO:

NÃO INGIRA A PILHA, PERIGO DE QUEIMADURA QUÍMICA

- O controlo remoto fornecido com este produto contém uma pilha de célula moeda/botão. Se a pilha de célula moeda/botão for engolida, pode causar queimaduras internas graves em apenas 2 horas e pode levar à morte.
- · Mantenha as pilhas novas e usadas longe das crianças. Se o compartimento da pilha não fechar com firmeza, pare de utilizar o produto e mantenha-o afastado das crianças. Se pensa que as pilhas possam ter sido engolidas ou colocadas dentro de qualquer parte do corpo, procure ajuda médica imediata.



Hot

surface

mark

CLASS 1

LASER PRODUCT"

There is a possibility of smoke fire explosion from the battery. Please note as following Insert the specified batteries in the remote control unit.

- Replace the batteries with new ones if the set does not operate even when the remote control unit is operated close to the unit. (The supplied batteries are only for verifying operation. Beplace them with new batteries at an early date) . When inserting the batteries, be sure to do so in the proper direction, following the
- \oplus and Θ marks in the battery compartment.
- To prevent damage or leakage of battery fluid:
- Do not use a new battery together with an old one. . Do not use two different types of batteries.
- Do not attempt to charge dry batteries.
- Do not short-circuit, disassemble, heat or dispose of batteries in flames.
- . Do not keep the battery in a place exposed to direct sunlight or in places with extremely high temperatures, such as near a heater
- If the battery fluid should leak, carefully wipe the fluid off the inside of the battery compartment and insert new batteries
- Remove the batteries from the remote control unit if it will not be in use for long. neriods
- · Used batteries should be disposed of in accordance with the local regulations regarding battery disposal
- The remote control unit may function improperly if rechargeable batteries are used

PRÉCAUTIONS RELATIVES À l'UTILISATION DES PILES

Il existe un risque d'émission de fumée, d'incendie, d'explosion de la pile. Veuillez tenir compte des points suivants.

- Insérez les piles spécifiées dans la télécommande.
- Remplacez les piles si l'appareil ne fonctionne pas même lorsque la télécommande est actionnée à proximité. (Les piles fournies ne servent qu'aux opérations de vérification. Remplacez-les par des piles neuves sans attendre.)
- · Lorsque vous insérez les piles, assurez-vous de les placer dans le bon sens, en
- respectant les margues \oplus et Θ qui figurent dans le compartiment à piles. Pour éviter un endommagement de la télécommande ou une fuite du liquide des
- niles.
- Ne pas mélanger piles neuves et anciennes.
- Ne pas utiliser deux types de piles différents. Ne pas essaver de charger de piles sèches.
- Ne pas court-circuiter, démonter, chauffer ou brûler les piles.
- Ne placez pas la pile dans un endroit exposé à la lumière directe du soleil ou dans des endroits présentant des températures extrêmement élevées, par exemple près d'un radiateur.
- En cas de fuite du liquide de pile, essuyez soigneusement l'intérieur du compartiment avant d'insérer de nouvelles piles.
- Ôtez les piles de la télécommande si vous ne l'utilisez pas pendant longtemps
- Veuillez vous débarrasser des piles usagées conformément aux lois locales relatives à la mise au rebut des piles.
- La télécommande risque de ne pas fonctionner correctement en cas d'utilisation de piles rechargeables

AVISOS SOBRE DE LAS PILAS

Existe posibilidad de generación de humo, incendio o explosión de la batería. Tenga en cuenta los siguientes aspectos

- Introduzca las pilas especificadas en el mando a distancia.
- Ponga pilas nuevas si el equipo no funciona ni siquiera si el mando a distancia se pone muy cerca. (Las pilas que se entregan con la unidad solo sirven para verificar que funciona. Cámbielas por pilas nuevas lo antes posible.)
- Cuando inserte las baterías, asegúrese de hacerlo en la dirección correcta, según las marcas \oplus v Θ en el compartimiento de baterías.
- · Para evitar daños o derrames del fluido de la batería:
- No utilice una nueva batería junto con una ya utilizada. No utilice dos tipos diferentes de baterías.
- No intente cargar baterías secas.
- No corto circuíte, desensamble, caliente o queme las baterías.
- No coloque las pilas en un lugar expuesto a la luz directa del sol o donde la temperatura sea extremadamente alta, como cerca de una calefacción.
- Si hav fluido de batería, limpie cuidadosamente el fluido en el compartimiento de
- las baterías e inserte unas nuevas • Retire las baterías del mando a distancia si no lo va a utilizar por una largo periodo de tiemno
- Las pilas usadas deben desecharse de acuerdo a las regulaciones locales concernientes al desecho de pilas.
- · Puede que el mando a distancia no funcione correctamente si se utilizan pilas recargables.

CUIDADOS NA UTILIZAÇÃO PILHAS

Existe a possibilidade de aparecer fumo, chamas, ou que a bateria possa explodir. Por favor, preste atenção

- · Cologue as pilhas indicadas na unidade de controlo remoto
- Substitua as pilhas por novas se o conjunto não funcionar mesmo accionando a unidade de controlo remoto próximo da unidade. (As pilhas fornecidas destinamse apenas à verificação do correcto funcionamento da unidade.)
- Ao colocar as pilhas, certifique-se de que as coloca na direcção correcta, seguindo as indicações \oplus e Θ existentes no compartimento das pilhas
- · Para evitar danos ou derrame de líquido das pilhas:
- Não utilize uma pilha nova em conjunto com uma usada.
- Não utilize dois tipos diferentes de pilhas.
- Não tente carregar pilhas secas.
- Não faca a ligação em curto-circuito, não desmonte, não aqueca nem queime as pilhas numa fogueira.
- · Não cologue as pilhas num local exposto à luz directa do sol nem em locais com temperaturas extremamente elevadas como, por exemplo, próximo de um aquecedor
- Em caso de derrame de líquido das pilhas, limpe cuidadosamente o líquido do interior do compartimento das pilhas e coloque pilhas novas.
- Retire as pilhas da unidade de controlo remoto caso não a vá utilizar durante longos períodos de tempo
- As pilhas usadas devem ser descartadas em conformidade com os regulamentos. locais relativos à eliminação de pilhas/baterias.

• A unidade de controlo remoto poderá não funcionar correctamente se forem utilizadas pilhas recarregáveis.

For lithium battery:

For California customers only:

This product contains a battery that contains perchlorate material Perchlorate Material-special handling may apply.





DENON®

Congratulations on purchasing this Denon product! We invite you to join the Denon Owner's Club.

Thank you for choosing Denon. Be the first to know about upcoming Denon products and get exclusive previews of new technologies. You will also receive members only offers from our online store and be the first in line for all promotions and contests. http://usa.denon.com/ownersclub

Join today!

Please register your product at,

USA Customers : http://usa.denon.com/register Canada Customers : http://ca.denon.com/register

Denon Factory Service Information

USA

DENON FACTORY SERVICE by PANURGY OEM

701 Ford Road (South Dock) Rockaway, NJ 07866-2053 (973) 625-4056 (973) 625-9489 Fax http://www.panurgyoem.com/Denon/Denonrepair.html

To locate an authorized warranty service center within your area please visit our web site at

http://usa.denon.com/servicecenters

CANADA

DENON FACTORY SERVICE by MICROLAND TECHNICAL SERVICES

170 Alden Road, Unit 2 Markham, ON L3R4C1 (905) 940-1982 http://clientportal.microland.ca/rmastart.aspx

To locate an authorized warranty service center within your area please visit our web site at http://ca.denon.com/servicecenters

> WARRANTY DE COMMON 5431 10003 90AD

DENON I IMITED WARRANTY

Length of Non-Transferable Warranty

This warranty on your DENON product which is distributed and warranted by DENON ELECTRONICS (USA), LLC remains in effect for the following periods from the date of the original consumer purchase from an AUTHORIZED DENON ELECTRONICS (USA), LLC DEALER.

Product Category					
A/V Controller, A/V Re	ceiver, AM/FI	V Receiver	AVC, AVR, DRA	2	
IN-Command series	M AV Receiver	s, Sound bar	AVR-****CI, AVR-X****, DHT-S****	3	1
DVD Receiver, DVD H	Iome Theater	System	ADV, S	1	1
D/A Converter, Portab	le USB-DAC /	Headphone Amplifier	DA	2	1
Pre-Amplifier, Digital P	Pre-Amplifier, F	ower-Amplifier, Head Amplifier	PRA, AVP, DAP, POA, HA	3	1
Tuner, Integrated Amp	plifier		TU, PMA	3	1
Option Board			ACD	3	1
Super Audio CD / CD	Player, DVD P	layer, Blu-ray Disc Player	DCD, DCM, DVD, DVM, DBP, DBT	1	1
CD Recorder		CDRW	1		
CD Receiver, Network	k CD Receiver	, Network Receiver	RCD, DRA-N	1	1
Network Audio Player	· 1		DNP	2	1
System Audio, CD Re	ceiver System	1	D-F, D-M, S, D-T	1	YEAR(S)
Turntable	1	Autolift / Manual	DP-L, DP-M	4	1
Turntable	2	Full Automatic	DP-F, DP-USB	2	1
Speaker			SC	5	1
Sub-woofer			DSW	1]
Microphone			DM-S, DM-A	2	1
Bluetooth Speaker			DSB	1	1
iPhone® / iPod® Doc	ks		ASD, DSD	1	1
Headphone			AH	1	1
Front Surround Home	Theater Syste	em	DHT-FS	1	1
TV Speaker Base			DHT-T****	1	1
Video Processor			DVP	3	1
Cartridge			DL	90	
Remote Controller			RC	90	DAVC
Cables			AK	90	DAYS
Speaker stands			ASF	90]

iPod is a trademark of Apple Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries

What is Covered

Except as specified below, this Warranty covers all defects in material and workmanship in this product occurring during the above warranty periods. The following are not covered by the Warranty: (1) Any product which is not distributed in the U.S.A. by DENON ELECTRONICS (USA), LLC. (2) Any product which is not purchased in the U.S.A. from an authorized DENON dealer. (Note: AUTHORIZED DENON DEALERS can be identified by DENON AUTHORIZED DEALER sticker displayed in the stores. If you are uncertain as to whether a dealer is a DENON AUTHORIZED DEALER, please contact DENON as listed below). (3) Any product on which the serial number has been defaced, modified or removed. (4) Damaged deterioration or <u>malfunction resulting</u> from: a) Accident, act of nature, abuse, misuse, neglect, unauthorized product repair, opening of or modification or failure to follow instructions supplied with the product. b) Repair or attempted repair by anyone not authorized by DENON. c) Any shipment of the product (claim must be presented to carrier). (5) Items subject to wear from normal usage (tape heads, cartridges, stylus, battery, etc.). (6) Periodic check-ups which do not disclose any defect. (7) Use of the product outside the U.S.A. (8) Damaged magnetic tape or CD/DVD/BD discs. (9) Use in industrial, commercial, and/or professional applications. (10) Any installation or removal charges resulting from product failure.

What We Will Pay For

If during the applicable warranty period from the date of original consumer purchase your DENON product is found to be defective by DENON, DENON will repair, or at its option, replace with new, reconditioned or equivalent model, such defective product without charge for parts or labor.

How to Obtain Warranty Performance

If your unit ever needs service, it may be taken or shipped to any authorized DENON service station or DENON ELECTRONICS (if you are uncertain as to whether a service station is DENON authorized, please visit our website at http://usa.denon.com/servicecenters or contact DENON as listed below.) In all other cases, the following procedures apply whenever your unit must be transported for warranty service;

- a. You are responsible for transporting your unit or arranging for its transportation.
- b. If shipment of your unit is required;
- a manifestion of your interception.
 You must pay the initial shipping charges, but we will pay the return shipping charges if the repairs are covered by the Warranty.
 c. WHEN RETURNING YOUR UNIT FOR WARRANTY SERVICE, A COPY OF THE ORIGINAL SALES SLIP MUST BE ATTACHED.
- d. You should include the following: your name, address, daytime telephone number, model and serial number of the product and a description of the problem. In the case of a CD/DVD/BD Player, please enclose ONE (1) disc that the unit has failed with for test reasons. It will be returned with the unit.

THIS WARRANTY IS VALID IN THE U.S.A. ONLY.

If your product does not require service, but you have questions regarding its operation, please contact our Customer Support Department as listed below.

THIS WARRANTY IS EXPRESSLY MADE IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

OUR LIABILITY IS LIMITED TO THE REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT, AT OUR OPTION, OF ANY DEFECTIVE PRODUCT AND SHALL IN NO EVENT INCLUDE INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL COMMERCIAL OR PROPERTY DAMAGES OF ANY KIND. WE ARE NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR PRODUCTS LOST, STOLEN AND/OR DAMAGED DURING SHIPPING.

SOME STATES DO NOT ALLOW LIMITATIONS ON HOW LONG AN IMPLIED WARRANTY LASTS AND/OR DO NOT ALLOW THE EXCLUSION OF INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, SO THE ABOVE LIMITATIONS AND EXCLUSIONS MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU.

This warranty gives you specific legal rights, but you may also have other rights which vary from state to state. This Warranty may not be altered other than in a writing signed by an officer of Denon Electronics USA, LLC.

◆ allte ◆ allte

DENON ELECTRONICS (USA), LLC

DENON FACTORY SERVICE by PANURGY OEM

(a D&M Holdings Company) 100 Corporate Drive Mahwah, NJ 07430-2041 (201) 762-6665 www.usa.denon.com

701 Ford Road (South Dock) Rockaway, NJ 07866-2053 (973) 625-4056 (973) 625-9489 Fax http://www.panurgyoem.com/Denon/Denonrepair.html

DENON[®] LIMITED WARRANTY

Length of Non-Transferable Warranty

This warranty on your DENON product which is distributed and warranted by D&M CANADA INC. remains in effect for the following periods from the date of the original consumer purchase from an AUTHORIZED D&M CANADA INC. DEALER.

Product Category				
A/V Controller, A/V Receiver, AM/FM Receiver	AVC, AVR, DRA	2		
IN-Command series ™ AV Receivers, Sound bar	AVR-****CI, AVR-X****, DHT-S****	3	1.00	
DVD Receiver, DVD Home Theater System	ADV, S	1		
D/A Converter, Portable USB-DAC / Headphone Amplifier	DA	2	100	
Pre-Amplifier, Digital Pre-Amplifier, Power-Amplifier, Head Amplifier	r PRA, AVP, DAP, POA, HA	3		
Tuner, Integrated Amplifier	TU, PMA	3		
Option Board	ACD	3	1	
Super Audio CD / CD Player, DVD Player, Blu-ray Disc Player	DCD, DCM, DVD, DVM, DBP, DBT	1		
CD Recorder	CDRW	1	1	
CD Receiver, Network CD Receiver, Network Receiver	RCD, DRA-N	1		
Network Audio Player	DNP	2		
System Audio, CD Receiver System	D-F, D-M, S, D-T	1	YEAR(S)	
Tuestelle 1 Autolift / Manual	DP-L, DP-M	4		
2 Full Automatic	DP-F, DP-USB	2	1	
Speaker	SC	5	1	
Sub-woofer	DSW	1		
Microphone	DM-S, DM-A	2	-	
Bluetooth Speaker	DSB	1		
iPhone® / iPod® Docks	ASD, DSD	1	1	
Headphone	AH	1		
Front Surround Home Theater System	DHT-FS	1	1	
TV Speaker Base	DHT-T****	1	1	
Video Processor	DVP	3	1	
Cartridge	DL	90		
Remote Controller	RC	90	DAVO	
Cables	AK	90	DATS	
Speaker stands	ASF	90		

iPod is a trademark of Apple Inc., registered in the U.S. and other countries.

What is Covered

Except as specified below, this Warranty covers all defects in material and workmanship in this product occurring during the above warranty periods. The following are not covered by the Warranty: (1) Any product which is not distributed in Canada by D&M CANADA INC. (2) Any product which is not purchased in Canada from an authorized DENON dealer. (Note: AUTHORIZED DENON DEALERS can be identified by DENON AUTHORIZED DEALER sticker displayed in the stores. If you are uncertain as to whether a dealer is a DENON AUTHORIZED DEALER, please contact D&M CANADA INC. as listed below). (3) Any product on which the serial number has been defaced, modified or removed. (4) Damaged deterioration or <u>malfunction resulting</u> from: a) Accident, act of nature, abuse, misuse, neglect, unauthorized product repair, opening of or modification or failure to follow instructions supplied with the product. b) Repair or attempted repair by anyone not authorized by DENON. c) Any shipment of the product (claim must be presented to carrier). (5) Items subject to wear from normal usage (tape heads, cartridges, stylus, battery, etc.). (6) Periodic check-ups which do not disclose any defect. (7) Use of the product outside Canada. (8) Damaged magnetic tape or CD/DVD/BD discs. (9) Use in industrial, commercial, and/or professional applications. (10) Any installation or removal charges resulting from product failure.

What We Will Pay For

If during the applicable warranty period from the date of original consumer purchase your DENON product is found to be defective by DENON, DENON will repair, or at its option, replace with new, reconditioned or equivalent model, such defective product without charge for parts or labor.

How to Obtain Warranty Performance

If your unit ever needs service, it may be taken or shipped to any authorized DENON service station or D&M CANADA INC. (For an authorized DENON service station near you, please check our website http://ca.denon.com/servicecenters or contact D&M CANADA INC. as listed below.) In all other cases, the following procedures apply whenever your unit must be transported for warranty service;

- a. You are responsible for transporting your unit or arranging for its transportation.
- b. If shipment of your unit is required;
- You must pay the initial shipping charges, but we will pay the return shipping charges if the repairs are covered by the Warranty.
- c. WHEN RETURNING YOUR UNIT FOR WARRANTY SERVICE, A COPY OF THE ORIGINAL SALES SLIP MUST BE ATTACHED.
- d. You should include the following: your name, address, daytime telephone number, model and serial number of the product and a description of the problem. In the case of a CD/DVD/BD Player, please enclose ONE (1) disc that the unit has failed with for test reasons. It will be returned with the unit.

THIS WARRANTY IS VALID IN CANADA ONLY.

If your product does not require service, but you have questions regarding its operation, please contact our Customer Support Department as listed below.

THIS WARRANTY IS EXPRESSLY MADE IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

OUR LIABILITY IS LIMITED TO THE REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT, AT OUR OPTION, OF ANY DEFECTIVE PRODUCT AND SHALL IN NO EVENT INCLUDE INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL COMMERCIAL OR PROPERTY DAMAGES OF ANY KIND. WE ARE NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR PRODUCTS LOST, STOLEN AND/OR DAMAGED DURING SHIPPING.

SOME PROVINCES DO NOT ALLOW LIMITATIONS ON HOW LONG AN IMPLIED WARRANTY LASTS AND/OR DO NOT ALLOW THE EXCLUSION OF INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, SO THE ABOVE LIMITATIONS AND EXCLUSIONS MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU.

This warranty gives you specific legal rights, but you may also have other rights which vary from province to province. This Warranty may not be altered other than in a writing signed by an officer of D&M Canada Inc.

D&M CANADA INC. 10462 Islington Avenue, Unit 8B Kleinburg, Ontario L0J 1C0 (905) 475-4085 www.ca.denon.com

DENON FACTORY SERVICE by MICROLAND TECHNICAL SERVICES 170 Alden Road, Unit 2

Markham, ON L3R 4C1 (905) 940-1982 http://clientportal.microland.ca/rmastart.aspx

3





HEOS 2.4/5GHz : 120300055600J

How to use Connect

You'll need Spotify Premium to use Connect, see details overleaf.

1) Add your new device to the same wifi network as your phone, tablet or PC (see product user instructions for details).

- 2 Open the Spotify app on your phone, tablet or PC, and play any song.
- 3 If you're using the app on a phone tap the song image in the bottom left of the screen. For tablet and PC move to step 4.
- 4) Tap the Connect icon \, 🔘
- 5 Pick your device from the list. If you can't see it, just check it's connected to the same wifi network as your phone, tablet or PC.

All done! Happy listening.



Say hello to Spotify Premium

Spotify Premium lets you listen to millions of songs ad-free – the artists you love, the latest hits and discoveries just for you. Simply hit play to hear any song you like, at the highest sound quality.

Check out our current Premium offers at spotify.com/premium

Your new device has Spotify Connect built in.

Spotify Connect lets you control the music playing on your device, using the Spotify app on your mobile, tablet or PC.

Listening is seamless. You can take calls, play games, even switch your phone off – all without interrupting the music.

Learn more at spotify.com/connect



WELCOME TO THE HEOS FAMILY. ANY SONG. ANY ROOM. INDOORS OR OUT.

	Witterts	
pandora	spo	tify
÷tune in	mus	
s.th DEEZER	R @nap	ster
👎 iHeart RADIC	SiriusX	mi)
ны холирсгол	ı⊳ * ₽* T I D	AL
C Rhapsody	r 👌 This iPt	ione
		•

WHAT IS HEOS?

HEOS is a wireless music system that allows you to control all your music effortlessly from anywhere in your home. All you need is one or more HEOS speakers/ components and the free app.

QU'EST-CE QUE HEOS?

HEOS est un système audio multiroom sans fil qui vous permet de contrôler aisément votre musique depuis n'importe quelle pièce de chez vous. Tout ce dont vous avez besoin c'est au moins une enceinte HEOS et son application dédiée gratuite.

HEOSとは?

HEOSは、簡単な操作で家中どこでも 音楽を楽しめるワイヤレスミュージック システムです。ご利用いただくには、 一台以上のHEOS対応製品と無料の 「HEOSアプリ」が必要です。

*The HEOS app is free and available for Apple iOS, Google Android, and Amazon Kindle devices. 『HEOS App』は無料で、AppleのiOSデバイス、GoogleのAndroid搭載端末、AmazonのKindleでご利用いただけます。



AU CŒUR DE VOTRE NOUVEAU SYSTÈME SANS FIL.

Vous venez de transformer votre home cinéma existant en un système HEOS multi-room sans fil. Profitez désormais de tous vos titres préférés, dans toutes les pièces de chez vous, à tout moment. Et grâce à l'application HEOS gratuite* vous pouvez contrôler votre musique sans effort, partout dans votre maison.

Chaque chanson. Chaque playlist. Du bout des doigts.

HEOS

MEET THE HEART OF YOUR NEW WIRELESS NETWORK.

You've just upgraded your existing home theatre to a HEOS wireless multi-room audio network—automatically. Enjoy any song, in any room, anytime. And thanks to the free HEOS app* you can control your favourite music effortlessly, from anywhere in your home.

Every song. Every playlist. At your fingertips.

新しいワイヤレス・ネットワークの 世界を体験しましょう

あなたのホームシアターシステムが、HEOSマルチルーム・ オーディオ・ネットワークにつながります。 お気に入りの曲を、いつでもどの部屋にいても、無料の 「HEOSアプリ」を使って簡単に楽しむことができます。

すべての曲、すべてのプレイリストを あなたの指先で



SOURCE SELECT

d

www.denon.com